Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the
contents of this announcement, make no representation as to
its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon
the whole or any part of the contents of this announcement.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Evershine
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce
the audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2018. This announcement, containing the full
text of the 2018 annual report of the Company, complies with the
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (the “GEM Listing Rules”) in relation to information
to accompany preliminary announcement of annual results. The
Company’s 2018 annual report will be available for viewing on the
websites of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk and of the
Company at www.evershinegroup.com.hk on 28 March 2019, and
the printed version of the Company’s 2018 annual report will be
delivered to the shareholders of the Company on 29 March 2019.

By Order of the Board
Evershine Group Holdings Limited
Hung Tat Chi Alan
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019

As of the date hereof, the executive Directors are Mr. Hung Tat Chi
Alan and Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason; the non-executive Director is Mr.
Chan Wai Kit; and the independent non-executive Directors are Ms.
Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa and Mr. Leung Man
Chun.
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This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this announcement is (1)
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and (2) there are no other matters the omission of
which would make any statement herein or this announcement
misleading.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Company
Announcements” page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com
for at least seven days from the date of its publication and on the
website of the Company at http://www.evershinegroup.com.hk.
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

EFEHRS

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present to you a summary
of the results of the operations of the Group for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”). In the past year,
the Group reinforced a stable development through acquisitions
and improvements of the existing business. We strive to seek for
opportunities in both asset and profit growth in the coming years.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF 2018 FISCAL YEAR

Revenue of the Group from continuing operations for 2018
was approximately HK$4,427,000 which decreased by 84% as
compared to approximately HK$27,948,000 last year. Compared
to the loss for the year of HK$68,749,000 in 2017, loss for the year
of HK$113,443,000 was recorded. Loss per share in 2018 was
approximately 6.02 HK cents, compared to a loss of 4.49 HK cents
per share in 2017. The Board does not recommend any dividend
payment for 2018.

OVERVIEW FOR 2018 OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS

Strategically, 2018 has been a significant year for Evershine,
in which the Company has continued developing business
opportunities in property development in the Republic of Turkey
(“Turkey”). Despite the fact that the subdued economic environment
is continuing to negatively impact our financial result, the Group
has been continuing to explore further investments opportunities
to develop our business. The Group has been continuing to build,
grow and unlock the value behind our businesses and investments.
We believe our strategy is working on the right track despite the
challenging market conditions.
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Akasya Apartment, Kadikoy, Istanbul, Turkey
T EHFHIB MR Ef{fAkasya Apartment
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Evim Apartment, Kadikoy, Istanbul, Turkey
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

EFEHE

During the year, the Group has identified greater opportunities
under the shelter of “Belt and Road” initiative, and expanded
the properties investment scale in Turkey. An acquisition of an
additional 30% equity interest of Boyraci Yapi insaat ve Taahhiit
Gayrimenkul Yatirim Anonim Sirketi (“Boyraci Construction”) has
completed, Boyraci Construction is a company operating in real
estate development in Turkey, thus after the acquisition Boyraci
Construction became an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the
Group. Boyraci Construction has completed 5 projects, consist of
14 residential units and 2 commercial units, additional two projects
are expected to reach completion in the year of 2019. Majority of
the residents are leased with tenants and has been generating
stable rental income, and we expect such rental income will remain
stable in 2019. Since the Turkish government has lowered the
requirements for foreigners to acquire Turkish citizenship during the
year 2018, upward trend is presented in the sum of foreign property
buyers in Turkey. The Group believes that such trend will continue
to rise and provide opportunities for our currently vacant property
units and constructing units to generate considerable revenue in
2019.

Sea view from Doga Apartment, Kadikoy, Istanbul, Turkey
T HHFHIEME FEMAFDoga Apartment$ i85

Doga Apartment, Kadikoy, Istanbul, Turkey
T HHFHEAE FEMAFDoga Apartment
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Koza Apartment, Kadikoy, Istanbul, Turkey
T B EFEHE A R EMFKoza Apartment
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

EFEHRS

To further explore the opportunities in Turkey, we have participated
the ““Hong Kong’s Role in the Belt and Road Strategic Development
Plan of the Motherland” Seminar” and “Turkey Economic and
Cultural Exchange Delegation Trip” organised by Chinese-Turkish
Economic and Cultural Exchange Association (“CTECEA”) during
the year. The association is formed by a body of professionals,
with an aim to promote business and cultural links between Turkey,
mainland China and Hong Kong, in order to contributing to the long-
term interests and sustainable development between the countries.

Delegates from Turkey Delegation meet the Principal of Istanbul Technical
University

TEARREZAREFIMEAHETIAZRREE

The properties investment business in Hong Kong continued to
make steady progress in FY2018. The property prices of the two
office units, which are located in the central business district in Wan
Chai Hong Kong have risen this year, thus improves the Group’s
overall asset value. The office units continue to maintain good
progress in the office leasing activities and generate rental income.
We are optimistic that the properties investment business will bring
long-term success to the Group.
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

EFEHRS

Henan Building, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
EREFRERE

During the Year, the Group has set up a new indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary, incorporated in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”), specializing in furniture design including window frames,
doors and wardrobes customized design and manufacture. The
products have combined the values and technological efficiencies
with fine and unrivalled craftsmanship. The business will target
high-end customers as well as corporate customers such as hotels
and property developers in PRC'’s first-tier cities, by providing
personalized and unique furniture in high quality. We believe that
the growing urbanization and commercialization trend in PRC will
lead to a high demand for advanced and reliable customized design
furniture. Positive construction spending and ongoing renovation
are the key trends witnessed which would gradually favor viable
growth opportunities for the market. Rise in expenditure on
construction activities to enhance the standard of living and artistic
beauty in PRC is anticipated to support the growth in the coming
years.
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Located in the central business district in Wan Chai,
Hong Kong
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD
EFEHRS

Customized design door

Customized design door
SHFTHM 2 HFTHEM

Customized design door and window frames Customized design bookshelf
EHTHMREE EHTHER
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

EFEHE

On the other hand, our money lending business wholly owned
subsidiary company Ottoman Evershine Finance Limited, has
renewed the money lenders license granted by the licensing court
in Hong Kong pursuant to the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter
163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and continues to operate during the
Year.

The Group maintained a steady operation of mobile application
business in FY2018. Our subsidiary company First Surplus
Investments Limited (the “FS Group”) principally engaged in
development of mobile games, game publishing, applications,
related intellectual property and platform, and provision of related
solutions. The operation has been facing fierce market competition
and regulatory uncertainties during the year. Going forward, the
Group will carefully monitor the market environment in the mobile
game industry and continue to seek opportunities in overseas
market.

The trading business of the Group is now focusing on Onyx
Marbles, a type of construction materials, importing from Turkey
to PRC. The Marbles have been warehoused in PRC, marketing
strategies are planned to proceed in 2019 to better improve our
overall trading business.

Due to the complexity of local government regulation, the sales
process of the cemetery business in Henan, PRC has been affected
during the Year. Taking into account of the growth prospect and
the restricted environment in PRC, the Group maintains provision
for impairment of receivables and for estimated losses that result
from the inability of the cemetery to maintain normal operation. The
Group will strive to negotiate with the local government in order to
creating a favourable environment for the cemetery business in
Henan.

Xianganling Cemetery is situated on the land with an area of approximately 47
Mu which is located at Zhecheng County, Henan Province, the PRC.
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Evershine Group offers premium and professional
services in cemetery.
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD
EFEHRS

Our services include the utilization of niches and plots, thus offering our
expertise in tomb design and construction services, cemetery and columbarium
maintenance services.

EMzRBERERURERER  RERRARERRY - RERSREEER
R R HEEAH o

During the year, Evershine volunteer team has participated the
volunteer activity organized by Sheng Kung Hui Holy Carpenter
Church Community Centre. The aim of the activity is to serve
the underprivileged families in Kowloon City district by providing
a platform for neighborhoods to donate items such as furniture,
stationery, toys and books for those who are in need. Evershine will
continue to devote to an array of charity activities in the community.
In order to live up to the responsibility of a good corporate citizen,
we will hold of every possible means to contribute to the community
and to care about the less fortunate people around.

Evershine volunteer team together with staff from S.K.H Holy Carpenter Church
Community Center

KREIERREAGEEEHERF L ZRE
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We provide 12,000 units of cemetery.
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Evershine volunteer team designed and hosted a
game booth for parents and younger participants.
More than 100 children and their parents enjoyed the
game booth exceedingly.
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STATEMENT FROM THE BOARD

EFEHE
PROSPECT

Looking ahead, a steady business growth of the Group is expected
in the future. We will adopt a cautious approach in developing
the existing projects and exploring new opportunities including
cooperation with business partners. We will continue to seek and
invest resources in projects with the objectives of expanding our
revenue sources, improving our profitability as well as diversifying
our types of business so as to further develop the business of the
Group and increase the shareholders’ return.

APPRECIATION

| would like to express my sincere appreciation to our staff and
employees for their dedication and hard work in forging a resilient
future. Finally, | must thank our business partners and shareholders
for maintaining the support and confidence in the Group over the
years.

On Behalf of the Board

Hung Tat Chi Alan
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TH Bl 5

The board of Directors (the “Board”) of Evershine Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) herein presents the audited annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the Year, the Group engaged in trading business, property
development and investment business, money lending business,
cemetery business and mobile application business. Details of the
principal subsidiaries and the associates of the Group are disclosed
in Notes 40 and 18 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue from continuing
operations of approximately HK$4,427,000 (2017: approximately
HK$27,948,000). The decrease in revenue was mainly
attributable to a decrease in trading of commodities during the
Year. The Group’s loss attributable to shareholders increased to
approximately HK$105,087,000 for the Year (2017: approximately
HK$66,961,000). Such increase in the loss was mainly attributable
to the impairment loss on intangible asset of approximately
HK$73,171,000 (2017: nil).

Trading Business

During the Year, the Group generated revenue from the trading
business of approximately HK$3,001,000 (2017: approximately
HK$25,399,000). The significant decrease in revenue was primarily
owing to the increasing market competition and volatile commodity
price during the Year that narrowed the gap between the asking
and bidding prices of coal that made the trading margin perilously
thin. As a result, the Group inclined to be cautious and prudent in
the matching of transactions between suppliers and customers to
mitigate the trading risk. Furthermore, despite the effort that the
Group put in to obtain banking facilities for further development
of the trading business, the Group has yet to reach any facility
agreements that could fit the needs of the trading business with
acceptable and reasonable terms and costs, mainly due to the
narrow profitability of the existing commodities of the Group. In
order to improve the profitability of the trading business, we will
continue to develop the trading business through diversifying the
source for commodities.

The Group has imported a batch of Onyx Marbles, a type of
construction materials from Turkey to the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”). Although no sales has been recorded during the
Year, this batch of Onyx Marbles is ready for sales and marketing.
We will continue to assess the market appeal of the Onyx Marbles
and seek for the opportunity of increasing the volume of purchase
in the next batch of shipping, as the economies of scale is key to
improve the gross profit of the trading of Onyx Marbles.

12 EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiESEEZERER AR

KREEERERAR(ARAR NESE(E
EEDERREARDFAREMEBE LT (FRE A
SENEBE_Z-\F+A=1T—HILLHK
FE(FADZEERFERE -

OB

TR ARERBEZER - MEEMARRRKRE
R MEXER > AEXBRFHRERARNE
%o BEAKEEIRWBARIRBE QR ZH
B2 BIREGRE B |RAR M40 1855 -

FR AEEZSRABTELEEK 2 WE
#94,427 0008 T (Z & — £ F : £27,948,000
B) WEBLPETEAREAERE SR
P - FEFARRELGAEEEEEMNY
105,087,00058 7T (= Z— -+ : #66,961,000
BT c BEHEEEENFEREETLEERE
E184973,171,000/8 T(ZZE—+tF : &) -

EUESS

FR BEEBKELE 2WE 43,001,000 T
(ZZ—+5F 1 £925,399,00087T)  WHFEE
BAOETEHRERATSHZMERERERKX
ERBERRBEEEEIMNEER 2 BERE
B8/ BREFAB+HEHZAE - Fit
AEEEREHEPNEES 2 X SEERSE
HEEE » LIRERESER - i BELREH
BHISRBITHREUZIFE S ER 2 Rz
B MAEESAESEAAREEZEKE
RMGERRRABSENES 2SRz It
DEEARAEEEEERZBAENER -
BREAEFEKRBAGED RS #HEESB
HEREmMRFURRE S ER -

AEECEO-—HTHEABHEAER(B—E
BREMIDEARKNRA(HE] - BE
FRIERGHE - HEZMBEAELC AR
ETHERTSHR - RABEEFEBEX
BRZHERIINORSREMT —HEHEY
BEEoHE  FRRABKERRABEX
BRE5EMNZEE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TH il K 5

During the Year, the Group has set up a new indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary, incorporated in the PRC, specializing in furniture
design including window frames, doors and wardrobes customized
design and manufacture.

Property Development and Investment

The Group holds commercial properties located in Hong Kong and
Turkey for investment purpose to earn rental income and with a
view to capture any possible future capital appreciation. During
the Year, approximately HK$1,334,000 of rental income was
received from tenants with HK$1,114,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,684,000) from commercial properties in Hong Kong and
HK$280,000 from commercial properties in Turkey (revenue being
consolidated in the statement of profit or loss subsequent to the
completion of business combination achieved in state on 1 October
2018).

The Group continued to expand its business in building construction,
property development, trading of construction materials and the
related consultancy services. Having acquired 30% equity interest
in Boyraci Yap! insaat ve Taahhiit Gayrimenkul Yatirrm Anonim
Sirketi (“Boyraci Construction”), a company incorporated in Turkey
that principally engaged in the construction, contracting works and
rental of residential properties, in 2016, the Group has gathered
confidence in the potential of the property development market in
Turkey. Thus, the Group entered into an agreement to acquire a
further 30% equity interest in Boyraci Construction in 2017 in a bid
to further capture its bright potential business development. The
transaction was completed on 1 October 2018. Details refer to note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Leveraging on the expertise in property development in Turkey,
the Group also seeks to act as a property trader and consultant to
provide property development related services in the future. The
Group has been in negotiations to provide such service to a project
that develops public and private housing. The Company will make
further announcement(s) as and when necessary.

The management considers that the property development and
investment business will become a significant part of the Group’s
business as a whole in its future plan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TH Bl 5

Cemetery Business

The Group has been engaged in the operation of a cemetery
located in Zhecheng County in Henan Province of PRC (the
“Cemetery”). The Cemetery has obtained the operating right for a
term up to 1 July 2050 and the required operating permit, subject to
annual renewal for the permission to operate the cemetery.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$73,171,000 on the intangible asset — operating
right was recognised in the statement of profit or loss (2017: nil) due
to (i) parts of related facilities had been under construction which
affected the sales process and (ii) certain unfavourable business
condition were identified.

The Operations of the Cemetery Business Segment

The progress of the Cemetery Business Segment has fallen
behind the original schedule as described in the circular of the
Company dated 7 November 2015. Although the reallocation and
demolishment of old graves took excessive time than originally
expected, this task has been completed. However, the construction
of the cemetery and the related facilities have not yet been
completed in 2018. The related facilities including the funeral
parlor and the cremation machine do not belong to Zhecheng
County Xianganling Cemetery (#hifl S E Z &N E) (the “Cemetery
Operator”), the operator of the Cemetery Business Segment. The
operation of funeral parlor and cremation machine are governed
and owned by the civil affairs bureau of Zhecheng Government. The
Cemetery Operator received a letter in early August of 2018 from
the funeral parlor that the funeral parlor operating party has been
communicated with the local government about the refurbishment
plan. As the funeral parlor and the cremation machine had gone
through many repairs in the past two years and were not available
for use most of the time in 2018, the Cemetery Operator considers
that this is likely the main reason for the intention of the funeral
parlor to refurbish the funeral parlor and the cremation machine
to improve the facilities. The Cemetery Operator understands that
fund for refurbishment of funeral parlor and cremation machine
estimated to be RMB14,000,000 is sourced from the local
government bureau’s internal budget. In general, once there is
plan to refurbish the funeral parlor and cremation machine, local
government bureau would invite contractors to submit tenders. In
reference to“Zhe Fa Gai Tou Zi (2018) No.8” (th3£{3%&(2018)8
%), it was announced in the Zhecheng Government’s website
dated 29 August 2018 that the funeral parlor shall commence the
construction in 2018 and shall complete in 2019. The Cemetery
Operator observed that as of early October 2018, the local funeral
parlor and cremation machine have been demolished evidencing
that the funeral parlor operating entity may have commenced the
refurbishment project. The Cemetery Operator is in the progress
in obtaining further news from the funeral parlor operating entity
and the local civil affairs bureau or department as to the stage of
refurbishment plan and the expected completion date. Prior to the
completion of the refurbishment plan, the Cemetery Operator does
not expect that the business operation of the Cemetery Business
Segment will show significant improvement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TH il K 5

The Cemetery

The location of the Cemetery is in the remote area outside
Zhecheng County and it is not well known locally. Zhecheng County
is a small county with a population of about 695,000 in 2017.
Rate of cremation in Henan Province is less than 20% of the total
deceased population in 2017 and has decreased by 53% when
compared to the figure found in 2012.

It is under the Funeral Management Regulations ({JBZEE IR 5451))
released in 2005 that the deceased should be cremated for burial if
there is cremation facility closed by. Although the local government
has been educating the local community to have cremation service
but law reinforcement may not be as effective. There is still strong
cultural influence that burying without cremation is preferred and
spending large amount of money to have lavish cemetery units for
the deceased may be beyond the reach of most of the locals. At
present, the unstable availability of the funeral parlor and cremation
machine during the past two years and its recent demolishment,
and the lack of one-stop service would make it even more difficult
to attract local community to use the Cemetery in the near future.
The Company is considering to improve its sale of cemetery units
by other measures such as placing advertisement and distribution
of leaflets at hospitals or elderly homes to let the local community
becoming more aware of the Cemetery.

With the more stringent measures carried out by the government
such as the release of Notice of the “Special Remediation Action
Plan for Outstanding Problems in the Funeral Area of Henan
Province” (CAEEEHAE R HBEREREGITEHRNEA))
dated 7 August 2018. This Notice asked for local government
to perform self-review and provide reports for any incompliance
to the Civil Affairs Bureau of the Henan Province. If there is any
incompliance identified, working group would be formed to examine
the conditions, identify issues and facilitate the execution of any
solution. In respect of the operation of the cemeteries, land bureau
of provinces would provide more resources in dealing with the
expropriation of land process. There would be more support from
the government to improve local funeral parlor and cremation
facilities. With the possible assistance from the local government,
the Company shall take more active approach to follow up the
transfer of land use right and the demand of cemetery units may
reach our expected level in one to two-year time as the Cemetery
is the only approved operating entity in Zhecheng County. The
Company will allocate more resources to the Cemetery Business
Segment should the leasing/sale of cemetery units increase. At
the same time, the Company shall strengthen its communication
with the funeral parlor operating entity and local civil affairs bureau
or department to facilitate the reinstalling of the funeral parlor and
cremation machine.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TH Bl 5

In view of the latest unfavourable business condition which may not
turn around in very short period of time, the Group is reassessing
its position in respect of the Cemetery Business Segment by taking
the following measures:

(a) the Company would maintain the operation without large
amount of capital expenditure until the business environment is
improved, for example, the completion of the reinstalling of the
funeral parlor and cremation machines; and

(b) the Company has appointed an independent professional
valuer to carry out a valuation of the intangible asset as of 31
December 2018 which is the operating permit of the Cemetery
with reference to the current operating level as it has been
below the Group’s original schedule as described in the circular
of the Company dated 7 November 2015. It has not generated
cash flow as originally expected, although it may be temporary,
partly affected by the latest development of the demolishment
of the funeral parlor and cremation machine.

The land use rights of the land on which the Cemetery is situated
The Company has consulted an independent PRC legal
professional about the detailed procedures and time estimation in
obtaining of the land use rights of the land on which the Cemetery is
situated (the “Land”). As advised, there are two processes, namely
the expropriation of land and the transfer of land use right. The
expropriation of land process should take place before the transfer
of land use right process.

The Board has been monitoring the Cemetery Business Segment
since the acquisition of the Cemetery and weighing the costs,
benefits and relevant risk, before it would take further steps to
initiate the transfer of land use right. The Company has been in
discussion with the Cemetery Operator on its concern on how
to ensure that the Cemetery Operator would obtain the bid at
the lowest possible risk and maintain its operating right of the
Cemetery. Furthermore, as described above, in view of the less
favorable business environment following the acquisition, the
Company would like to take its pace to gather more information
before making decision on the transfer of the land use right of the
Land as the Company would have to pay the land transfer fee and
the government levies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TH il K 5

As provided in the Company’s circular of 7 November 2015
regarding the acquisition of the cemetery, the Cemetery Operator
and the land use right owner have entered into an agreement for
the acquisition of the land use right with the land compensation
of RMB250,000 per mu by 31 December 2016. The contract has
expired on 31 December 2016 and the land compensation per mu
should be re-accessed with reference to the assessment provided
by the local land bureau. The Company shall work with the land use
right owner to start the land expropriation application as described
above.

The first stage of land expropriation application has been started
as of the date of this report and record the full scales of sales of
cemetery units assuming the hostile business condition would
turn around, funeral facilities such as the funeral parlor and
cremation machine would be reinstalled and land use right would
be completed by 2020. Since the completion of the acquisition of
the operating right of the cemetery, the Company has sold fourteen
units of cemetery units and has received deposits of another nine
cemetery units.

With the completion of construction work and obtaining land use
right by 2020, it is anticipated that the cemetery will be having
better performance in the future.

Money Lending Business

During the Year, Ottoman Evershine Finance Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, has renewed the money lenders
license granted by the licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). During the Year, the interest income contributed from the
money lending business was approximately HK$29,000 (2017:
approximately HK$865,000). The Group will continue to strengthen
the money lending business by broadening the customer base but
will adopt a prudent strategy when approving new loans so as to
balance the profitability and the credit risk involved.

Before approval of any loan applications, the Group would assess
the borrower’s credit quality via: 1) reviewing the background and
credit history of the borrower; 2) understanding the uses of fund
and means of repayment by the borrower; and 3) performing asset
check of the borrower. Borrowers shall be offered a fixed rate of
interest on the loans on an individual basis depending on each
result of credit assessment and collaterals offered by the respective
borrowers, if any.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Mobile Application Business

In 2017, the Group acquired 40% equity interest in First Surplus
Investments Limited (“FS Group”). FS Group and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in development of mobile games, game
publishing, applications, related intellectual property and platform,
and provision of related solutions. FS Group contains full team
of development, support and market publication. Through the
acquisition, it is expected that the Group can further develop mobile
application business and capture the opportunities in the mobile
online game industry and also the software industry.

During the Year, the Group has recorded a share of loss of
approximately HK$3,563,000 (2017: share of profit of approximately
HK$2,390,000). The share of loss was mainly attributable to the
amortisation of intangible assets decreased profit of approximately
HK$679,000 (2017: HK$15,292,000) and amounting to
HK$4,656,000 (2017: HK$4,430,000).

At the end of the Year, the Group has performed an impairment
assessment on the interest in FS Group and the recoverable
amount of it is below than its carrying amount. As a result,
the Group has recognised an impairment of approximately
HK$2,884,000.

Other Corporate Income, Expenses and Finance Costs

During the Year, the corporate expenses of approximately
HK$18,889,000 not allocated to business segments (2017:
approximately HK$31,462,000) was mainly attributable to
decreased operating expenses including legal and professional
fees, staff costs including Directors’ remuneration, rental expenses
and one-off loss on early redemption of promissory note of
HK$4,958,000 in 2017.

Finance costs for the Year amounted to HK$15,465,000 (2017:
HK$27,033,000), the significant decrease was mainly attributable
to the decreased interest expenses on convertible notes that
convertible notes in an amount of HK$86,000,000 with effective
interest of 18.27% issued on 23 March 2017 has been fully
converted in May 2018.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TH il K 5

FINANCIAL POSITION

Charges on Group’s Assets
As at 31 December 2018, charges on Group’s assets include two
term loans and a finance lease liability:

1) the carrying amount of the term loans amounts to approximately
HK$59,000,000 which carries interest at 9% per annum with
repayment period of 16 months that were secured by i) first
legal charges of the two properties acquired by the Company
which was completed on 27 June 2016, with carrying amount
of approximately HK$101,930,000 as at 31 December 2018;
and ii) an unlimited personal guarantee given by Mr. Chiu Ngai
Hung, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Details of the
properties are disclosed in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.; and

2) the carrying amount of the finance lease liability amounts to
approximately HK$703,000 which carries interest at 3.5% per
annum. The maturity date of the finance lease liability is on 24
March 2020. The loan was secured by a motor vehicle with net
book value of approximately HK$796,000 as at 31 December
2018.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2018, the total assets of the Group was
approximately HK$384,564,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$419,453,000), including cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$3,573,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$13,947,000).

Capital Structure

The number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December
2018 were 1,802,677,356 (31 December 2017: 1,637,677,356
shares).Subsequent to the Year and before the release of this
Report, the number of issued shares of the Company were
1,803,541,356 shares.

On 13 November 2018, the Company and Macquarie Bank Limited
(the “Subscriber” or the Noteholder) entered into the conditional
subscription agreement, pursuant to which the Subscriber has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue the convertible notes in the principal amount up to
HK$300,000,000 (the “Macquarie CN”).
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The Macquarie CN will be issued in two tranches. Each tranche
will be in an aggregate principal amount of HK$150,000,000. The
Macquarie CN will bear 1% interest per annum and will mature on
the second anniversary of the closing date. Each convertible note
entitles the Noteholder to convert the Macquarie CN into shares
at any time during the conversion period at the conversion price,
provided that no conversion right may be exercised at a conversion
price lower than the floor price (which is subject to adjustments).
The conversion price will be 92% of the volume weighted average
price of the shares as traded on the relevant stock exchange on
the trade day immediately preceding the relevant conversion date,
provided that no conversion right may be exercised at a conversion
price which is lower than the floor price (subject to adjustments).

On 21 February 2019. all conditions precedents set out in the
subscription agreement in relation to the Macquarie CN has been
fulfilled and completion of the issuance of the first trance of the
Macquarie CN in the principal amount of HK$150,000,000 has
taken place on the same date.

Subsequent to the issue of Macquarie CN and up to the date
of this Report, the Company has received conversion notice in
respect of the exercise of part of the conversion rights attached
to the Macquarie CN. As a result of the conversion, the Company
allotted and issued 864,000 shares in aggregate in relation to the
Macquarie CN.

COMMITMENTS

The details of the capital commitments incurred during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND INVESTMENTS

Acquisition of additional 30% of the equity interest of Boyraci
Construction

On 6 June 2017, Ottoman Evershine insaat Proje Ticaret
Anonim Sirketi (“Ottoman Evershine Construction”), a company
incorporated in Turkey, and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Mr. Osman Boyraci entered into the sales and
purchase agreement in relation to acquisition of additional 30% of
the equity interest of Boyraci Construction (“Boyraci Construction
Acquisition”).

Boyraci Construction is a company incorporated in Turkey and is
specialised in elite urban transformation projects and construction
of earthquake resistant buildings. The Group acquired 30% of the
equity interest of Boyraci Construction on 30 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2017, Boyraci Construction had 5 completed
construction projects, namely Koza Apartmani (previously
known as Arzu Apartmani), Sibel Apartmani, Akasya Apartmani,
Evim Apartmani and Doga Apartmani and 1 investment project,
namely Acarblu Ticarte Merkezi (“Acarblu Property”) with total
gross saleable area of approximately 3,863 m2, and there are 2
construction projects, namely Project Iclaliye and Project Hurrem
(the “Projects”), to be completed by 2019 with a total construction
area of approximately 4,837 m2.

As of 26 February 2018, the market value of Acarblu Property, a
two-floor condominium with gross saleable area of approximately
1,068 m2 was approximately 31,400,000 Turkish Lira (“TL")
(or approximately USD9,100,000) based on a valuation report
prepared by RM Ritim Gayrimenkul Degderleme A.S., a real estate
valuation company based in Istanbul, Turkey. Pursuant to the
side letter entered into between Ottoman Evershine Construction,
Boyraci Construction and Mr. Osman Boyraci on 26 February 2018,
the Acarblu Property was transferred from Boyraci Construction to
a new company (“Boyraci2 Iinsaat Anonim Sirketi”) incorporated
under the laws of Turkey on 27 March 2018 held by Mr. Osman
Boyraci and Ottoman Evershine Construction with 70% and 30%
equity interest respectively (the “Shareholder’'s Loan Set-off”). On
26 April 2018, Mr. Osman Boyraci has waived the amount due to
the shareholder of TL25,249,000 and recognised as a shareholder
contribution to the Boyraci Construction (the “Shareholder’s Loan
Waiver”).

Up to 26 April 2018, the Shareholder’s Loan set-off and
Shareholder’s Loan Waiver has been completed.

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement, supplemented by
the supplemental deed entered into between the aforesaid parties
on 6 November 2017, the first side letter dated 26 February 2018
and the second side letter dated 20 August 2018, in view of the
unfavorable currency movement of Turkish Lira the consideration
has been reduced by USD1,500,000 to USD5,050,000, being
satisfied by:

(i) an upfront refundable cash deposit of TL7,544,000
(approximately equivalent to USD2,000,000);

(i) the issuance of Promissory Note A in the principal amount of
USD1,938,770 (approximately equivalent to TL11,342,000)
which carries interest rate of 13% per annum and will mature
on the second anniversary date from the date of issue; and

(iii) the issuance of Promissory Note B as a contingent consideration
in the principal amount of up to USD1,111,230 (approximately
equivalent to TL6,501,000) (“Contingent Consideration”).
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The Contingent Consideration will be calculated as the lower of
(1) the 30% of the fair value less the actual cost (including but
not limited to any construction and development costs) incurred
in respect of the Projects up to and including the Contingent
Consideration Date; or (2) USD1,111,230 (approximately equivalent
to HK$8,668,000).

The consideration of the Boyraci Construction Acquisition was
determined after arm’s length negotiations with reference to, among
others, (i) the fair market value of the existing completed and
underconstruction properties and the value-added portion of the
new project in 2017 held by Boyraci Construction with reference to
the market values of similar properties in similar locations; and (ii)
the latest management account of Boyraci Construction.

The Boyraci Construction Acquisition constitutes a major
transaction and connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules
which has been subjected to independent shareholders’ approval
obtained at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company on
19 September 2018.

Following the fulfillment of the certain conditions on the Boyraci
Construction Acquisition took place on 1 October 2018, Boyraci
Construction has become an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and its financial results, assets and liabilities will
be consolidated and accounted for as a subsidiary in the financial
statements of the Group.

Details were disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated
6 June 2017, 6 November 2017, 6 December 2017, 26 February
2018, 3 July 2018, 10 August 2018, 20 August 2018, 24 August
2018, 4 September 2018 and 19 September 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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INFORMATION ON POSSIBLE ACQUISITIONS AND
PROJECTS

The proposed projects in Europe and Turkey

The Group is committed to continuously exploring new and different
investment opportunities in order to broaden its source of income.
This allows the Group to diversify risks from any single segment of
business and maintain profitability and be sustainable. The Group
intends to tap into the property investment and development market
worldwide including Europe and Turkey which has high potential to
be one of the Group’s main profit streams.

(i) Memorandum of understanding with the 6th Engineering

Bureau of China City Investment Group* (ISR EBEE T2
BBEMRATR) (formerly known as “The 6th Engineering Bureau
of China City Construction Holding Group Company”)
On 5 February 2016, the Company and the 6th Engineering
Bureau of China City Investment Group (“CCIN”) entered into
a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding (the
“MOU”).

Under the MOU, CCIN has the intention to participate in the
engineering and construction works in relation to the proposed
land development and large-scale project(s) of the Company
in Turkey and will underwrite the engineering works of relevant
projects in accordance with the intention and design of the
Company while CCIN would also give suggestions on the
design and feasibility of the projects.

Upon the implementation of the projects, the parties to the
MOU shall obtain all necessary approvals to enter into binding
formal cooperation agreement(s). The terms of the cooperation
agreement(s) shall be subject to negotiations between the
parties.

On 6 May 2016, the Company entered into a Strategic
Cooperation Agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with
CCIN.

Pursuant to the Cooperation Agreement, the Company has
nominated CCIN as its technical engineering consultant for the
projects, the Company and CCIN shall negotiate in good faith
in respect of every project in Europe and enter into relevant
project agreement(s) which would set out the scope of services,
fees and the corresponding duties of the parties.
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CCIN shall provide relevant technical engineering consultancy
services to the Company in respect of every project, which may
include but not limited to consultancy works, such as feasibility
studies, project design, blueprints, engineering quotes and
budgets, testing and checking, procurement of materials,
engineering and construction works, engineering supervision
and inspection.

The Company shall provide all necessary information and
data to allow CCIN to conduct relevant works and shall pay
relevant fee(s) in accordance with the terms of the project(s)
agreement(s). Subject to the payment of all consultancy fees
to CCIN if applicable, all copyrights of the technical documents
provided by CCIN shall be transferred to the Company and the
Company shall be entitled to utilise such documents for the
relevant projects.

Pasifik Gayrimenkul Yatirim ins. A.S. (“PASIFIK”) and Ciftay
insaat Taahhit Ve Ticaret A.S. (“CIFTAY”), companies duly
constituted and existing under the laws of Turkey, have been
awarded in the tender by the local authority for the revenue
sharing model project of Ankara Yenimahalle Station (the
“Project Ankara”), which is situated at Ankara, Turkey. Pursuant
to the Letter of Intent (“Lol”), the Company, CCIN and Astra
insaat Anonim Sirketi proposed their intention to be partners
with the joint venture formed by PASIFIK and CIFTAY in
Project Ankara subject to the execution and completion of the
actual agreements after arm’s length negotiations among the
parties. The parties to the Lol have agreed to discuss the terms
of partnership, business plan, business concept, direction,
profit sharing, project analysis and all further issues that may
be necessary for Project Ankara. The negotiation process is
still ongoing as of the date of this report.

Details of the proposed projects were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 5 February 2016, 6 May
2016, 16 May 2016, 18 May 2016 and 30 August 2016.
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(i) Strategic partnership agreements in respect of projects in

Turkey

On 6 November 2017 and 21 November 2017, the Company
entered into strategic partnership agreements (“PASIFiK
Agreement”) with PASIFIK and Akdeniz insaat Ve Egitim
Hizmetleri A.S. (“AKDENIZ”) (“AKDENIZ Agreement”),
companies duly constituted and existing under the laws
of Turkey, respectively, in relation to forming of strategic
partnerships between the Company and PASIFIiK and
AKDENIZ respectively in a bid (i) to explore investment
opportunities in real estate development in Turkey; (ii) to
establish partnership for engineering and related construction
business; and (iii) to invite more industrial partners from
mainland China to further broaden the scope of business
development scope as well as partnership.

PASIFIiK, being one of the top real estate developer in
Turkey, owns and/or jointly owns several mega projects in
prime districts in Ankara Province and Istanbul Province. The
Company has discussed with PASIFIK for the opportunities of
real estate development in Turkey.

AKDENIZ has over 30 years of experience in the real estate
and construction business in Turkey; furthermore, AKDENIZ
is also engaged in the energy and tourism sector. AKDENIZ
ranked in the Fortune 500 of Turkey in 2014 and 2015.
Agaoglu Gayrimenkul Yatirrm A.S. (“Adaoglu”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of AKDENIiZ, engaged in the real estate
and construction business and has completed over 20 large
property projects in Turkey with over 7,000,000 m?2 construction
area including residential, office, hotel, retail and local
amenities. Agaoglu ranked the most prestigious construction
company in 2015 and 2016 in the Turkish Reputation Index.

Further announcement(s) in respect of the partnerships and
the related projects will be made by the Company as and when
appropriate in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

Details of the strategic partnership agreements in relation
to projects in Turkey were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 6 November 2017 and 21 November
2017.
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(i) Memorandum of understanding with Seba Insaat Anonim
Sirketi
On 9 May 2018, the Group and Seba insaat Anonim Sirketi, a
company incorporated in Turkey (“Seba”) entered into a non-
legally binding memorandum of understanding (the “MOU
Seba”).

Under the MOU Seba, the Group has the intention to acquire
and Seba has the intention to sell a certain number of villas and
apartments located in Bodrum Province, Giindogan District,
Turkey (the “Project Seba”), which consists of 20 villas and 17
apartments holiday units with construction area of 10,000 m?
and saleable area of 8,000 m2. The Project Seba is expected to
be completed within the year of 2019.

The consideration and the payment method for the proposed
acquisition shall be subject to further negotiations between
the parties but the final consideration shall not exceed
USD30,000,000 and shall be determined under a formal
agreement (“Formal Agreement”).

It is the intention of the parties that Group shall have the rights
within a period of 18 months after the date of completion the
Formal Agreement and at its full discretion to sell all or part of
the selected properties to Seba at the price equivalent to the
130% of the final consideration of relevant selected properties.

Details of the MOU Seba were disclosed in the Company’s
announcements dated 9 May 2018.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s major business operations and investments are in
the PRC, Hong Kong and Turkey. All the outstanding balances of
borrowings and obligations under finance leases are denominated
in Hong Kong dollar. Other than described above, most of the
assets, liabilities and transactions of the Group are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi, United States dollar
and Turkish Lira. The Group has not entered into any instruments to
hedge the foreign exchange exposure and considered the potential
foreign exchange exposure of the Group is limited. The Group will
closely monitor exchange rate movement and will take appropriate
activities to reduce the exchange risk.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group exposes to various risks and uncertainties in its daily
operation and management. Save for the credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk, currency risk and fair value risk as disclosed in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group also
exposes to operation risk and market risk. In addition, as the
cemetery business is located in the PRC and the interest in Turkey
companies, the Group’s business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects are greatly affected by political, economic
and legal developments and changes to government policies in the
PRC and Turkey.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2017: Nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The details of the non-adjusting event includes the completion
of the issue of first tranche of the Macquarie CN with principal of
HK$150,000,000, details refer to note 38(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 13 March 2019, the Company and Just Classic Limited
has entered into a confirmation letter (the “Confirmation
Letter”) in relation to the convertible note of principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 matured on 3 December 2018, details see note
38(b) to the consolidated financial statements, which has been
classified under current borrowing as at 31 December 2018.

The Company and Just Classic Limited mutually agree that the
outstanding balance carries an interest rate of 10% per annum
from 4 December 2018 and interest shall be paid in every two
months. The principal of HK$30,000,000 shall be payable before 30
November 2019.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 46 (2017:
approximately 51) full-time employees. The Group remunerates
its employees based on their performance, experience and the
prevailing industry practice.

The Group provides competitive remuneration package to
employees with the share option scheme. The emolument policy
of the employees of the Group is determined on the basis of their
merit, qualifications and competence.

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section under the Report of the Directors.

PUBLICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED
UNDER SECTION 436 OF THE COMPANIES ORDINANCE

The financial information relating to the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 included in the 2018 annual
results announcement dated 22 March 2019 is derived from, but
does not constitute the Company’s statutory annual consolidated
financial statements for these two years.

The Company has delivered the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to the Registrar of Companies of Hong
Kong as required by section 662(3) of, and Part 3 of Schedule 6
to, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”) and will deliver the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 to the Registrar
of Companies of Hong Kong within the prescribed time limit.

The Company’s auditor has reported on the financial statements
of the Group for both the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017. The auditor’s reports were unqualified; did not include a
reference to any matters to which the auditor drew attention by
way of emphasis without qualifying its reports; and did not contain
a statement under sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3) of the Companies
Ordinance.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFEABREERERESFR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hung Tat-Chi Alan (“Mr. Hung”), aged 40, was appointed
as executive Director of the Company on 22 March 2017. He is
currently the authorised representative and compliance officer of
the Company. Mr. Hung holds Master Degrees in Civil Engineering
and Business Administration and is a member of the International
Institute of Management. He is specialized in construction and
environmental engineering, research and development, sales
and marketing, fundraising, mergers and acquisitions, business
administration and event management. Mr. Hung has been taking
up key positions as engineering professional and senior executive
in public companies, private enterprises and statutory body for
more than 12 years, and has established extensive network with
government officials, entrepreneurs, organisation leaders, scholars
and professionals. He is the Executive Vice Chairman of Shenzhen
Hong Kong Youth Exchange Promotion Association, Secretary
General of the Chinese Turkish Economic and Cultural Exchange
Association and Deputy Secretary General of the Preparatory
Committee for the World Summit of Chinese Entrepreneurs. Mr.
Hung was appointed as alternate Director to Mr. Bilent Yenal (“Mr.
Yenal”) on 11 January 2016, and resigned as alternate Director
immediately following the resignation of Mr. Yenal with effect from
14 June 2017. He was an executive Director of Aurum Pacific
(China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148) from 2 March 2016 to 20
March 2017.

Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason (“Mr. Ling”), aged 37, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company with effect from 16 December
2016. Mr. Ling obtained a degree of Bachelor of Economics and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. Mr. Ling has extensive
experience in mergers and acquisitions, post-deal management
and also has solid knowledge in the industries of agriculture, clean
technology, real estate, fund investment and education sector. Mr.
Ling has worked in the advisory department of an international
accounting firm for a number of years. Mr. Ling is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Chartered
Financial Analyst of CFA Institute.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chan Wai Kit (“Mr. Chan”), aged 35, was appointed as a non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 29 May 2017.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree in Information System and a
Master Degree of Accounting from Curtin University of Technology,
Australia. He was an executive Director, authorised representative
and compliance officer of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited
(stock code: 8148), a company listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) from 13
October 2014 and a deputy chairman with effect from 16 October
2015 to 1 November 2018. Mr. Chan has been appointed as a
committee member of the 9th Committee of Maoming City of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since January
2017. Mr. Chan was an executive Director of Elegance Optical
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 907), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from 31 May 2017 to 17
April 2018. He was an independent non-executive director of Share
Economy Group Limited (stock code: 1178) from 13 December
2017 to 18 October 2018 and Ding He Mining Holdings Limited
(stock code: 705), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange from 23 January 2018 to 11 July 2018.

Mr. Chan has been appointed as executive Director of Asia
Television Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) since 27 November
2018.

Mr. Chan was the chairman, executive director, authorised
representative and compliance officer of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8201), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange from June 2015 to July 2016. He was
also an executive director of China Taifeng Beddings Holdings
Limited (stock code: 873), a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange from July 2016 to August 2016. He was also
an executive director of Green Energy Group Limited (stock code:
979), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
from February 2017 to July 2017. Mr. Chan has extensive
experience in information technology, accounting, finance,
corporate governance, strategic planning, as well as merger and
acquisition.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP (“Ms. Choy”), aged 68, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 12
May 2015. Ms. Choy is also the Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee, members of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. Ms. Choy obtained her Bachelor of Science and
Master of Philosophy degrees from the University of Hong Kong
in 1974 and 1980 respectively. Ms. Choy was the founding
managing director of SHK International Services Limited (which
was subsequently acquired by Ms. Choy and changed its name
to Oriental-Western Promotions Limited). Ms. Choy holds a
wide variety of political, social and academic positions, such
as a deputy of the National People’s Congress and a director
of Fujian Middle School. Ms. Choy was a member of the Fujian
Provincial Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a member of the Legislative Council in Hong Kong
from 1998 to 2008. Ms. Choy was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Loudong General Nice Resources (China)
Holdings Limited (stock code: 988) since June 2009. Ms. Choy was
an independent non-executive director of Ping Shan Tea Group
Limited (stock code: 364) from August 2002 to October 2017.

Ms. Choy has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (stock code: 2360) since
10 January 2019.

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa (“Ms. Lam”), aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 2
September 2013. She is also the Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee, members of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee. Ms. Lam holds Type 1 (Dealing in securities), Type
2 (Dealing in futures contracts), Type 6 (Advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (Asset management) regulated activities
license issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. Ms.
Lam has over 10 years of experience in the securities industry
and more than 15 years of experience in the treasury function in
several major banks. Ms. Lam was an executive director of Value
Convergence Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 821) from 23 February
2011 to 28 December 2012. From 1 March 2015 to 14 February
2017, Ms. Lam was a director of VC Asset Management Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Value Convergence Holdings Limited.
Ms. Lam was also an associate director of Excalibur Hong Kong
and held senior positions at Glory Sky Global Markets Limited and
Kingston Securities Limited. She was also the head of the treasury
department of KBC Bank N.V.
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Mr. Leung Man Chun (“Mr. Leung”), aged 31, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of the Company on 1 March
2016. Mr. Leung is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee,
members of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He has been engaging in financial services sector
for over 6 years, along with ample experience in an international
accounting firm and an international bank. He currently serves as
a corporate finance principal for a professional firm. He obtained
a Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences from Hong Kong Baptist
University in 2009. Mr. Leung is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has joined the Council
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 2018.
Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148) whose
shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange since 23
February 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Shuk Man Lora (“Ms. Chan”), aged 49, was appointed
as the company secretary and an authorised representative of the
Company with effect from 22 January 2018. Ms. Chan joined the
Company in March 2016. She obtained a bachelor’s degree of
Business Administration in Accounting (Hon.) from the Coventry
University and a MBA (Banking) from the University of Stirling in the
United Kingdom and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Certified
Tax Adviser (Hong Kong). She has over 25 years of experience in
auditing, accounting, banking and financial management.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFHE

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements. Further discussion and analysis
of these activities as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 12 to 28
of this Annual Report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’
Report. Details of the segment information of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 96 to 97.

The states of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the statement of financial position on pages
98 to 99 and in Note 39 on pages 199 to 200 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

The cash flows of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on pages 101 to 102.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend any payment of dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the Year (2017: Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements and the section headed “Capital Structure” of this
Annual Report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of placing of new shares under general mandate and
issue of convertible bonds are set out in Notes 27 and 30 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively, and in the
sections headed “Capital Structure” and of this Annual Report. This
discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves during the Year are set out in
Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years as
extracted from the published audited financial statements is set out
on page 208 of this Annual Report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
investment properties and intangible assets of the Group during
the Year are set out in Notes 14, 15 and 16 respectively to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company has no distributable reserve
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group has no charitable donations (2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan

Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (Resigned on 15 January 2018)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Wai Kit

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa

Mr. Leung Man Chun
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Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company (other than those listed above) during
the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this report
included:

Ms. Chan Shuk Man Lora, Mr. San Tung, Mr. Salih Yekta Kisa, Mr.
Hung Yu Pang and Mr. Wu Wenbei.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. Lam Yuk
Ying Elsa and Mr. Leung Man Chun are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Company’s forthcoming annual
general meeting. Each of the Executive Directors may receive a
discretionary bonus, the amount of which will be determined by the
Board of Directors as its absolute discretion having regard to the
operation results of the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have not entered into
any service agreement with the Company and are not appointed
for a specific term, but all are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

None of the Directors is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting (“AGM”) has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment other than statutory compensation.

MEARES
BE-_Z-/\F+ZA=+-BHLFEREE
AHEHHE  AREMBLARNESSEEE
E(REMEINHELHIIMNT -

BN E 2+ « BESEAL « Salih Yekta Kisask
£ RFHERER RIMEE o

EERBEN

RIFEASERMAR  MERLZTAMRELE
ARARAEERRBFASHESRILER
B FPTESRANBWRIEA - BES
R ESE2RNBRAD A ZKEREN
EE -

B IFHITES W MEARD T ER]EARB
& TEEEMD  EREREHARBAS
ERMAMNARBAZRRBFAS LHESR
WEREMF -

AoFEEERNERERRBF S ([RRE
FRE ) LEBEFE2EST MR THAAK
RAR—FREERLECEEHERD) 2R
B8R -

Annual Report 2018 Z=Z—\FE&# 35



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company, any of its holding companies or subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected in accordance with the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The material related party transactions of the Group are disclosed
in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, same as disclosed elsewhere in this
report, as far as the Directors are aware of, none of the Directors
or the management shareholders of the Company or any of its
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has
any interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ AND
OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the provisions of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
every Director or other officer of the Company shall be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all loss and liabilities
which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that
such Article shall only have effect in so far as its provisions are not
avoided by the Companies Ordinance. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and officers of the Company during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from the share option scheme referred as below, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2018 was any of the Company
or any associated corporation a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children
under the age 18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or
debentures of, the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITION IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had any interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFQO”)) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standards of dealings
by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The share option scheme adopted on 9 May 2011 (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”) by the Shareholders was terminated and
a new share option scheme was adopted on 1 February 2016 (the
“2016 Share Option Scheme”) by the Shareholders. The purpose
of the 2016 Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant Share Options to the Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the long term
development of the Group and to provide the Group with a more
flexible means to reward, remunerate, compensate, attract, retain
and/or provide benefits to the Eligible Participants. The 2016 Share
Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years commencing
from 1 February 2016 and will remain in force until 31 January
2026.

Eligible Participant under the 2016 Share Option Scheme
includes any full-time or part-time employees, consultants or
potential employees, executives or officers (including executive,
non-executive and independent non-executive Directors) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any suppliers, customers,
consultants, agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or has contributed to the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries.
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The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant
which must be a business day; and

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 14 days
from the date of grant. Unless otherwise determined by the Board
in the relevant offer letter to a grantee, there is no minimum period
for which any option must be held before it can be exercised and
no performance target which needs to be achieved by a grantee
before the options can be exercised. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the 2016 Share Option Scheme at any
time during a period as the Board may determine which shall not
exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to the provisions of
early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the exercise
of options that may be granted under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme are 180,267,735 shares, being 10% of the shares in issue
at the date of the annual general meeting held by the Company
on 22 June 2018 under the scheme mandate limited approved by
shareholders of the Company. The total number of shares available
for issue under the 2016 Share Option Scheme represent 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue as at the date of this report.

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, the total number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be granted
under the 2016 Share Option Scheme must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of adoption of the
2016 Share Option Scheme. The Board shall not grant any options
which would result in the maximum aggregate number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted but yet to be exercised under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company exceeding, in aggregate, 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the 2016 Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company to each Eligible
Participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares in issue (the “Individual Limit"). Any further grant of options
to an Eligible Participant which would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be
granted to such Eligible Participant (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such further grant exceeding the Individual Limit shall
be subject to approval of the Shareholders in general meeting with
such Eligible Participant and his close associates (or his associates
if such Eligible Participant is a connected person) abstaining from
voting.

Any grant of options to a connected person (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) must be approved by all Independent Non-
executive Directors (excluding any Independent Non-executive
Director who is the proposed grantee). Where options are proposed
to be granted to a connected person who is also a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company
or an Independent Non-executive Director or any of their respective
associates, and the proposed grant of options, when aggregated
the options already granted to such connected person in the past
12 months period, would entitle that person to receive more than
0.1% of the total issued shares of the Company for the time being
and the value of which is in excess of HK$5,000,000, then the
proposed grant must be subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the general meeting. Apart from the connected person involved,
all other connected persons of the Company must abstain from
voting in such general meeting (except where any connected
person intends to vote against the proposed grant).

There is no outstanding share option under the 2016 Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018. As at the
date of this report, no options have been granted under the 2016
Share Option Scheme since its adoption.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS OF INTEREST IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, other than the interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
disclosed above, person or corporation who had interests in the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO or, who was, directly or Indirectly, interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other members
of the Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests
or short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

ETERRRIRGD 2 EH

REZZB-NF+ZA=1t—0  BREXFRKE
EEYARARSTHAEZRBR AR
RIEH 5 R EIRPIEXVERE 2R 370 80 2 R X
BAARNAED  NEESBEEEHNEER
AEMERATRAEEEMEMKEATR
RAG TR AR R ANEE5%R A s
ZEMALTRAET  RKE 2 EBFAAES
RAEDBRERZ KM EIRGIFEIB6HREATE
BEvETMzEMEMEZRROT :

Number of Shares held

FrsRHEE
Approximate
percentage of
Personal Corporate total issued
Name of substantial shareholders Interest Interest Total ordinary Shares
HE BT
HERARE
FTERRER EPN NCIL Ast BYBEI
Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung 486,750,000 — 486,750,000 27.00%
TR L
Mr. Boyraci Osman 220,076,000 — 220,076,000 12.21%
Boyraci Osmanst4E
Mr. Lau Wang Chi Barry — 180,707,000 180,707,000 10.02%
B RE k% (Note1) (1)
Mr. Lau Yu 1,266,000 164,653,000 165,919,000 9.20%
T L (Note2) (ftz£2)
Notes:

1. 180,707,000 shares are owned by Surplus Gain Global Limited which is

100% owned by Mr. Lau Wang Chi Barry. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau
Wang Chi Barry is deemed to have interest of the Shares held by Surplus
Gain Global Limited.

164,653,000 shares are owned by Noble Ace Investments Limited (“Noble
Ace”) which is 100% owned by Mr. Lau Yu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Lau
Yu is deemed to have interest of the Shares held by Noble Ace.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2018, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any party who
had an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Pat XV
of the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly Interested in 5% or more
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company, or
substantial shareholders as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company had maintained the public float as
required under the GEM Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial
statements respectively.

The Remuneration Committee was set up on 8 October 2007 for
reviewing the remuneration policies and other remuneration related
matters of the Directors and senior management of the Company
and making recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Schemes as incentive
to Directors and eligible employees, details of the Share Option
Schemes are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” in this
report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively
during the Year is as follows:

The largest customer

BRAEF

Five largest customers in aggregate
AEREF 2B

The largest supplier

RAHER

Five largest supplier in aggregate

FR R 2B

RREDARERE

REANBDARFRAMAELARERNREE
EA - RABEHEFGEM LR BFTHRE

ZARFRE -

FrM R

EERAEETERSFALTZHMEFED R
BRI MR L8R ©

FHESECR-SStE+ANART U
BHNESRANDSREERE 2 FMRERE
HEMAENEE  TRRAERERHESS
RBEEEE .

AATRCHEMNBRETE  ERESRAER
BECRE  BREFE HBEANEARE
[REARFERT 8 -8
IREFRHER

REE AEFEFEFRHEREGEAREEE
ERRRBEZERFRSINT ¢

Percentage of
the Group’s total

EREEzEHED
Sales Purchases
HERH HIBzE
54%
94%
39%
83%
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At no time during the Year have the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the
Company) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on
pages 44 to 57 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.
During the Year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The details of the non-adjusting post balance sheet events are set
out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Choy So Yuk,
BBS, JP., Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa and Mr. Leung Man Chun. During
the year, Mr. Leung Man Chun was the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and applies his professional qualifications in accounting
and financial expertise in directing the Audit Committee. The
unaudited quarterly and interim results together with the audited
annual results of the Company in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

A resolution for the re-appointment of Elite Partners CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board
Hung Tat Chi Alan

Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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IN N 2N
1 #% /nA #E %
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to achieving high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of all shareholders and to
enhance corporate value and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
complied with most of the code provisions of the CG Code, save
for deviations from code provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1 which are
explained below.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer of the Company should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer should be clearly established and set out in writing.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there was no chairman
(the “Chairman”) and there was no chief executive officer of the
Company (the “CEQ”). The Board will keep reviewing the current
structure of the Board from time to time and should a candidate with
suitable knowledge, skill and experience be identified, the Company
will make appointment to fill the post of the Chairman and the CEO
as appropriate and will make further announcement in due course.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

According to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors
are required to retire from office at each annual general meeting,
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once in every three years.

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term of service. None of
the independent non-executive Director has entered into a service
contract or an appointment letter with the Company for a specific
term of service but their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and offer themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting at least once for every three years in accordance with the
Articles of Association. The Company believes such practice meets
the same objective and no less exacting than those prescribed
under code provision A.4.1.
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Board Composition and Board Practices

As at 31 December 2018, the Board comprised 6 Directors
including 2 executive Directors (the “Executive Directors”), Mr.
Hung Tat Chi Alan and Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason; an non-executive
Director (the “Non-executive Director”), Mr. Chan Wai Kit; and
three independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent Non-
executive Directors”), namely, Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam
Yuk Ying Elsa and Mr. Leung Man Chun. There is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship amongst the
Directors.

The Board schedules four meetings a year at approximately
quarterly intervals and will meet as necessary. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Board held 4 regular meetings. The
Directors can attend meetings in persons or through other means
of electronic communication in accordance with the Articles of
Association.

In addition, the Company has maintained a procedure for the
Directors to seek independent professional advice, in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense in discharging their
duties to the Company. Moreover, the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) prepares minutes and keeps
records of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all Board
meetings. The secretary of the meetings of the Company keeps the
minutes, which are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company,
based on such confirmation, considers Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP,
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa and Mr. Leung Man Chun are independent.
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Role and Functions of the Board

The Board and the management team committed to maintain high
standards of corporate governance. The Board is responsible
for approving and monitoring business plans, evaluating the
performance of the Group and overseeing the management. The
Board also focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates its authority and responsibility for
implementing day-to-day operations and management of the Group
to executive Directors and senior management, and certain specific
responsibilities to the committees of the Company (the “Board
Committees”). The Board reserves certain key matters for its
approval including the Group’s long-term strategy, internal control,
annual, interim and quarterly financial results and shareholder
communications, etc. Decisions of the Board are communicated to
the management through executive Directors who have attended all
Board meetings.

When the Board delegates certain aspects of its management
functions to the management, it has given clear directions as
to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances. The final decision still rests with the Board unless
otherwise provided for in the terms of reference of relevant
committees.
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Board of Directors

The primary role of the Board is to protect and enhance interest
of the Company and shareholders as a whole. The Board is
responsible for setting overall strategy for the Group and monitoring
the performance of the management.

The Board members during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan

Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason

Mr. Chan Ming Kei (Resigned on 15 January 2018)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Wai Kit

Independent non-executive Directors
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa

Mr. Leung Man Chun

26 Board meetings were held during the year 2018 and the

attendance of Directors at the Board meetings for the year ended
31 December 2018 is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

EEnA

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan HER L
Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason MERAEE
Mr. Chan Ming Kei PREGE 4

(Resigned on 15 January 2018)

Non-executive Director
FHTES
Mr. Chan Wai Kit PRIZHEESE 4

Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MEELZ L
Mr. Leung Man Chun RUBEE

BEXLT  AEHEE A FHL

BEsg
EEECIEAGRRERRESADARRR
cEENGE EFTAEHEAEEERER
B WEEEEERR -

BE_Z-\F+-A=t-HULEFEREZE

AERAPEETSHENT :
HITEE

HERSE

MERIEE
MEELEE(R=_E—-N\F—-A+HBEBE)
HHITEE

FR{EEE A

BUHHITEE

BERLLT > wEHES  AFHL
MERELZL

PUBEE

REZB-NFRHABT0RESEEE  MB
E_R-)\FF+-A=F+-ALFE EFZ
EEEERLFELBEINT

Attendance of
meeting held

FEAEE
i

100%
100%
100%

(R=FB—NF—F+7HBFE)

96%

92%
96%
96%
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General Meeting

During the Year under review, an annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”) was held on 22 June 2018 was held with
details of the Directors’ attendance set out below:

Date of the meeting held

#2TaRzAS

Name of Directors
EEpE
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan
Mr. Ling Ko Yin Jason
Mr. Chan Ming Kei
(Resigned on 15 January 2018)

HEELE
MERTE
BREREL L

Non-executive Director
FHITES

Mr. Chan Wai Kit BRELEEE
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFBITES

Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa

Mr. Leung Man Chun

MERLE
RUBKRE
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Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development
All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
should keep abreast of their collective responsibilities as Directors
and of the business and activities of the Group. Each newly
appointed Director would receive a comprehensive induction
package covering business operations, policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. The Group also
provides briefings and other trainings to develop and refresh the
Directors’ knowledge and skills, and updates all Directors on the
latest developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and to
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

All Directors have provided the Company their training records
for the year ended 31 December 2018. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Directors participated in the continuous
professional developments in relation to regulatory update, the
duties and/or responsibility of the Directors and the business of the
Group.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee of the Company
(the “Audit Committee”) with written terms of reference based upon
the guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
are to review and supervise the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices, financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems. On 9 November 2015, the Board adopted
a set of the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
which has brought in line with the changes on the CG Code in
relating to the internal controls by introducing the concept of the
risk management with effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. The revised terms of reference setting
out the Audit Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s website.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
has performed its duties, reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and reviewed the re-appointment of
the external auditors. The unaudited quarterly and interim together
with the audited annual results of the Company in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2018 have also been reviewed by the
Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa and Mr. Leung
Man Chun. Mr. Leung Man Chun was the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and applied his professional qualifications in accounting
and financial expertise in directing the Audit Committee.
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Mr. Leung Man Chun has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee with effect from 1 January 2018.
4 meetings were held by the Audit Committee and the attendance of

the members of the Audit Committee at Audit Committee meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out as follows:

Name of Audit Committee Members

ERZEEREHS

Mr. Leung Man Chun (Chairman) PR TE(EE)
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP BEREUL ) WL
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MERLZL
Remuneration Committee
The Company has established a remuneration committee of the

Company (the “Remuneration Committee”) on 8 October 2007
with terms of reference no less exacting terms than the CG Code.
The principle of the Remuneration Committee is to formulate and
review the remuneration policies and other remuneration related
matters of the Directors and senior management of the Company
and to make recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary.
The terms of reference setting out the Remuneration Committee’s
authority, duties and responsibilities are available on both the GEM
website and the Company’s website. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Remuneration Committee has discussed and
reviewed the remuneration policies of the Company, reviewed and
made recommendations with respect to the remuneration of Board
members for approval by the Board and made recommendations
with respect to the remuneration of the newly appointed Directors
during the year for approval by the Board. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the operation model where it performs
an advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final
authority to approve the remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management.
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As at 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Choy So
Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa and Mr. Leung Man Chun.
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP is the Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee.

2 meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee and the
attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee at
the Remuneration Committee meetings for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out as follows:

Name of Remuneration
Committee Members

FHEEEREHRS

Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP (Chairperson)
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa
Mr. Leung Man Chun

MERLE
RUBRE

Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior Management
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance, experience, responsibility,
workload and time devoted to the Company and comparable market
statistics, for Board approval. Each of the Executive Directors is
entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed annually. In addition,
each of the Executive Directors may receive a discretionary bonus
as the Remuneration Committee may recommend. Such amount
has to be approved by the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee”) on 29 March 2012 with
terms of reference no less exacting terms than the CG Code. The
principle of the Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, determining the re-
election of the Directors, and identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. On 2 September 2013,
the Board adopted a set of the revised terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee, which has brought in line with the new
GEM Listing Rules relating to Board Diversity with effective from
1 September 2013. The revised terms of reference setting out the
Nomination Committee’s authority, duties and responsibilities are
available on both the GEM website and the Company’s website.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the
skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, including the
independence status in the case of an independent non-executive
Director, the Board Diversity Policy, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee have reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, the retirement and re-election of the Directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and considered the
appointments of new Directors. All of the newly appointed Directors
were appointed by going through the selection process stated as
above.

As at 31 December 2018, the Nomination Committee comprised of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Choy So
Yuk, BBS, JP, Ms. Lam Yuk Ying Elsa and Mr. Leung Man Chun.
Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa is the Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee.

1 meeting was held by the Nomination Committee and the
attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee at the
Nomination Committee meetings for the year ended 31 December
2018 is set out as follows:

Name of Nomination
Committee Members

REZEERENS

Ms. Lam Yuk Ying, Elsa (Chairperson) MERLZ T (FE)
Ms. Choy So Yuk, BBS, JP

Mr. Leung Man Chun RUBEE
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”)
setting out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Policy from time to time
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Corporate Governance Function

All members of the Board are responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions. The terms of reference of
corporate governance functions was adopted by the Board at the
Board meeting held on 29 March 2012 and is in compliance with
paragraph D3.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the
GEM Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Board has reviewed the policy of the corporate governance and the
corporate governance report of the Company.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities Transactions by Directors
The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard as set out in the Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Directors have confirmed, following specific inquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the required standard
and code of conduct during the year under review.
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Auditors’ Remuneration

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit functions
performed by the external auditors, including whether such non-
audit functions could lead to any potential material adverse effect
on the Company. During the year under review, the remuneration
paid or payable to Elite Partners CPA Limited, the auditor of the
Company, is set out below:

BB EN I &
BERZESREERIIMNEREM 2 EE  UR
EF B IMNERBENET ZEFEFZITHE(T
MZEFEL TFSDEARD ABRAEMEL
ERATHEE) - REEFER - SASHEN
RABZBEMFATEREETMEBAAERLE
ZHEEIIMT

Services rendered Rz R Fee paid/payable
Bt ENER

HK$°000

FExT

Audit B 695,000
Non-audit services IEEZARTE =
695,000

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The following statement sets out the responsibilities for the
Directors in relation to the quarterly, interim and annual financial
statements.

Annual Report and Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements and announcements
to shareholders, the Directors aim to present a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s position and prospects.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks, it is willing to take in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the
Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. The internal control
system includes safeguard of the interest of shareholders and
the Group’s assets. It has been an important duty of the Board to
conduct a review of internal control to ensure the effectiveness
and adequacy of the system of the Group annually or at any time
necessary. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions.
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The Group has engaged Elite Partners CPA Limited as an
independent internal control review advisor to conduct the annual
review on the effectiveness of the internal control system. Review
of the Group’s internal controls covering major operational, financial
and compliance controls, as well as risk management functions of
different systems has been performed on a systematic rotational
basis on the risk assessments of the operations and controls. No
major issues on the internal control system have been identified
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The statement of external auditors of the Company, Elite Partners
CPA Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

Investor Relations and Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for shareholders
of the Company to raise comments and exchanging views with the
Board; (iii) key information of the Group available on the website
of the Company; (iv) the Company’s share registrars in Hong Kong
serving the shareholders in respect of all share registration matters;
and (v) corporate information and the articles of association of the
Company are made available on the Company’s website.

A shareholder’'s communication policy was adopted by the Board
on 29 March 2012 aiming at providing the Shareholders and
potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced and
understandable information of the Company.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to providing clear, detailed, timely manner and on
a regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circular, notices, and other announcements.
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The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential
investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders
and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent
by post to the Company’s registered office at 16th Floor, Henan
Building, Nos. 90 & 92 Jaffe Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ Rights

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the Articles of Association, an EGM can be
convened by a written request signed by Shareholders, stating the
objects of the meeting, and deposited at the Company’s registered
office at 16th Floor, Henan Building, Nos. 90 & 92 Jaffe Road, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong.

Procedures for putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an
AGM or EGM include a written notice of those proposals being
submitted by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary
at the Company’s registered office at 16th Floor, Henan Building,
Nos. 90 & 92 Jaffe Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The detailed
procedures vary according to whether the proposal constitutes
an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the
proposal relates to the election of a person other than a Director
of the Company as a director. The procedures for shareholders to
convene and put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM (including
election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a
director) are available on the Company’s website or on request to
the Company Secretary.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary at the
Company’s registered office at 16th Floor, Henan Building, Nos.
90 & 92 Jaffe Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong or send email to
info@evershinegroup.com.hk.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the AGM
or EGM.
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Company Secretary

On 15 January 2018, Mr. Chan Ming Kei resigned as the Company
Secretary and Ms. Chan Shuk Man Lora (“Ms. Chan”) has been
appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect
from 22 January 2018.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out the corporate activities,
which has been complied with the CG Code. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Looking forward

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take
the necessary actions to ensure the compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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BIE  -tERELIEE

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group believes sustainability is a key to achieve continuous
success, and we have developed sustainability strategy with aims
to create sustainable values to stakeholders, and to continue lower
the Group’s impact on the environment.

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”)
Governance Structure

The Group conducts a top-down management approach in regards
to ESG issues. The Board of Directors (the “Board”) oversees and
sets out ESG strategies for the Group, while taking an ultimate
responsibility for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s ESG
policies. Designated staff were assigned to enforce and supervise
the implementation of the relevant ESG policies. The Group’s
sustainability policies will be adjusted to satisfy the ever-changing
needs of stakeholders.

As of year-end, the Group has set up an ESG working taskforce (the
“Taskforce”) composed of staff from relevant departments to assist
in ESG data collection and compilation of the ESG report. The
Taskforce would periodically report to the Board, assist in assessing,
identifying, and managing the Group’s ESG risk. It also reviews
the Group’s ESG performance, including environmental, labour
practices and other ESG aspects.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This Report generally covers the Group’s key business and
operational activities in Hong Kong, the Mainland China and Turkey,
unless specified otherwise. In particular, the General Disclosure
and the compliance matters of Subject Area A and Subject Area B
cover the Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong, the Mainland China
and Turkey. The ESG key performance indicator (“KPI”) data
is gathered and included under the Group’s business activities
driven by Hong Kong offices, including property development
and trading segment. They represent the Group’s major source
of revenue. The Group will extend the scope of disclosures when
and where applicable. The KPIs are shown in the report as well as
supplemented by explanatory notes to establish benchmarks.
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REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report was prepared in compliance with all applicable
provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) contained in
Appendix 20 to the rules governing the Listing Securities on GEM
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

For the Group’s corporate governance practices, please refer to p.44
to p.57 for the section “Corporate Governance Report” contained in
the Group’s 2018 Annual Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2018 (the “Reporting Period”).

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

We value our stakeholders and their feedback in regards to our
businesses and ESG aspects. With the goal to strengthen the
sustainability approach and performance of the Group, we put effort
in maintaining a close communication with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to government and regulatory authorities,
shareholders, employees, customers, suppliers, and the general
public.

We take stakeholders’ expectations into consideration in formulating
our businesses and ESG strategies by utilising diversified
engagement methods and communication channels, shown as
below.

HEER

RRE - HEREABREBREBHMEIZ
BRDFGEMESZ EmRRIM R+ 21]RE -
HERERBEESI([RE HEREAREE

1Sl ) FES 2 FREE MR MRR

BETEBzEERER  B2ELREEC
E-NFFERR[CEERRE | —HFMEE
578

HEHE

ARG - tERERREMAREEREE—
E-NF+ZA=+-HLEFE(HREHH[ )
FrEfT  HERRERIRZERE - £ RER)
B BRERIERE o

FhhEzSE

BRERSOEUREHRMEBRIRE &
SRERFTHEZER - BMBAEE 2 HE
BRRAIAREN BB LIREZRHHERS
ZYER  BEETRRBSREERM - R
REE EF HEBRAR -

EHEXEBRIRR - TS REARKE - HM
MANTZRBALEREBREZREN
HZHE -
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Stakeholders

K0E

Expectations and concerns

HEREE

Communication channels

Government and regulatory
authorities

B K BB BT

* Compliance with laws and
regulations

» Support economic development

o BFEGIRER

. EREKEZRR

Supervision on complying with local
laws and regulations

Routing reports and taxes paid
BB AR ER 2 BITHER
EERERZNHEA

Shareholders

* Return on investments
» Corporate governance
e Business compliance

Regular reports and announcements
Regular general meetings
Official website

IRER - REMER EHERDEH
. EEAR EHRRAE
. EBER DAL
Employees *  Employees’ compensation and Performance reviews
benefits Regular meetings and trainings
e Career development Emails, notice boards, hotline,
* Health and safety working caring activities with management
environment
=1 « EERERER R
 BXRBR EREERE
- BERZEZIFRE B - HRMR - BR - BEEEET
BIEES
Customers » High quality products and services Customer satisfaction survey
» Protect the rights of customers Face-to-face meetings and on-site
visits
Customer service hotline and email
&F - BEEZEMERE BEEmEERAE
- RERFED HHESENEBRG
BFRBHE R ER
Suppliers * Fair and open procurement Open tendering
*  Win-win cooperation Suppliers’ satisfactory assessment
Face-to-face meetings and on-site
visits
Industry seminars
fHtrEm « DTPRBZERE ENEETL:S
- HEAHF HEmREEE
HHHESEREBIRG
ITEMTE
General public * Involvement in communities Media conferences and responses
» Business compliance to enquiries

DNWMAL

e Environmental protection

awareness
. HEZSH
. EBER

- RERESHE

Public welfare activities
Face-to-face interview
IHBE =R K Bl FEIRRS
NaEE)

HSEE

We aim to collaborate with our stakeholders to improve our ESG ~ HKFBNEZFMEESIE  LUFERARE - &

performance and create greater value for the wider community on a

continuous basis.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT EEMFTML

We have considered feedback from relevant stakeholders in  ZHFIREEAREBREEHEIEB2EER
determining the Group’s material ESG aspects to be covered in 35 - HEREQHEE  CEZERBENEZ
this Report. These are shown in the table below, together with the B R o ELAFEUREABEZBE  HERE

aspects of the ESG Guide to which they relate: JRIESIHN T &R ¢
The following table is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues T REAREFHEPLAEEEERE -1
included in this report: LEREECHE .
The ESG Reporting Guide Material ESG aspects of the Group
BIR - ERERREES FEERE  HERERAEEER
A. Environment
RIB
A1.Emissions Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions P. 64
BERA BERERIEN
Waste Management P. 66
BERYEE
A2.Use of Resources Energy Management P. 68
ERERA RERETE
Water Management P. 70
KEREE
A3.The Environment and Green Operation P. 71
Natural Resources
RIBERAARER HeEE
B. Social
He
B1.Employment Recruitment and Promotion P.72
= BEREA
Compensation and Dismissal P.72
N I e
Benefits and Welfares P.72
FBRER
Working Hours and Rest Periods P.72
TR RRER
Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination P.73

it - FPERERRIER
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The ESG Reporting Guide Material ESG aspects of the Group
BIR - HERERREES FEERE  HERERAEEER
B2.Health and Safety Safety Measures P.74
REEZ R Z2 e
Employee Health Management P.74
EERERERE
B3.Development and Training Training and Development P.75
R RIEF b1 D532:95
B4.Labour Standards Prevention of Child Labour and Forced Labour P.76
IR FrlbE T RS T
B5.Supply Chain Management Supply Chain Management P. 77
e EE s EE
B6.Product Responsibility Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights P.79
EmEE HHERE
Customer Privacy Protection P. 80
B FABRIE
Customer Service P. 80
=P R
Advertising and Labelling P. 80
BEERER
B7.Anti-corruption Internal Control P. 81
RES RBRER 1
Protection of Whistle-blower P. 82
REFHMA
B8.Community Investment Community Participation P. 83
HEBIRE HESH

As at the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group confirmed that BE-Z—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE  £&
it has established appropriate and effective management policies BEREREARE - HBRERZEFHEEER
and internal control systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the AN ZERBIRK AZBEIZRAS » WHERFTIK
disclosed contents are in compliance with the requirements of the BABRFESERE  HERERREIECIRE
ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US BERM
We welcome stakeholders to provide their opinions and EMEIENEREEREREZR . BETASE
suggestions. You can provide valuable advices in respect of the  EZinfo@evershinegroup.com.hk * REEIR

ESG report or our performances in sustainable development by 3% » # B REARESIRMETIFERRLIE
email info@evershinegroup.com.hk. ZEMRMEERR -
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RIE

A1l. ey

A1. Emissions

General Disclosure and Key Performance Indicators
(“KPIs”)

The Group is committed to ensuring the long-term
sustainability in the environment and community where
the Group operates. We recognise our responsibilities
towards the potential environmental impacts associated
with our business operations and integrate environmental
consideration into our decision-making processes.

To create an environmentally sustainable business,
we stringently control our emissions and consumption
of resources, adopt waste separation at source as
our waste management principle and comply with all
relevant environmental laws and regulations, such as
“Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic
of China”, “Waste Disposal Ordinance” of Hong Kong and
“Environment Law No. 2872” of Turkey in daily operations.
We also strive to innovate and implement measures
promoting energy consumption, waste reduction and any
other green initiatives. We are committed to educate our
employees in raising their awareness on environmental
protection and complying with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations.

In order to enhance our environmental governance
practices and mitigate the potential environmental impacts
resulted from our operations, we have adopted related
environmental policies and delivered the contents to our
employees. Within our policy framework, we continually
look for different opportunities to pursue environmentally
friendly initiatives, enhance our environmental performance
by reducing energy and use of other resources.

— R FE R BISE A IE IR

REEFNBERECEARERHE
ZRAABERE - AARUHER
LERMETRERNEMACEE
WHRBEZERBANRKIBIE

RAEERRFEZUSEERHE
B BMBRREHERYRERE
# o ERERABREYSEERER
MEBRA > WHABAEEEPETAH
BHBRREMNRER » W (hEA
REMBERBREZL) - BEEYE
EROID) R LB HRIBEE 28725
(Environment Law No. 2872)) * F{f
TENAFFREREESEREZE
RAMEMEEEE BRI DK
AEEURSHRRER  LE<FHE
BIRIGEBIRER ©

DINBRRIRE AT RIS E T 5
TRZREZE  RARAEBERER
X YEESEEEAANET - KA
ERRERATEHS RZEARSRT
RRER  TRBHEREAEME
R SIRRAEAN -
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has not identified
any material non-compliance of environmental laws and
regulations, including but not limited to “Waste Disposal
Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, and “Environmental
Law No. 2871” of Turkey in relation to exhaust gas and
GHG emissions, water and land discharge, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions

Due to our business nature, the Group realizes the
potential environmental impacts generated by the Group
were minimal. However, the Group still focuses on
nurturing and strengthening the employees’ awareness on
environmental protection in their daily work process, and
actively implements the Group’s environmental protection
measures, with an aim to lower GHG emissions.

We have actively adopted the following measures to
mitigate the GHG emissions in our operations:

« Actively adopt measures for environmental protection,
energy conservation, and water saving. Relevant
measures are described in “Energy Management” and
“Water Management” under Section A2;

* Actively adopt paper saving measures in office. The
relevant measures are described in the section “Waste
Management” in this chapter; and

* Replacing highly polluting vehicles with more
environmentally-friendly ones.

Through the implementation of these measures, our staff's
awareness on emission reduction has been raised.

The principal GHG emissions of the Group are generated
from combustion of petrol for transportation (Scope 1),
purchased electricity (Scope 2), and paper disposal (Scope
3).
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itERERERE

The summary of GHG emissions performances: BAERBHEMENME

Total emissions Intensity?

EE

Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)

Indicator? (tCO.e)

@k
(S-S BEE

— Petrol 7.78

HEBREREHR(EE) -7k
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2)

— Electricity 9.40

EEREREHR(EE2) -F
Other Indirect GHG emissions

(Scope 3) — Paper Waste 1.19

HitBEORZREH U (FES)

—BEAR

Total GHG emissions

(Scope 1, Scope 2, and Scope 3) 18.37

R ELL e

wen /m == K

(£EE1 - EEE2K 2E3)

(tCO,elemployee)
2
(BM_—FttHRmERE &)

0.17

0.20

0.03

0.40

Note:

1.

GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, but not limited to, “The Greenhouse
Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standards”
issued by the World Resources Institute and the World Business
Council for Sustainable Development, the latest released
emission factors of China’s regional power grid basis, “How to
prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix Il: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the HKEX, “Global Warming
Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report, 2014
(AR5).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 46 full-time employees
in total. The data is also used for calculating other intensity data.

BEREBHRBBEUA—GtRESER
o WA(BRERR) FHEEAER
HREFRMEARERCEKELR
Z B & (World Business Council for
Sustainable Development)##i 2 CRZE
RERERR  CERERREEE) -
BB zPEEBHERAERET - &
BRIEH 2 MARERE 18R
ERBE? MR REBARERER
ERIES| ] RE =T — WFHEBEBUF
BREZCEMZEESEAHTMHERE
Z[ 2R EEEE (Global Warming
Potential Values) | °

RZZ2-NF+ZA=1t—0 F5KH
HE6E2HIES - ZRBETFARE
HitmE#IE -
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Wastewater Management

The Group does not consume significant volume of
water through daily operation and therefore our business
activities did not generate material portion of discharge
into water. The majority of the water supply and discharge
facilities are provided and managed by property
management company.

Waste Management

Due to the Group’s business nature, we did not generate
significant amount of hazardous waste during the Reporting
Period.

Hazardous waste handling method

Despite the Group did not generate hazardous wastes
during the Reporting Period, the Group has established
guidelines of governing the management and disposal
of hazardous wastes. In case there are any hazardous
wastes produced, the Group must engage a qualified
chemical waste collector to handle such wastes, which is
complied with the relevant environmental regulations and
rules.

Non-hazardous waste handling method

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group
is mainly solid waste. With the aim of minimizing the
environmental impacts from non-hazardous wastes
generated from our business operations, the Group
has implemented measures in waste management and
launched different reduction initiatives.

Specifically, the Group adopted separation method in
terms of domestic waste management. Non-hazardous
wastes were carefully sorted, so that those recyclable
wastes would be reused. The Group also encourages its
staff to bring their own lunch box instead of ordering take-
away food to avoid the generation of food waste and food
packaging waste. In terms of surplus stele, the Group
ensures they are all recycled and reused.
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Non-hazardous waste reduction initiatives

Paper is one of the major non-hazardous wastes generated
by the Group in its office. The Group adopted the following
practices to reduce paper waste at source, so to reduce
the production of non-hazardous waste:

*  Think before print;

» Setduplex printing as the default mode for most
network printers;

«  Print or copy only the pages needed;

* Re-use envelops, folders and carton in office;

*  Use email to reduce fax paper consumption;

* Use double-sided printing and photocopying;

» Separate the single-sided paper and double-sided
paper neatly for better recycling; and

»  Use the back of old single-sided documents for printing
or as draft paper.

Our staff's awareness on waste management has been
raised through the above measures.

The summary of major non-hazardous wastes discharge
performance:
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BEEEYIREEER
HERAEEETHEBRAZTEENETE
BEBEZEY 2 — - NEBRBTE
BRRERRERE - LURD R
W|ERERY)

o FIENAI=&

© BRI BEBITENE2ARER
RERLEIIED

« EIIENHEENFAIFEME ;

. BEREAPRLEESH  XH®RR
AR 5

o FREFH4LURDEERKRH
EE

« EREESIENRELD ;

« By TR EE T ED R AR oR & 8 [ ED
RIARIR - AZZETEW R

- EREREMEHRIXHzEHE
THIENRAEERA

BB LR ETHERYERZ
SHEBMRES -

TEEEBREMHRERHE

Intensity (tonnes/employee)

wRE(WEE)

Category of waste Total discharge (tonnes)
BEEY 58 e ()
Paper 0.25

IR

Solid Waste (without paper) 0.49
EREREY (T EFEAR)

Total non-hazardous waste 0.74
BEERRY)

0.005

0.011

0.016
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A2. Use of Resources

General Disclosure and KPIs

The Group strives to optimise resource usage in business
operations, and continues with initiatives to introduce
resource efficiency and eco-friendly measures to the
Group’s operations. The Group has established relevant
policies and procedures in governing the efficient use of
resources, aiming to achieve higher energy efficiency and
reduce unnecessary use of materials. All offices have
implemented effective energy conservation measures to
reduce emissions and resource consumption.

Energy Management

The Group aims to minimize environmental impacts in
our operations by identifying and adopting appropriate
measures. Energy policies, measures, and practices
have been developed to show our commitment on energy
efficiency. All employees are required to adopt such
measures and practices, including the purchase of energy-
efficient products and services, and assume responsibility
for the Group’s overall energy efficiency.
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Monthly monitoring of the usage of electricity, water
and other materials is implemented. Unexpected high
consumption of electricity will be investigated to find out
the root cause and preventive measures will be taken.
Indeed, the Group has started to replace traditional light
bulbs with electricity-saving light bulbs to ensure energy
is being saved. The Group has also educated employees
about the importance of energy conservation and emission
reductions. In the long run, the Group will enhance its
energy saving management in minimizing the usage of
lighting, air conditioning and electronic appliances and
track its energy consumption regularly in the coming years.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has performed the
following measures relating to improving energy efficiency:

» Place energy saving reminder labels next to switches;

* Clean office equipment (such as refrigerator, air-
conditioner) regularly to maintain high efficiency;

e Turn office lights and other electronic device off
whenever and wherever not necessary;

* Replace traditional lamps with power saving ones; like
LED lights;

* Adjust and switch off the air-conditioners according to
the temperature and situation in the office, and ensure
that the temperature should not be set under 25°C;

* Place posters “Saving Electricity, Turn Off the Light
When Leaving” in prominent places;

e Turn off all lights, computers, copiers and other
electronics in the office at the end of the day;

* Adopt email as the medium of internal and external
communication; and

*  Use electronic facilities with energy saving label.

As a result, the employees’ awareness on energy

conservation has been increased through these energy-
saving measures.
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During the Reporting Period, the energy consumption of
the Group and its intensity were as follows:

Energy consumption

REEA - AEBEZRERERER
FEMT :

Intensity
(kwh/employee)
RE(TEE ES)

Type of energy (kWh)

BEJR 2 B! BERHFE (T RE)
Electricity 11,901.00
Bh

Petrol 27,287.45
7

258.72

593.21

Water Management

Water consumption of the Group is mainly for office
basic cleaning and sanitation. We have educated and
encouraged all employees to develop the habit of water
conservation. We have been strengthening our water-
saving promotion, posting water saving reminders, and
guiding employees to use water reasonably. The following
are some measures we have implemented to improve the
utilization efficiency of water resources:

* Place posters “Saving Water Resource” in prominent
places to encourage water conservation;

«  Fix dripping taps immediately and avoid any leakage
of the water supply system;

»  Strengthen the inspection and maintenance on water
tap, water pipelines and water storage;

«  Carry out regular leakage tests on water tap, washers
and other defects in the water supply system;

*  Use water saving equipment; and

+ Advocate the virtue of preserving water and instilled
the concept of “Water Preservation” in employees;

Our employees’ awareness of water management has
increased through these water management measures.

Due to the business nature, there was no issue in sourcing
water.

Use of Packaging Material

Due to our business nature, the Group neither produces
any final products nor does it have any industrial facilities.
Therefore, it does not use significant amount of packaging
materials during its daily operations.
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A3. The Environment and Natural Resources A3. BERKARER

General Disclosure and KPIs

Although the core business of the Group has remote
impact on the environment and natural resources, we
recognize the responsibility in minimizing the negative
environmental impacts of our business operations so to
achieve sustainable development for generating long-term
values to our stakeholders and community as a whole.

Green Operation

The Group is committed to protecting the environment
by taking effective measures to reduce electricity
consumption. Specifically, the Group has been using office
equipment with Energy Efficiency Label issued by the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department. We also
regularly assess the environmental risks of our business,
and adopt preventive measures as necessary to reduce
the risks and ensure the compliance of relevant laws and
regulations.
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B. SOCIAL B. &g

B1. Employment B1. &%

General Disclosure

Human resources are the foundation in supporting
the development of the Group. The Group treasures
employee’s talent, and recognises it as the most valuable
asset of the Group. Hence, we have formulated the
Employees’ Handbook to fulfil our vision on people-oriented
management and realizing the full potential of employees.
The Employees’ Handbook is formally documented,
covering recruitment, promotion, compensation, benefits
and welfares, working hours and rest periods, diversity and
equal opportunity, etc. We review and update the relevant
company policies regularly in accordance with the latest
laws and regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with employment-related
laws and regulations, including but not limited to the
“Employment Ordinance” of Hong Kong, the “Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, and the “Labour Act of
Turkey No. 4857” that would have a significant impact on
the Group.
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Recruitment and Promotion

To ensure employees and applicants are treated and
evaluated in a fair way, we apply robust and transparent
recruitment processes based on merit selection against
the job criteria, and recruit individuals based on their
past performance, personal attributes, job experiences
and career aspiration. The Group also offers competitive
remuneration and benefits, which are determined by
referencing market benchmarks in order to attract high-
calibre candidates. Remuneration packages include
holidays, granted leave, and medical insurance.

As talent retention is vital to the future business
development of the Group, the Group conducts
probationary and regular evaluations according to the
overall market environment. The Group also offers two
types of promotion path for employees, which are in-
department promotion and cross-department promotion.
Each kinds of promotion also necessitate different
requirements. This ensures employees can be recognized
by the Group appropriately with respect to their effort and
contributions.

Compensation and Dismissal

The Group constantly reviews its compensation packages.
Any termination of employment contract would be based
on reasonable, lawful grounds and internal policies, for
instance the Employees’ Handbook. The Group strictly
prohibits any kind of unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

Benefits and Welfares

As for employee welfare, the Group throws birthday parties
and holds a series of activities, such as dinner party, Mid-
Autumn BBQ, Christmas party for its employees. A number
of social activities are also arranged by volunteers in the
Group on a regular basis. The Group believes that these
events would help its employees to relieve stress, and
served to exemplify the Group’s corporate culture of the
spirit of solidarity and cohesion among its employees.

Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group has formulated policies in determining
the working hours and rest periods for employees in
accordance with local employment laws. Apart from
the basic leaves such as holidays and annual leaves,
employees are also entitled to additional leaves, such
as maternity leave, paternity leave, unpaid leave,
compassionate leave, and granted leave as long as related
documents are provided under the employment law of the
local government.
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B2.

Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, we recognise the value
of a diverse and skilled workforce and are committed to
creating and maintaining an inclusive and collaborative
workplace culture in which all can thrive.

We are dedicated to providing equal opportunity in all
aspects of employment and maintaining workplace that
are free from discrimination, physical or verbal harassment
against any individual on the basis of race, religion, colour,
gender, physical or mental disability, age, place of origin,
marital status, and sexual orientation.

The Group’s Equal Opportunities Policy allows zero
tolerance to any workplace discrimination, harassment
or victimization in accordance to relevant government
legislation, ordinances and regulations. Employees are
encouraged to report any incidents involving discrimination
to the Human Resource Department of the Group. We
strive to ensure that complaints, grievances and concerns,
including whistle blowing, are dealt with promptly and
confidentially.

Health and Safety

General Disclosure

We believe employees are valuable assets of an enterprise
and regard human resources as corporate wealth.
Therefore, we are committed to providing and maintaining
a safe and healthy environment for our employees. The
Group has established a Safety Policy Handbook by
incorporating a range of occupational health and safety
measures to prevent and remediate accidents, detect
potential safety hazards, and to ensure workplace safety.
We review, and if necessary, revise the Safety Policy
Handbook and our health and safety practices at least
annually to ensure continuous improvements of our health
and safety standards.

The Group follows the occupational health and safety
guidelines recommended by Labour Department and
Occupational Safety and Health Council. Employees
who suffer from injury arising out of and in the course of
employment are entitled to compensation in accordance
with the local laws and regulations such as Hong Kong'’s
“Employee Compensation Ordinance”.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with health and safety-
related laws and regulations, including but not limited to
the “Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” of Hong
Kong, the “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, and the “Occupational Health and Safety Law
No. 6331” of Turkey that would have a significant impact
on the Group.

Safety Measures

Employees are required to follow the safety and health
measures set out in the operating manuals, such as the
Employees’ Handbook. Those measures aim to minimize
risks of accidents and enhance the employees’ health and
safety awareness.

Cleaning air-conditioning systems and disinfection
treatment of carpets are performed regularly with an aim
to maintain a clean, tidy, smoke-free, non-toxic, and non-
hazardous working environment. Emergency exits are
unobstructed and unlocked from the inside at all times
during working hours. First aid boxes are also available in
readily accessible locations.

The Group will also organize healthy work bulletin, built
up safety warning signs, and set up safety banners and
slogans, aiming to achieve an accident-free workplace
environment.

Employee Health Management

The Group offers comprehensive health care coverage for
our employees. The Group has also continued to organize
work-life balancing activities for employees, implemented
green projects at our own premises and carried out other
activities to promote healthy living practices. Health and
safety communications are provided to employees to
present the relevant information and raise awareness of
occupational health and safety issues.
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B3. Development and Training

B3. BREK&IEI

General Disclosure

Training and Development

The Group regards our staffs as the most important asset
and resource. We recognise the valuable contribution
our talents made to the continued success of the Group.
We are committed to inspiring our human capital towards
delivering excellence. This is achieved through the
development of training strategy that focuses on creating
values and serving the needs of our customers, our talents
and the society.

Training and Development Policies

To strengthen employees’ work-related skills and improve
operational efficiency, the Group has developed training
policies that offer different trainings and development
opportunities to its staff.

The Group provides regular training courses and
development programmes. Newly joined employees
are provided with comprehensive trainings, which cover
topics such as corporate culture, business processes,
job requirements and specific job knowledge. For the
development of existing employees, profession-oriented
trainings are offered according to the corporate needs.
Details of in-house training programmes will also be
displayed at the bulletin board from time to time for
employees’ information. The Group ensures that all its
employees possess the necessary professional knowledge
for work, while fulfilling the continuous training hour
requirement for annual professional qualifications.

To support the Group’s financial business and meet the
annual regulatory requirements of the Securities and
Futures Commission, each regulated activity and licensed
employees is required to take continuous training courses.
The records of all training courses attended by licensed
employees should be kept for three years, so the Group
can provide relevant records upon request by the regulator
or the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.
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B4. Labour Standards

General Disclosure

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited during the
recruitment process as defined by the laws and regulations.
The Group strictly complies local laws to prohibit any
child and forced labour employment. The Group’s Human
Resource Department is responsible to monitor and ensure
compliance of latest and relevant laws and regulations that
prohibits child labour and forced labour.

To combat against illegal employment on child labour,
underage workers and forced labour, valid identity
documents are collected by the Group’s human resources
staff prior to the confirmation of employment. The Human
Resources Department also ensures identity documents
are carefully checked.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any material non-
compliance with child and forced labour-related laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the “Employment
Ordinance” of Hong Kong, the “Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, and the “Labour Act of Turkey No.
4857” which would have a significant impact on the Group.
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B5. Supply Chain Management B5. tEHEERE

General Disclosure

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital
to maintain and manage a sustainable and reliable supply
chain. The supply chain management should be consistent
with the Group’s sustainability strategies in establishing a
mutual trust and understanding with its business partners.
All suppliers are evaluated carefully and are subjected
to regular monitoring and assessment. The Group
expects the suppliers to operate in compliance with local
environmental laws, ordinances and regulations, so as to
reduce ecological impacts.

Supply Chain Management

The Group sets up a supplier selection panel and
establishes the scoring system to select the appropriate
suppliers. The Group will also conduct on-site investigation
to assess potential suppliers if necessary. The potential
supplier can be qualified as an approved supplier by
obtaining the approval from the panel. The Group
maintains a list of approved suppliers and monitors the
quality of suppliers on a strict and continuous basis through
conducting regular evaluation on a number of factors,
such as the number of complaints filed by customers
and suppliers’ performance in handling complaints. The
Group will also arrange regular visit and communicate with
suppliers regularly to keep update of the latest business
situation of the suppliers. These measures could effectively
facilitate better cooperation and communication between
the Group and suppliers.

To ensure sufficient supply, the Group’s Purchase
Department keeps close contact with suppliers. Besides,
the Group usually has backup suppliers. The Group will
also conduct basic evaluations upon contracts in top
management turnover, production capacity, changes in
manufacturing techniques and raw materials, as well as
violations of the law and discipline of the suppliers.
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Fair and Open Procurement
The Group chooses suppliers according to several
standards, which are:

*  The suppliers must hold legal business license;

* The product quality of the suppliers must be high-
class; and

* The products of suppliers must be environmentally
friendly and pollution-free, which should be healthy
and safe to the employees and customers.

The Purchase Department will also consider other factors
such as raw material quality, service quality, former
records, projects, reputation, and social and environmental
responsibility in choosing the suitable supplier. Suppliers
will be evaluated based on four aspects, which are
regulatory compliance, rights of the employees, health
and safety, and environmental protection. If there are no
serious quality accidents or delivery delay, the supplier will
be recognized as qualified supplier, and will be added to
the supplier list. The Group chooses its supplier from the
supplier list which is renewed every year.

Environmental and Social Responsibility of Suppliers

In view of the increasing environmental concerns in
society, the Group is aware of the importance in managing
environmental and social risks of its supply chain.
The Group has embedded environmental and social
consideration in the procurement process, and chooses
suppliers according to the requirements of the specific
business and customers as well as the environmental and
social risks. The Group will continue to monitor its supply
chain regarding the environmental and social standards.
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B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmEE

General Disclosure

The satisfaction of our customers is the cornerstone of the
sustainable development of the Group. We are convinced
that the success of our clients means the success of the
Group, and have been emphasizing the customer-centric
business philosophy in our operations at all levels of the
Group. Therefore, we strive to optimize and improve the
quality of products and services according to the requests
of the customers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware
of any material non-compliance with any laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the “Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights and
Interests”, and “Protection of Personal Data No. 6689”
of Turkey that have a significant impact on the Group,
concerning advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

Intellectual Property (“IP”) Rights

To protect third party IP rights and comply with relevant
licensing terms when software is used, employees are
strictly prohibited from duplicating, installing or using illegal
software or software in violation of its copyright or license
terms as part of the Group’s information security policy.
The Group will provide licensed software for use by its
employees in performing their duties. Employees are also
required to sign confidentiality agreements on intellectual
property. Any violations of the policy will be subjected to
disciplinary action.
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Customer Privacy Protection

The Group respects the values and rights of the customers’
information assets, and is committed to abide by the related
laws and regulations in terms of consumer data privacy to
ensure customers’ information are protected. Information
collected would only be used for the purposed authorized
by customers in the first place. The Group prohibits the
provision of consumer information to a third party without
authorization from the customers. All collected personal
data is treated confidentially and kept securely, accessible
by designated personnel only. The IT Department has
also set obstruction between office and commercial net
to prevent exportation, copy, and unauthorized data use.
Through internal trainings and confidential agreements
with employees, the Group emphasizes confidentiality
obligations and the legal consequences of any breaches of
obligations.

Customer Service

The Group has long established a set of procedures
to handle customers’ feedback or complaints in a
professional manner. The Group’s business manager visits
the customers regularly to collect customers’ opinions. If
the Group receives a complaint on product or service, a
patient discussion and thorough analysis with suppliers
will be immediately conducted. The Group commits to
respond to any inquiries as soon as possible. The Group
has set up the Customer Service Department to conduct
internal review of complaints, monitor the handling process
of complaints, and record the results. Through internal
and external communication channels, the Group is able
to obtain feedback and advice from customers efficiently,
which enhances and strengthens its service quality, while
enabling the Group to stay competitive in the market.

Advertising and Labeling

The Group closely monitors released marketing materials
and product labeling to prevent inappropriate or
exaggerated advertisement. The Group has established
internal guidelines to ensure the Group is providing
accurate product labeling and marketing materials that
comply with relevant local laws and regulations. If there
were any non-compliance with internal guidelines, the
Group would consult external legal advisor and carry out
corrective action immediately if necessary. In addition, the
internal guidelines will be updated regularly in accordance
with the latest regulations released by the government.
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B7. Anti-corruption B7. RES

General Disclosure

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and
working environment, the Group strictly adheres to the
laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery
as set out by the government of Hong Kong. The Group
values and upholds integrity, honesty and fairness in
how we conduct businesses, therefore formulating the
Anti-corruption Policy, as stipulated in the Employees’
Handbook, to manage fraudulent practices.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not notify any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, including
but not limited to “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” of
Hong Kong, “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, and “Turkish Criminal Code No. 5237”.

Internal Control

As spell out in the Employees’ Handbook, employees
should not offer, solicit or accept anything of material value
to or from their colleagues, customers, suppliers or other
business partners of the Group unless the Group has
given its consent. The Group also provides anti-bribery
and corruption training courses to its employees regularly.
All employees are expected to discharge their duties with
integrity, to act fairly and professionally, and to abstain
from involving in any bribery activities or activities that
might exploit their positions against the Group’s interests.

To avoid conflict of interest, each employee is required to
read and sign the Group’s statement of policy governing
conflicts of interest. The policy of the Group with respect
to conflicts of interest requires all its employees to avoid
any conflict between their personal interest and the interest
of the Group in dealing with suppliers, consumers, and all
other organizations doing, or seeking to do business with
the Group.
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Protection of Whistle-blower

The Group is committed to ensuring that employees
can speak up with confidence when he or she suspects
activities of corruption, hence formulating the Confidential
Whistleblowing Policy. Whistle-blowers have obligation to
report any suspected misconduct and can report verbally
or in writing to the senior management of the Group. The
Group advocates a confidentiality mechanism to protect the
whistle-blowers against unfair dismissal or victimisation,
and takes practical steps to protect the whistle-blowers
without fear of threatens, harassments or any disadvantage
to the whistle-blowers’ employment status.

Specifically, the Group developed and formulated Internal
Whistleblowing Policy to enable employees to report any
suspicious activities including but not limit to criminal
offense, unlawful or fraudulent behaviours in relation to
internal control, accounting and financial matters, acts
which endanger the health and safety of persons, violation
of the Group’s Code of Conduct or rules, unethical
conduct which may jeopardise the Group’s reputation,
and deliberate concealment of above matters to Human
Resources Department, Company Secretary or Audit
Committee. The Group would conduct investigations
on any suspicious or illegal behaviour, and ensure all
relevant information is kept intact and completely recorded.
Breaching of rules will be disciplined by the Group,
including termination of employment, and being brought to
justice should any illicit activities being found.
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B8. Community Investment BS. tE&RE

General Disclosure

The Group is committed to embolden and support the
public by the means of social participation and contribution
as part of its strategic development, and to nurture the
corporate culture and practices of corporate citizen in
the daily work life. We aim to promote the stability of the
society, and support underprivileged on rehabilitation to
improve the quality of life. We also focus to inspire our
employees towards social welfare concerns. We would
embrace the human capital into the social management
strategies to sustain our corporate social responsibility as a
part of the strategic development of the Group.

Community Participation

We participate in community activities, for example
donations, volunteering services, and sponsorships to help
the needy in the society. To have a better understanding
of the needs in the society and strengthen the connections
with local communities, we regularly communicate with
local charities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has participated
the Caring Company Scheme launched by the Hong
Kong Council of Social Service (HKCSS) to promote good
corporate citizenship. The Group has participated in a
volunteer activity organized by Sheung Kung Hui Holy
Carpenter Church Community Center. The activity aims to
serve the underprivileged families in Kowloon City District
by providing a platform for neighbourhoods to donate items
such as furniture, stationery, toys and books for those who
are in need. The activity encourages and increases self-
help and mutual-help capabilities, strengthens community
support networks for self-sustaining operation, and
increases individual’s capacity to community contribution.

The Company'’s staff has designed and hosted a game
booth for parents and participants in the activity. Besides,
the Group has donated HK$5,000 for community event
operating fund. Beneficiaries including but not limited to
low-income families in Kowloon City District.
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs

TEGR - FH

Description

EBBESXZMERARRE HERE
AREESIRBRRS

Section/Declaration

—REERBRENER

Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : BB

General Disclosure

— I E

KPI A1.1 (“‘comply or explain”)

BREREEAM AT ETRER])
KPI A1.2 (“‘comply or explain®)

RRERIEEA1.2([ TEFRifRE )
KPI A1.3 (“‘comply or explain”)

RRERIEEA ([T ETRER])
KPI A1.4 (“‘comply or explain”)

HRENEFAM AT TETRERE )
KPI A1.5 (“‘comply or explain”)

BRERIERA1S( T ETRER )
KPI A1.6 (“‘comply or explain”)

ARENERA16(( TETHER))
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Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to Exhaust

Gas and GHG emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BFRERRRERBHR - AR LB
5 BEREEREVNELSN
(@) BEX &
(b) BFHBTABERFZENEREZER
BOINER
The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.
B E R AR BB ©
GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.
RERBAHME (MM E)REE
Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.

FrELBERZENRE (UM E) REE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FELBEEENEE UHHE)REE
Description of measures to mitigate
emissions and results achieved.
HAREHE N NI R TSR
Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.
WREBEEREERENNS L  BIEE
EENERRTERR °

KIBEBEZERER AT

Emissions

23567

Emissions

295,67

Emissions — GHG Emissions

B —REREHEMN
Emissions — Waste Management
Not applicable — Explained
By - BERYER
TEA-CRE

Emissions — Waste Management

B - BEEMER
Emissions — GHG Emissions

BB - RERBHR

Emissions — Waste Management

B - ERMEE
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPlIs
TEHE - EH-
—REERERENER

Description

P

Section/Declaration

BB

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EHEA2 : EFREH

General Disclosure

—MRIKE

KPI A2.1 (“‘comply or explain”)
RRERIEEA21 ([ TEFRiER )
KPI A2.2 (‘comply or explain®)
BRENIEEA2.2([ FETRMFE )
KPI A2.3 (‘comply or explain”)
RRERIEEA2.3([ TEFRiMER )
KPI A2.4 (‘comply or explain”)
RRERIEEA2.4([ TEFRRE ])

KPI A2.5 (“‘comply or explain”)

BERARIEEA25 ([ TETREE)

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BHERER(BHEER - KREMEMR)
YR ©

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type in total and intensity.
REREPNEER SRBEEREEER
Water consumption in total and intensity.
BIREREBE °

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

s RERMRTEIRAEHRE o
Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
HASKREVERKR LA IR - UKREE
FRAK BT IR FTGRR

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and with reference to
per unit produced.
HRmAAREMRNAE (LR RE
EEENLE -

Use of Resources

ERER

Use of Resources — Energy Management
ERER-RERE

Use of Resources — Water Management
EREA-KERER

Use of Resources — Energy Management
ERER-RERE

Use of Resources — Water Management
ERER - kERER

Not applicable — Explained

i - T e
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH-
—REEREREVER it

Description

Section/Declaration

BB

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 : RIERAAER
General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment and
natural resources.
HEEATABRERAARERENEATE
MR ©

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.
HAERERHIRERAREFNEATE
REGDEEBRAZEMNTE

— R

KPI A3.1 (“‘comply or explain”)

BN RASA ([T ETHEE)

Aspect B1: Employment

EBEB1 : &R

General Disclosure Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

BN RE  BEREA - TERE

B FERE 2t RBRUREAM

FARBAK :

(@) BEX &

(b) BFHBTABE
BROIESR -

—REE

SENEREER
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The Environment and
Natural Resources

RIERARER
The Environment and
Natural Resources — Environmental

Activities

BRERARER - RIRES

Employment
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration

FRER BH -
—REERBERENER P BB

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
fEEB2 : RRERZE
General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.
—REE BFRRUZ2TIHFRERABESRABR REEZ2
MREM
(@) B &
(b) BFHBTABEATENHEEER
BRBINER o
Aspect B3: Development and Training
fEEB3 : #E R
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ Development and Training
knowledge and skills for discharging duties
at work. Description of training activities.
—RIKE ERRAEEETIERENIEMREEYN BRRE
BR o futsE 3RS -
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
fEEB4 : 2 T X8
General Disclosure Information on: Labour Standards
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

—PRIRE BRERFIEE T SRREI%S TH ¢ BT XR|
(@) B3R ; &
(b) BFHBTABEAFZENMEEEER
BHIHER
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs
TEHE - EH-
—RiEERERENIEE

Description

i

Section/Declaration

BB

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EEBS : ftEEERE
General Disclosure

=L
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

R

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES
General Disclosure

— R

Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : HERE
General Disclosure

— R

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.
EEERENREREESRARBCR

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.

BEMRHERNBRBNRREEZS -

EE  RRRILBSEURBHEN

(@) BER ; &

(b) BFHBTABEATENHEEER
BRBINER o

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BEEFLLEER - BR - MRERIAREN

(@) BER ; &
(b) BFHBTABEAZENHEEDEER
HHIHER

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.
BEUMESHER T REBEREHLREZMN
BREELIHSZSEHLEFIRMECR o

Supply Chain Management

HEEgRER

Product Responsibility

Anti-corruption

Community Investment

HERE

88 EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

KBREEZERERAT



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BB E

TO THE MEMBERS OF EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Evershine
Group Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 96 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and note to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of consolidated financial statements in
Hong Kong, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN

We draw attention in note 2(c) to the consolidated financial
statements which describes that the Group had net current
liabilities with the amount of approximately HK$24,152,000. These
conditions, along with other matters as set forth in note 2(c) to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of on this matter. In addition to the matter described in the
Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters
to be communicated in our report.

BKREEZERARQFRR
(REBEME L ZERDF)
ERFEUBHRRB/E
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B ERKBREEZRERQIAREWE L
Bl ([E5E ) &HIINEBE207H 2 4RE M
Br o BERZZE-N\F+ZA=1t—-HZ&
BUBMRRE BEZALFECHEIBHER
Hit2EW#ER  ReERSHRNGERE
REBRURGRE P BEHRERMET - BEETEST
BURAAL o

BMRD  2EEEVBBRRRETBETM
NE((EBSFMLE ) B2 EBHBER
SREAA(EBMBREEYN DEEQXFHR
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EERSREMBHRERMTE2Cc) EPEM &
EEERBEEFEEN24,152,000/8 T ° Z%H
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VR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material
Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have determined

BARESEE

BMREHEERRERPORELE  HRE
MHBZE—2—N\F+t_A=t—HIEE>
CARBRENE I BAEENEE - 25
BDR R MBS BB RS B RE R R
BRBEMET  BRMTEHZEEREM
EENEE o BEBASSIE S BATEE
REFREEN  RACKEE FABARRR
A% T SUgE R EE -

the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be

communicated in our report.

Key audit matter

HRRESTEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERF 2RETE

Business acquisition

On 1 October 2018, the Group acquired additional 30%
of the issued share capital of Boyraci Yapi Insaat ve
Taahhit Gayrimenkul Yatirim Anonim Sirketi (“Boyraci
Construction”) for consideration of approximately
HK$23,042,000. Boyraci Construction is engaged in
construction, contracting works and rental of residential
properties in Turkey. Following this additional
acquisition, Boyraci Construction has become an
indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company.

We had identified business acquisition as a key audit
matter because significant management judgement
for purchase price allocation and special attention on
accounting treatment were required.

KW

R=Z—N\E+A—0 EXKEUKEL23,042,000
7Bt BEBoyraciYapiinsaat ve Taahhiit Gayrimenkul
Yatirim AnonimSirketi ([BoyraciConstruction ]) 884
30%E 34T IRZA - BoyraciConstructionfd T B E ¢ =&
£ AEIBRREEVMFEEER - WEEMIEE
BoyraciConstructionE2 /% B2 RHEE60%ER 2 H
EZHB AT °

BMECHABIXEBSIHERBRENSE - IHNEHE
BESREHEANERABRARBIEZETRE
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Our major audit procedures to address the business
acquisition included the following:

* We examined the sales and purchase agreement
for the acquisition and enquired the management
the basis determination of completion date of
acquisition and tested the supporting thereof;

* We tested the purchase price allocation in which
we especially focused on the valuation of net assets
amount. We particularly focused on the related fair
value adjustments;

* We discussed with management and the
independent external valuer engaged by the
Company in relation to the methodology and
assumptions adopted in arriving at the fair value of
net assets, to see whether the methodology and
assumptions were reasonable;

* We checked on a sample basis the accuracy and
reliance of the input data used; and

* We assessed the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experiences
and qualifications.

BEMEBEXBRB T ERAEFEENT ¢

- BIEEWBE-EBHS  UHAEEEETWE
TR B E B WRIEHE TR

- BRMAABEESE  AESTAREEFEZMG
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Key audit matter

RRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPZREL X

Fair value of investment properties

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of
the investment properties was approximately
HK$154,727,000. The Group appointed independent
professional valuers to determine the fair value of
investment properties as at 31 December 2018. The
valuation model adopted for the valuation was market
comparison approach.

We have identified the assessment of fair value of
investment properties as a key audit matter because
significant judgement was involved in the determination
of the fair value of the investment properties.

REWEZ L FlE

A—E—N\F+ZA=1+—0  REVEZAFENE
154,727,000 70 - BEECZE— BB LEEGLER
EEREWER=—ZE—N\EFE+-A=+—H2ZAFE-
AEEMRAZEEERATSLEIE -

EACRBIFERENR 2 D FEFRBRETSE
THAREERENE 2 D FESRE XA -

Our major audit procedures relating to the fair value of
investment properties included the following:

*  We discussed with management and independent
valuers engaged by the Company in relation to the
methodology applied and assumptions being used
in arriving the fair value of investment properties.

 We checked the accuracy and reliance of the
source data used in the valuation.

*  We assessed the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.

BMBERENE LA FEZTEFNRFEENT ¢

. RMEEEER BARRERIEYAEMRE
BREE A PEFRA S5 AR BRETHS -
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Key audit matter

BREITER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EERPZBREL X

Impairment assessment of intangible assets in relation to cemetery segment

As at 31 December 2018, included in tangible assets
was an operating rights of cemetery of approximately
HK$38,499,000 which were allocated to the Group’s
cemetery segment (“Cemetery CGU”).

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the Group
appointed an independent valuer to assess the
recoverable amount of the Cemetery CGU, which
were determined by management based on the higher
value-in-use and fair value less costs of disposal.
The valuation requires significant judgement by
management in valuing the Cemetery CGU.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment
loss of approximately HK$73,171,000 had been
recognised on the Group’s intangible assets in related
to cemetery segment.

We have identified the impairment assessment of
intangible assets related to cemetery segment as a key
audit matter because the estimates of the recoverable
amount of the Cemetery CGU are complex, subjective
and highly judgmental, in particular, assumptions and
judgements made by management in arriving at the
cash flow forecasts of the Cemetery CGU.

BHRED B2 BT EE R A

RZB-NE+ZA=+—8 s ABREEZLEL
EHEX38,4990008 TE T EE EXEEZAESH
(CEREEEEM] -

REZNFERECEYN - ERECREBVGEME

NERSTELBEMN2TRESHE 2B AEEER

BEAEEEAFEREERSIZESEETE - YO E

?{%ﬁ&iﬁ&?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ% BRGERREEEFLHE
\II [ °

BE—Z-N\F+ZA=t—HLFE  EXEFER
ES M2 B EERRMEREL73,171,000/87T

MR BBLAES B 2B EEREN LSRR
EBE DHRAEREELEM I WESFE 2 A5
EREBIERAFLESHE  BSRHIREEBEEN
NERSELBV 2 RERETRRMREH 2 R R HE -
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Our major audit procedures relating to the
management’s impairment assessment of goodwill
and intangible assets relating to the cemetery segment
included the following:

* We obtained and reviewed cash flow forecasts
of the related cash-generating units prepared by
management and approved by the directors of the
Company.

*  We discussed with management and independent
valuer engaged by the Company in relation to
the methodology applied, basis and assumptions
being used in arriving at the forecasts (e.g. time of
completion, operating profit margin and discount
rate).

*  We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reliability of the input data used.

*  We assessed the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.

* We performed sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions being used in the forecasts (e.g. using
a range of higher discount rates and lower revenue
growth rate).

EMUEEEARAES BB EREREE ZRE
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OTHER INFORMATION THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. The report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BB E

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Wai Nam William with practising certificate
number: P05957.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019

10th Floor,

8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
lﬁ“é*ﬁ §§ For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—Z—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

2018 2017
—B-N\E —F—t%
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
Continuing operations BESEEK
Revenue g 4813 4,427 27,948
Cost of sales HEME (2,506) (25,314)
Gross profit EA 1,921 2,634
Other income, gains/(losses), net Hilw A ~ Wz (B1E) 38 5 11,082 (6,348)
Share of (losses)/profits of associates AEBE DR (BE) &5F (5,790) 996
Impairment loss on intangible assets BREEZRERSRE 17 (73,171)
Operating and administrative expenses RERTHRY (32,023) (39, 578)
Loss from operations REFE (97,981) (42,296)
Finance costs BB 6(a) (15,465) (27,033)
Loss before taxation BREIAIEE 6 (113,446) (69, 329)
Taxation FiE 7(a) 3
Loss after taxation from continuing operations ~ 15B &4 %58~ B & E1E (113,443) (69,329)
Discontinued operations BARIEER
Profit from discontinued operations BEAEER A 11 - 580
Loss for the year KEEFE (113,443) (68,749)
Attributable to: BB
Shareholders of the Company NG
— From continuing operations — REFELEEE (105,087) (67,532)
— From discontinued operation — REBARIEER 11 — 571
(105,087) (66,961)
Non-controlling interests iR
— From continuing operations — REFELCEEY (8,356) (1,797)
— From discontinued operation — REBAIEEE 11 — 9
(8,356) (1,788)
Loss per share BRER 12
From continuing and discontinued operation ~ REFELEXBREK XL
Basic and Diluted HEAREE (6.02) centsiB{l  (4.16) centsE{l
From continuing operations REFELEER 12
Basic and Diluted BEAR#EE (6.02) centsiEfll  (4.20) cents&{lL
From discontinued operation RECKILER 12
Basic and Diluted HEAREE N/ATERA 0.04 centsiEll

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial MEMIRI s/ R i L 4 S B R IRFT EH P IRy o
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
lﬁ“%*ﬁﬁ& ;ﬂéﬁl&ﬁi For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FER
Loss for the year REEEER (113,443) (68,749)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) REEHMEEBA (BX)
for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to FJREREHBEEH DEE
profit or loss: BR2ER
Exchange differences on translation of BREFINME A R B R
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries  Z[E 5 Z=%8 4,471 3,401
Release of exchange reserve upon TR — B A R R E
derecognition of an associate [ 5 S 5,623 —
Share of exchange differences DILEE AR Z
of associates [E =58 (7,244) (101)
Release of exchange reserve upon HEME A =7
disposal of subsidiaries B 0 S — (426)
Other comprehensive income for the year ZAEEHMEEWA 2,850 2,874
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFEE2HEBXHAHE (110,593) (65,875)
Attributable to: EER
Equity shareholders of the Company NG (106,324) (63,588)
Non-controlling interests R R (4,269) (2,287)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEEZEBXHAHE (110,593) (65,875)

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Report 2018

BEM MRS R M B RRE TR

—E-NEFEHR o7



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
lﬁ“éﬂ*ﬁﬂf%ﬂi At 31 December 2018 R=F—N\F+=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Kzt FHT T8t
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE KRB 14 53,300 56,194
Investment properties REYE 15 154,727 55,100
Investment properties under EEREWZE
construction 16 35,021 —
Intangible assets BREE 17 38,499 114,478
Interests in associates REE AT 2w 18 77,388 120,812
Deposit for acquisition of subsidiaries  UBEKI B A B3k — 15,626
Deferred tax assets EEFEEE 29 1,282 —
360,217 362,210
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 420 2,303
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk EAERFRIE 20 20,354 40,091
Loan and interest receivables EWERREFIE 21 — 902
Cash and cash equivalents HEeERREEEY 22 3,573 13,947
24,347 57,243
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and g5 HithERFIER
contract liabilities BHEE 23 11,715 10,966
Contingent consideration RARE 6,644 —
Borrowings i 24 30,000 52,000
Obligations under finance leases Rl E RN EE 25 133 155
Promissory notes R EE 26 — 20,152
Tax payable S T1E 7 —
48,499 83,273
Net current liabilities RESEFE (24,152) (26,030)
Total assets less current liabilites EEZAERREBAE 336,065 336,180
Non-current liabilities ERBARS
Other payables HAith T FRIE 23 8,893 754
Obligations under finance leases R ER L ER 25 570 676
Borrowings BE 24 59,000 —
Promissory notes EHEE 26 63,417 51,211
Convertible notes AR ZEE 27 — 96,198
Provision for employment benefits EEEFIEE 28 35 —
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIEEE 29 21,107 —
153,022 148,839
NET ASSETS EEFE 183,043 187,341
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬂf;ﬂi At 31 December 2018 R=F—N\F+=-A=+—H

2018
—EB-N\F

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FBT

HK$’000
FTERT

Notes

Rret

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARK &

Share capital %N 30 1,088,011 1,015,341

Reserves (G 30 (948,802) (838,354)
Total equity attributable to AN TR R IEAL

shareholders of the Company FERHARE 139,209 176,987
Non-controlling interests FEIEpRER 43,834 10,354
TOTAL EQUITY AT 183,043 187,341

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

March 2019.

Hung Tat Chi Alan
HEE
Director

EZ

The accompanying notes form part of these consolidated financial

statements.

KHEEER-_ZE—hAE=ZA=-+-HtER
FREETIE -

Ling Ko Yin Jason
HER
Director

EZ
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ﬁeﬂﬁﬁgi For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE_-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RARRRRE
Convertible Accumu- Non-
Share  Exchange  Statutory notes Other [ated controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve losses  Sub-total interests equity
T8k E 32
ke ENRGE  OiERRE  RERE  BtEE R gt B
Notes HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
Wit TAn Thn Thn Thn Thn ; T T
A1 January 2017 “2-t+E-f-f 959333 (4167) 5 3433 M (TT6B81) 181815 12667 194482
Loss for the year EREE - - - - —  (6691)  (66961)  (1788)  (68749)
Share of exchange MEBELAFRZ
difference on associate EiZE - (101) - - - - (101) - (101)
Released of exchange reserveupon ~ HEKBATERE
disposal of subsidiaries EiifE - (426) - - - - (426) - (426)
Exchange differences on translation ~ £EEMBAT
of financial statements of overseas )5 E A
subsidiaries EiER = 3,900 - - - - 3900 (499) 3401

Proft(Loss) and total comprehensive  ERER/ (BE)R2E

income/(expenses) for the year WA/ (RX)AE - 3373 — — —  (66961)  (63588)  (2287)  (65875)
Issue of convertible notes BOURREE 27 - - - 3,336 - - 3,336 - 3,336
Issue of placed share RAIRERS 41,160 — — — — — 4160 — 41160
Issue of shares upon conversion of RATEREERRIRG

convertible notes 21 14,848 - - (584) - - 14,264 - 14,264
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR 33 - - (53) - - 5 = (26) (26)
At 31 December 2017 Hg-tEt=A=1-8 1,015,341 (%) — 81 M @A789)  1T6SET 1034 187341
HKFRS 9 adjustment on accumulated ~ BEEHBHEREF0EHEZ

losses RS 29 . . . . — ) (8 -
Loss for the year ERER - - - - — (105087)  (105087)  (8,356) (113,443
Share of exchange MEBEAFZ

difference on associates EiZE - (7,244) - - - - (7,244) - (7,244)
Release of exchange reserve upon AIED-BRENTR

derecognition of an associate BEESfHE - 5623 - - - - 5623 - 5623
Exchange differences on translation ~ EEEHNHEAT

of financial statements of overseas 11,5 A

subsidiaries EiZE - 384 - - - - 384 4,087 441
Loss and total comprehensive EREERZE

expenses for the year EEL - 12 - - — (l05087) (106324  (4269)  (11059)
Acquisiton of additional interests Wi - BB AR e

ina subsidiary - - - - - 439 439 (439) -
Business combination achieved ARBER 2 EH AR
in stages 32 - - - - - - - 38,188 38,188

Issue of shares upon conversion of BETRRZBERTRG

convertible notes 21 72,670 - - (2,752) - - 69,918 - 69,918
Derecognition of convertible notes ALETAREE 7 - - - (343 - 3433 - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZB=1-A 1,088,011 (2,031) - - 44 (946,815 139,209 43,834 183,043
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FelEeRER
iy = i ')IL E For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\FE+=ZA=+—HILFE

2018
—B-N\F

HK$'000
TER

2017
—E—+tEF
HK$'000
TER

Operating activities Rk
Loss before taxation BRBiAIEE
from continuing operations REFESEER (113,446) (69,329)
from discontinued operation RECAILEK — 580
Adjustments for: RE:
Depreciation of property,plant and equipment mE - BERERERE 2,879 2,959
Gain on extinguishment of promissory notes bkt gy (8,487) —
Share of (losses)/profits of associates PEBE AR 2 (B518) &F 5,790 (996)
Gain on fair value change of investment properties REMFE 2 AT EZE IS (5,700) (3,200)
Fair value of derivative asset — put option THEEE — A2 LT E — 8,860
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 2,808 3,873
Impairment loss on intangible assets BV &R ZRERSE 73,171 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE  BERREESE 384 392
Gain of disposal of subsidiaries HENBA T2 W - (890)
Interest income FEWA () (10)
Finance costs BMERAR 15,465 27,033
(Gain)/loss on early partial redemption of REERSNRLIEEZ
promissory notes (k) Bi (590) 5,087
Loss on fair value change of contingent consideration IAREZ AT ELEER 1,832 —
Loss on fair value change of promissory note EEARATETABRZ
designated at FVTPL ARRBZATEEDER 2,282 —
Reversal of allowance for credit losses on trade debtors ~ EUERFEE B BRI ERD (1,787) —
Gain on derecognition of interest in an associate KILRRAN—BHE DT
Pl (1,050) -
Impairment loss on interest in an associate R—BBE DR zER 2 RESE 2,884 —
Operating loss before changed in working capital EEESRERZKRERHE (23,567) (25,641)
Decrease in inventories EERD 1,883 1,215
Decrease in trade and other receivables B S REMERIERD 24,057 64,786
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables and B REMEFTEAR
contract liabilities BRNEEEN/ (HD) 4,588 (7,191)
Decrease/(increase) in loan and interest receivables ERERRAERED /(50) 902 (902)
Increase in provision for employment benefits EERFIBELM 5 =
Cash generated from operating activities REXBEMEzES 7,868 32,267
Tax paid EABE - =
Net cash generated from operating activities REXRMBzRSTE 7,868 32,267
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A, ﬁEQﬁLEiag
lﬁ‘ = iﬂ ')IL E For the year ended 31 December 2018 HEZE-Z—N\FE+=-A=1+—HILEE

2018
—E-0\F

HK$’000
TER

2017
—E—+tEF
HK$'000
TER

Investing activities REES
Cash effect on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR RS2 - (88)
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBARE RS — (15,626)
Cash effect for acquisition of an associate WE—ERE DR RENE (29) (30,000)
Cash effect for business combination achieved in stages ~ DEERER 2 ¥BAHZRETE 18 —
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ BEEW¥ - BERRERH (518) (9,326)
Payment for construction costs of investment properties ~ FERIREMERERAN T

under construction (2,439) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ H&EW% - BERREZFE7E - 3,405
Interest received EHFIE 2 10
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMAZRLEE (2,966) (51,625)
Financing activities MEEE
Proceeds from issue of convertible notes BITURRREMEIE — 83,420
Interest paid BAFE (12,062) (13,005)
Proceeds from borrowings BEBHE 65,000 —
Repayment of borrowings HBEHEE (58,000) -
Repayment of promissory notes BEALEE (10,000 (90,724)
Repayment of finance leases BERERN (128) (116)
Advance to an associate o) — B = 1 B AR (31) =
Issuance of placed shares BORERS — 41,160
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities B&EEE(FTA),/ fiEzHERE (15,221) 20,735
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BE&RBEEZEYZ(HD)  EINEE (10,319) 1,377
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January N—A—H2HERELEEY 13,947 12,406
Effect of foreign rate changes EREEv2E (55) 164
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RT=R=+-HZRERELZEN 3,573 13,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR eI H R
iy = [ ] For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Evershine Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
limited company incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares
listed on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are at 16th Floor, Henan Building, 90
& 92 Jaffe Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The subsidiaries and associates of the Company are engaged
in the provision of trading business, property development
and investment business, money lending business, mobile
application business and cemetery business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance
These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“"HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ#ﬁim# %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

104

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis, except for
investment properties and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHREBME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(c) Going concern assumption

(c) HERKE ZBR

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors have considered the future liquidity of the Group.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had recorded net
current liabilities of approximately HK$24,152,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and therefore the Group
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

Notwithstanding the aforesaid conditions, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis on the assumption that the Group will be
able to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable
future. In the opinion of the directors, the Group can meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due within
the next year from the date of the consolidated financial
statements, after taking into consideration of the following
measures and arrangements made subsequent to the
reporting date:

The Company has been offered a borrowing of
HK$40,000,000 with an interest rate carrying at 24% per
annum that would be made available up to 21 March 2021.
The borrowing will be secured by second mortgage charge
against the Group’s Hong Kong investment properties and
land and buildings. The lender of this borrowing offer is a
licensed money lender in Hong Kong, an independent third
party to the Group.
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(CONTINUED)

(c) Going concern assumption (Continued)

In light of the arrangements implemented to date, the
directors are of the view that the Group has sufficient
cash resources to satisfy its working capital and other
financial obligations for the next twelve months from
the date of the consolidated financial statements, after
having taken into account of the Group’s projected cash
flows, current financial resources and capital expenditure
requirements with respect to the development of its
businesses. Accordingly, the directors are of the view that
it is appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. Should the Group
be unable to continue to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to restate the value
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets
and current liabilities, respectively. The effects of these
potential adjustments have not been reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR EME
iy = [ ] For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-%

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (HKFRSs)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of
new standards and interpretation issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants for the first
time of which the followings are relevant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements:

* HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (including the
amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation which is mandatorily effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019);

« HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and amendments to HKFRS 15; and

« HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration.

A) Application of HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 and the amendments to HKFRS 9
have replaced HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement. HKFRS 9 sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy
or sell non-financial items. In accordance with the
specific transitional provisions set out in HKFRS 9, the
Group has applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including requirements relating to
impairment) to items that existed as of the date of initial
application (i.e. 1 January 2018) on a retrospective
basis based on the facts and circumstances and
business models that existed as at 1 January 2018.
However, the Group has decided not to restate the
comparative figures. Accordingly, the comparative
information continues to be presented based on the
requirements of HKAS 39 and hence may not be
comparable with the current year information. The
cumulative effect of initial application of HKFRS 9 has
been recognised as adjustments to the opening equity
as of 1 January 2018.
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(CONTINUED)

(d) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued)
A) Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)
(I) Classification and measurement of financial assets

In general, HKFRS 9 categories financial assets
into the following three classification categories:

e amortised cost;

« fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”); and

« fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

These classification categories are different from
those set out in HKAS 39 which included held-
to-maturity investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets measured at FVTPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

Details about the Group’s accounting policies
for its financial assets and financial liabilities
are disclosed in note 2(p) and notes 2(q) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group did not designate or de-designate any
financial asset at FVTOCI or FVTPL at 1 January
2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(d) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued)
A) Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

)

(I

Classification and measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

The following table shows a reconciliation from
how the Group’s financial assets existed as of 1
January 2018 were classified and measured under
HKAS 39 to how they are classified and measured
under HKFRS 9:

2. ERETHHRMEE)

(d) ERFITREETERBUBREER

(&)

A) EREZ BRI ER|F 9% (&)

)

EHMEESEREE)
TRIIRAEER=ZZ-N
F-—A—BzRETREE
RIEE B S ERIE395RE
DERAESXERESE
IR EZRFIRNDER
STEA AR :

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
Old classification  New classification under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 HK$’000 Note HK$’000
RIEEE
RIEFBME RETBEER gy s ]
BREFBEELN REEFRNT F30RMNREE 95 MAREE
FIVENELIEARN 2EAR TAT M THER
Trade and other Trade and other Amortised cost 40,091 (i) 38,288
receivables receivables
BoaRAMENRRE EZRAMERTE #BHERAR
Loan and interest Loans receivables  Amortised cost 902 () 894
receivables
EWEFRRFE EWER A
Note (i): The amount represented additional impairment Brati) - BEFIBERES BMK

loss based on the new expected loss model under
HKFRS 9. Please also see details disclosed in (A)(Il)
below.

Impairment

HKFRS 9 has introduced the expected credit loss
model (“ECL model”) to replace the “incurred
loss” model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss (“ECL”) requires an ongoing measurement of
credit risk associated with a financial asset. The
Group has applied the expected loss (“ECL”) to
financial assets that are subsequently measured
at amortised cost (including trade and other
receivables and loan and interest receivables)
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(CONTINUED)

(d) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued)
A) Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)
(II) Impairment (Continued)

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for trade receivables.
Impairment of other receivable and loan and
interest receivables are measured as either
12-month. ECL or lifetime expected credit loss,
depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The Group established ECL model based on
historical settlement records, past experience and
available forward-looking information.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

The following table is a reconciliation that shows
how the closing loss allowance as at 31 December
2017 determined in accordance with HKAS 39 can
be reconciled to the opening loss allowance as at
1 January 2018 determined in accordance with
HKFRS 9.
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HK$’000
FExT
Loss allowance recognised as at R-ZE—tF+=-A=+—
31 December 2017 HREBEEBEHERIZEI9
under HKAS 39 SRR ERE =
Additional loss allowance as a HERE BB RELER
result of the application of FORTAHEEEEBEN
the ECL model under HKFRS 9 A4 2 FAIMNE IR IR
Trade and other receivables g 5 R EMEWRIE 1,803
Loan and interest receivables BWERRFE 8
Loss allowance recognised as at R-ZE—N\F—H—H
1 January 2018 under HKFRS 9 RIER B RS2
FORERZEERE 1,811
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHREBME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial (d) ERFTRKETEBHHEREEEL
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued) ()
A) Application of HKFRS 9 (Continued) A) BFEBYBEREERIZEIY (&)
(1) Classification and measurement of financial () 2RI Ez2ERFE

liabilities

Under HKFRS 9, for a financial liability designated
as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
required to be presented in other comprehensive
income, with the remaining amount of change in
the fair value of the liability being presented in
profit or loss (unless the treatment of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss
and in which case all gains or loss on that liability
are presented in profit or loss). As described in
note 2(p), the Group had designated a promissory
note (issued on 1 October 2018) as at FVTPL
financial liabilities on initial recognition.

Other than the abovementioned, the application
of HKFRS 9 in respect of financial liabilities’
classification and measurement requirements
has had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

(IV) Effect on the Group’s accumulated losses as of 1

January 2018

The following table shows the impact of
the application of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s
accumulate losses as of 1 January 2018:
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Increase

in the Group’s
accumulated
losses

ASEERE
R
HK$'000
FET

Recognition of additional expected #EREAL T RIEAEZ

credit losses relating to: BINEHIEERE
Trade and other receivables B 5 R HEMEWIE 1,803
Loan and interest receivables RUBEREFE 8
1,811
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHBEBE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial (d) ERFTREEITEBVHEREER
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued) (%)
B) Application of HKFRS 15 B) EAE BB EERFE 155

HKFRS 15 has replaced HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and other revenue-
related interpretations. Under HKAS 11, revenue
arising from sale of goods was generally
recognised at a point in time when the risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods was passed
to the customers and revenue arising from rental
income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the terms of the relevant leases.. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service
in the contract. This may be at a single point in
time or over time. HKFRS 15 has introduced
additional qualitative and quantitative disclosure

BBPBRELERF15FEMA
BERETENERELZSL
BB ERE18HRUA K EA
HRABBENZE - REFES
FTEERISE115E - SHEEMATEI
ABERE @A ERRRD®R
ERTEFRER  HEWAE
£ AR BREBERRAELR
EHER o REBEE BB REER
E15% WARFEFESBSELY
2 7Eh B on S IR AR AV 12 I R R R
7o BB E AR F 15575
ABINEMREEBRERE
EERMBHRREMAETHER

FEHNEENRARREREN
ME - 5 BERTEERE -

requirements which aim to enable users of the
financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and
cash flows arising from contracts with customers.

ZRIAEBEIEEBRHME
BRI E ER 1555 Y
REVBRARARESHBEREL

Considering the nature of the Group’s principal
activities, the adoption of HKFRS 15 has not had
any material impact on the consolidated financial

position and the consolidated financial results. BEMNEREZE - A BRE
However, the application of HKFRS 15 has had B EREENFEISHEEUTZ

the following presentation changes: HEREE -

Carrying Carrying
amount as at amount as at
1 January 31 December
2018 2017

R-EB-—NF RKRIE2E—tF

—A—H2Z +t=A=t+—8H
BREE ZEREE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FBT

Receipt in advance and deferred REBE=_Z—+tF+=-A
revenue presented in the =t+—HZHEEHKAR
consolidated statement of financial %3k 2% 2 FBUFTE K
position as of 31 December 2017  IEFEW R IZBE B TS

are presented as “contract REEBE 155K AEGRE

liabilities” in the consolidated BBARRKREFTNRIE

statement of financial position Fp=NEl

under HKFRS 15 359 359
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EAEHHEME(E)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Application of new and revised Hong Kong Financial (d) ERFITRLEBIE BT KHREER
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) (Continued) (%)
C) Application of HK (IFRIC) 22 C) EBREEEBGEREZEZS

HK (IFRIC) 22 provides guidance on determining
“the date of the transaction” for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
(or part of it) arising from a transaction in which an
entity receives or pays advance consideration in
a foreign currency. The interpretation clarifies that
“the date of the transaction” is the date on initial
recognition of the non-monetary asset or liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related
item, the date of the transaction for each payment
or receipt should be determined in this way.

The application of HK (IFRIC) 22 has not had
any material impact on the consolidated financial
position and the consolidated financial result.
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(CONTINUED)

(e) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

* has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the shareholders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the shareholders of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if
this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EXSHHEMEE)
(CONTINUED)

() X=BEH

(f) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

« deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;

« liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date; and

« assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in
the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-
by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable, on the basis specified in another HKFRSs.

Acquisition of assets

For the acquisition of assets effected through a non-
operating corporate structure that does not represent a
business, it is considered that the transactions does not
meet the definition of a business combination. Accordingly
the transaction is accounted for as the acquisition of asset
and such transaction does not give rise to goodwill.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less any accumulated impairment losses, if any,
and is presented separately in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
and then to the other assets of the unit a pro rata on the
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in the profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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U]

Interests in associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 49% of the voting rights.
Investments in associate are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost and the carrying
amount is increased or decreased to recognised the
investor’s share of share of profit or loss of the investee
after date of acquisition. The Group’s investments in
associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Under
the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate and the
Group’s share of net fair value of the associates identifiable
assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to income statement
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of cost-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an
associate equal or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to
share of profit of investments accounted for using equity
method’ in the income statement.
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)

1)

(k)

U]

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Interests in associates (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are
recognised in the Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognised in the income statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Investment properties under construction

Investment properties under construction are initially
measured at cost and transaction costs regardless of
the level of completion. The investment properties under
construction are transferred to investment properties
when and only when the investment properties under
construction are fully completed.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of

items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated

residual value, if any, using the straight-line method, over

their useful live as follows:

Land and Building Shorter of remaining lease
term or useful life

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 10 years

Leasehold improvement 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

(m) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or disposal
group’s previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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(m) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

(n)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

operations (Continued)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.

Intangible assets
(i) Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The estimated useful lives and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effective of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
(ii) Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
The cost of intangible assets acquired in business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the assets are derecognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHREBME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(o) Impairment of non-financial assets

(0) FERMEEZRE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimate the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocate to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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(CONTINUED)

(p) Financial assets

Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

* those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in
the statement of profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. EASHHREBME (&)
(CONTINUED)

(p) Financial assets (Continued)

(p) EMEAE ()

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for trade receivables. Impairment of other
receivable and loan and interest receivables are measured
as either 12-month. ECL or lifetime expected credit
loss, depending on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

The Group’s financial assets are mainly classified as loans
and receivables.

— Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instrument.
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(p) Financial assets (Continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

Loan and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivable including trade and
other receivables, restricted bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans
and receivables are considered to be impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition,
the estimated future cash flows have been affected.
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

» breach of contract, such as default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as
trade receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017
(Continued)

The amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. If,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivable, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

— Equity instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

126

(q) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Equity instrument (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, promissory notes and borrowings are
recognised initially at fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both the liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on
initial recognition in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue
of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the notes into equity, is
included in equity (convertible notes equity reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q) Financial liabilities (Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability
component into ordinary shares of the Company,
will remain in convertible notes equity reserve until
the embedded option is exercised (in which case the
balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve
will be transferred to share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve will
be released to the retained profits. Neither gain nor
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible notes
using the effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

128

(r) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating lease.

(s)

(i)

(i)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair
value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as a
finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation
so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowings costs.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expenses on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as in incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the
lease term on a straight line basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

®)

(u)

v)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable demand and form an integral of the
Group’s management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and at banks which are not restricted as to use.

Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represents contractual billings resulting
from goods yet to be delivered, services yet to be rendered
or in respect of the unexpired terms of relevant contracts,
or for which the applicable revenue recognition criteria
are not yet satisfied. Revenue is recognised and contract
liabilities is released to profit or loss when the relevant
services are rendered or on a time proportion basis over
the terms of the relevant contracts or when the applicable
revenue recognition criteria are satisfied.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and cost, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Service income — service income is recognised when
the related services are provided.

ii) Interest income — interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest method.

iii) Rental income — rental income is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant
leases.

iv) Sales of goods — revenue from sales of goods is

recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(CONTINUED)

(w) Employee benefit
(i) Retirement benefits costs

The Group contributes to a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance for all employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ relevant income and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed in the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) are
required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme.

Under the Labor Law Article 25/l in the Republic of
Turkey (“Turkey”), the Group’s Turkish subsidiaries
are required to pay termination indemnities to each
employee who completes one year of service and
whose employment is terminated upon causes that
qualify the employee to receive termination indemnity,
is called up for military service, leaves within one year
after marriage (women only), and to those employees
who retire or die. The amount payable consists of one
month’s salary for each year of service.

KIEEEZRBRERATF

2. EXETHBEBEE)

(w) BEEF

()

BRIKIEFIRK A
AEERBEBIME AR ER
PSRBT RES D EBEHEE
B AESRABAEB([B%R
TR B D EHMER - HREHER
BEEEWAZBDLTE I
RiFEBESAEREREMEE
BEAER - MEETE cEER
rEERBECEESRRE
HEVEEESEA - A&EHZ
BEHERNA @ RE S5 H
REEBRBETES -

AABEPREARLME ([ F
BNEECHBRrRIESERSH
FH it 757 DR A B B A 2 h RIR AR
58 - ZZEWBRRAFTREH
ERAZET A DB RRA
ERTEER MR - HRESHERE
PRERETEREREN KR
AR ©

BRETEEAMBE(TEZEH])
25 Ep L (Labor Law)5825/11f6 » 7K
EEzIEHEMBARARNSE S
R FHE-FRELEHEER
BRREEREESERWEAL
BEzEEZNRLEE  5F
EEANG -~ #BE—FRER(E
RZM)REARRGHZES - &
RREEBESEREFH 2 —E
B#& o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Employee benefit (Continued)
(i) Retirement benefits costs (Continued)
The dates that the employees will gain their pension
rights are determined with respect to the prevailing
social security laws with consideration to their past
employment durations.

(i) Share-based payment transactions
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using a Black-
Scholes Option Model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
options, the total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date,
the amount recognised as an expenses is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is exercised
or the options expires.

(x) Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs which are not directly attributable to
expenditures on qualifying assets are recognised as
expenses in profit or loss in the period which they are
incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

132

(CONTINUED)

(y) Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from the amount as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(y) Income tax (Continued)

(@)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in the
profit or loss for the period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of currency translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interest as appropriate).

2. ERETHHRMEE)

(v) FRG®i(&E)

(@)

ELERBEERBENREBEAAIRE
BEENEEZREMFIEARR(R
BEMRCERHBE LCERZH
R(RBUE))FTE -

ELERBREREEZTERRASE
BRBEMRAEAHREORERZRLE
ERBERAEZAXFEEZHE
BR -

BN MR R R B R - M ED
HIGELEHRIREAREMEEBARE
ERERARRZEEMEE - RIS
RIELER ARG D BN EMEE WA
FEENED AR

S

A B 8 B SR 1B S B8 2 B A% $RaR
B DUZERINEER UM (5
WETZRBIERS AR ERE
RB|ETHR - RI|MEHR - UINERT
BEzEBEEYRZAZERERE
HME o UMNEEERATTEZFE
WEHBATTEHRRE

REERBREERBRERELEZER
EEYREELBBREINES -
AR EHMEZ FERIEB EEH R
BB cEREZHERNEEHET A

1B o

RENGESPBHERMS - AKEE
IEBzEERBEDEREREHY
RERAERBEDSAEEZIIREY
(BDET) » MEWARRXTIIRZF
E2FIERBRE » FRIFERNZH
B IR AR B RIE B - RIETE
RT - ARARRZERZERE
EofIEECEREZRE(WE) REA
2EHBARER LR AERZE
RFERT (RERFERER (NE
A)) e

Annual Report 2018 =& —\E&# 133



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ#ﬁim# %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

134

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(CONTINUED)

(aa) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that

person’s family and that person,
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, providers key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(ab)Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly
to the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group’s management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses
in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs. The assumptions, estimates and judgements
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While
the management reviews their judgements, estimates and
assumptions continuously, the actual results will seldom equal
to the estimates.
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3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

136

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following accounting
judgements:

(1

(1

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Going concern basis

Management makes an assessment of the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern when preparing
the consolidated financial statements. In assessing
whether the going concern assumption is appropriate,
management takes into account all available
information about the future, which is at least, but is not
limited to, twelve months from the date of the financial
statement. The degree of consideration depends on
the facts in each case. Management believes that the
Group is able to continue as a going concern after
taking into account the measures, financial supports
and the future profitable operations. Accordingly,
management has prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis. An adverse
change in any of the above conditions would require
the consolidated financial statements to be prepared
on an alternative authoritative basis and such basis,
together with the fact that the consolidated financial
statements is not prepared on a going concern basis,
would need to be disclosed. If the Group was unable
to continue as a going concern, adjustments relating to
the recoverability and classification of recorded asset
amounts or classification of liabilities may need to be
incorporated into the consolidated financial statements.

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and
Intangible Assets

Management determines the estimated useful lives
of and related depreciation/amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of significant technical
innovations and competitor actions in response
to industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation/amortisation charges where useful lives
are less than previously estimated lives, or will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 3. 2EHASTRHE &)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Critical accounting judgements in applying the (a) ERAXAEESTHERHRELEZEE
Group’s accounting policies (Continued) ST HEr(E)
(lll) Income Taxes and Deferred Taxation () Fris B RIEALFHE

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates
of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and certain tax losses are recognised
as management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax and tax in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.

(IV) Investment properties measured using the fair value

model

At 31 December 2018, investment properties are
stated at fair value based on the valuation performed
by the independent professional valuers. The valuers
have determined the fair value based on a method of
valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying
on the valuation report prepared by the valuers,
management has reviewed the valuation including the
assumptions and estimates adopted.

The fair values of investment properties are
determined by independent valuers on an open market
for existing use basis. In making the judgment, the
Group considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences; and

(ii) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices.
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3. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Impairment of Assets

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the assets at
the end of each reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. When indication of
impairment is identified, management prepares discounted
future cashflow to assess the differences between the
carrying amount and value in use and provided for
impairment loss. In determining the value in use of certain
assets and liabilities, the Group makes assumptions of
the effects of uncertain future events on those assets
and liabilities at the consolidated statement of financial
position date. These estimates involve assumptions about
such items as risk adjustment to cash flows or discount
rate used, future changes in salaries and future changes
in prices affecting other costs. The Group’s estimates
and assumptions are based on the expectations of future
events and are reviewed periodically. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of the impairment

loss and affect the Group’s net asset value.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss

would affect the net profit in future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

4.

REVENUE

During the Year, the Group’s revenue was generated from
trading business, rentals, interest income from money lending
business and service income from cemetery. On 21 April
2017, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of the
travel agency service business. The disposal was completed
on 8 May 2017. As a result, the revenue from the provision of
travel agency services was included in discontinued operations
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and its corresponding
results was presented in discontinued operations.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised
in revenue during the year is analysed as follows:

4. Wi

RER TEECHRREEZEK - H
& HMBEEANNERARLDERBERA °
RIE—tFENAZ+—8 AEBEFTZ
WU EREREREER - HEEE
R-ZE—tERANATH - FElt - 21H
MEREREKZCHREBEE=-ZE—tHF
T B=T—HILEEFACKIEER
BHAEZECHORILEKEZT -

RER > REXFHEIZZTREIEWS
ERISEOFWT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E2—+5F
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
BiaE F&T FExT
Continuing operations RIS TS
— Trading business — B 5%EK 3,001 25,399
— Rental income — HEWA 1,334 1,684
— Interest income from — HBEEBEFEUA
money lending business 29 865
— Service income from — DEREMA
cemetery 63 —
4,427 27,948
Discontinued operation ERIEER 11
— Revenue from travel — RERIEIRE N =
agency services — 7,962
— 7,962
4,427 35,910
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5. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

140

2018
—E-N\F

5. HWA - WERERFE

2017
—E—+F

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bz FEx TExT

Interest income from banks RITFEUA 2 10
Sundry income HEIEUL A 109 21
Gain on fair value change of REWFE 2 A TEZE KRGS

investment properties 15 5,700 3,200
Gain on extinguishment of I SH AR R I 2 W as

promissory notes 26 8,487 —
Gain on derecognition of an KILER —BEHEE ATz

associate 18(a)(ii) 1,050 —
Gain on early partial redemption 12 & B @385 & 5 245

of promissory notes Z g 26 590 —
Loss on fair value change of EERAVFEFABRZZ

promissory note designated RARBZ AT ESBEER

at FVTPL 26 (2,282) -
Loss on fair value change of TTEEE— L HEZ

derivative asset — put option NFEBEEE — (8,860)
Loss on fair value change of RAREZ AT ELEEE

contingent consideration (1,832) —
Reversal of allowance for credit 2 5 EWFIEE EFERERE

losses on trade receivables 1,787 —
Impairment loss on interestin R — & A F 2R 2

an associate REEE 18(b) (2,884) —
Loss on disposal of property,  HEY¥ MEKREZ

plant and equipment K518 (384) (392)
Exchange gain/(loss), net R (B8 ) 25 739 (327)
Gain/(Loss), net W (B8 ) B8 11,082 (6,348)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂ*ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ* %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+=-A=+—ALFE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6. BRBIATEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRBIAIEIBE IR T HIE1E ¢

Discontinued operations Total
BAILEH it
2018 217 2018 2017 2018 2017

SRNE S CRtF ZRNE CREF CRNFE SRR
HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00D  HK$000  HK$000
T#n TER Thn TR Thn

(a) Finance costs RERA
Interest on finance leases HERNZRIE 7 23 - — 2 2
Interest on promissory notes RAZEZHE 3925 7975 - — 3925 7975
Interest on convertible notes TEREEZAE 5,958 13,965 - — 5,058 13,965
Interest on borrowings REZHE 5,555 5070 - = 5,555 5070
15,465 21,033 - — 15,465 21,033
(b) Staff costs (including Directors' ~ BIRA
remuneration) (BFESHE)
Contributions to defined contribution  EEE{XERIKG E2 2
retirement plans 264 322 - I 264 329
Social securiy costs HERERA 39 82 - 2 39 104
Salaries, wages and other benefits %4 + TEREMER 10,431 12,465 - 336 10,431 12,801
10,734 12,869 - 365 10,734 13,234
(c) Otheritems AhER
Depreciation & 2879 2,939 - 2 2879 2959
Auditors' remuneration hemne - =
— current year —KEE 791 699 - - 791 699
Operating lease charges in respect of #1142 EEHE
propery ental % 1480 2410 - . 1480 2410
Amortisation of intangible assets M EEEH 2,808 3834 - 39 2,808 3873
Impairment losses on &R
intangible assets HEER 7317 = - = 7347 =
Costs of inventories BERA 2,201 25314 - 3 2201 25,314
Direct outgoings frominvestment B4 HEMA 2 RENE2
properties that generated rental ~ ELEER
income 119 201 - - 119 201
Direct outgoings for investment ~ ERZERENEL
properties that were vacant BEEX
during the year 85 - - — 85 -
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7. TAXATION 7. BiE
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) mEBEFERAZFHIER
represents:
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
BERERY BALEK At
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\f Bt ZB-\f ZEB-t§ ZB-\f CELF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TARL TEL THAL TAL TAL TEL
Current tax EBiE
—Hong Kong Profits Tax - &B7I1EH 7 - - — 7 =
— PRC Enterprise -HERE
Income tax Frg - - - - - -
— Turkey Corporate -THHG¥
Income Tax Frig®t — — - — - —
7 - - - 7 -
Deferred tax credit ELHIERS (10) - - = (10) -
Tax credit HEEs (3) — - = (3) -

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been calculated at 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong for both years. PRC subsidiaries are subject
to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for the year (2017:
25%). Turkey subsidiaries are subject to Turkey Corporate
Income Tax at 22% for the year (2017: 20%).

ERNEHRZMEFEREBELE
HETEEFR AN 2165% (= ZE—+
F 116.5%)5TE - F7 > FEKMBL
BEBPETCEMSHER2%(ZF
—t&F 125%) c FR - TEEKMBA
AEBLEENCERBHA22%(=ZF
—tF 1 20%) °
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7. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 7. BIE(E)
(b) The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss (b) FRABEEREASBRRATERH
before taxation per consolidated statement of profit or BB ZHERNT

loss as follows:

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
FESEXY BRIEEE a3t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

B\  ZE-tf ZE-\f ZE-tf CE-\f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Thx ThT T FHT T

(Loss)/profit before taxation BEiA (58) /&R (113,446) (69,329) - 580 (113,446) (68,749)
Taxation charge at the ERETIEH

Hong Kong Profits Tax rate $i%16.5%

of 16.5% STERERY (18,718) (11,439) - % (18,718) (11,343)
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses R ATHIE B 2 Hi%

ge 15,910 9,751 - 36 15,910 9,787

Tax effect of non-axable BERBMA 2Bt

income ye (1.194) (1616) - (147) (1,194) (1763)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not ~ RERABFEHEREZ

recognised finse 4,495 3,466 - 2 4,495 3489
Under-provision in respect of prior years BAEERETE 7 = - — 7 =
Effect of different tax rates HEAFREL

of subsidiaries operating in other AEERSE,

juisdicions Hrzaye (503) (16) - @) (503) (170)
Actual tax credits ERBUEES () = - = () -
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIBEB D TRMGZEI83(1E - 2F(KE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies EEFEER) RHIFE2HRGEM MR A
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) B EEMEWT ¢

Regulation and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
He o R IR
EEHe REYFR HE-EE st
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
i3 TAET TER TR FTER
2018: —E-N\F:
For the year ended BE-EZ-N\F
31 December 2018: +-A=t+—-RLEFE:
Executive Directors BTEE
Hung Tat Chi Alan HEE () — 830 18 848
Ling Ko Yin Jason HER — 120 6 126
Chan Ming Kei BREEE (ii) — 45 2 47
Non-executive Director ~ FEHTES
Chan Wai Kit BREH (iv) 120 — - 120
Independent BIEHT
Non-executive E=
Directors
Choy So Yuk 2ZF 120 — — 120
Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MER 120 — — 120
Leung Man Chun Ryfa 120 — — 120
480 995 26 1,501

144  EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  KEEBERERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) 8. EEM=2#E)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits scheme
fees inkind  contributions
HE R BR
E=HE  KEYFZ s EIfER
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
wit Ti87 T8 T8
2017: - Sl of - 3
For the year ended HE-E—+F
31 December 2017: +t=B=+—HLEE:
Executive Directors BTER
Hung Tat Chi Alan HEE (i) 641 — 18 659
Ling Ko Yin Jason HER 120 — 6 126
Chan Ming Kei FREgE (i) 960 — 18 978
Biilent Yenal Biilent Yenal (i) — = = =

Non-executive Director ~ FHITES

Chan Wai Kit BRIZEE (iv) 71 — — 71
Independent BIEHT

Non-executive S

Directors
Choy So Yuk ExF 120 — — 120
Lam Yuk Ying Elsa MER 120 — — 120
Leung Man Chun R 120 — — 120
Chan Kwan Chung RS & (v) 20 — — 20

2,172 — 42 2,214

Notes: Miat -

(i) Hung Tat Chi Alan, appointed as alternative director to Biillent Yenal on () HEER-Z-—"F-AB+—BEZEA
11 January 2016, appointed as executive director on 22 March 2017 Biilent YenalZVIBESE - R=ZZT—t&F=H
and resigned as alternate Director to Biilent Yenal on 14 June 2017. —tT_REZEAYTES AR=ZF—+tF

A+ EBHEBilent Yenal 2R IEES

(i) Chan Ming Kei, resigned as executive director on 15 January 2018. (i) FRBER-Z—N\F-A+EAREHITE

=o

(i) Bulent Yenal, resigned as executive director on 14 June 2017. (i) Bulent YenalA=—Z—t %A+ ABEH

TE=E -
(iv) Chan Wai Kit, appointed as non-executive director on 29 May 2017. (iv) REAR-Z—tFER-+NBEZEAH
HITES -

(v) Chan Kwan Chung, appointed as independent non-executive director (v) BREBEAR=ZE—tFE-—FB—REZTABIHE
on 1 January 2017 and resigned as independent non-executive HITEE BR=ZE—tF=F—HBMIBXL
director on 1 March 2017. IEHITES o
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

There was no amount paid to any directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. Save for the above, there was no arrangement under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of those persons’ other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five individuals with the highest
emoluments, one (2017: two) are directors, whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments for
the five individuals are as follows:

8. EEM=#®)

BERTMAESZSEMARE  EABE
INEEZAR EEE SR A I R AN S [ B 2 B B S AF
BEREE  BREXFIEN  BEZE
—NER-_F—+tF+ZA=+—HIHF
B HEEZEENEIEERETANES 2
ZH o

AEBHTESZN2FHT - ZHREY
MBEDRBKERE AR REMBRREH
EERHEz AMRB M SHERZ —
REE -

REHMAL
FEREHFMAL 2P —B(ZZ—LF

MB)RES  REZHERMIESIKE -
FEANLZERENT ¢

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—t5F
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET
Salaries and other emoluments HE R EHMNE 3,447 3,434
Retirement scheme contributions ERIRETEIHR 63 69
3,510 3,503

The emoluments of five (2017: five) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,000 to HK$2,000,000

Z%1,000,000/% 7T

ER(ZE—tF  AB)BEHFMALZ
& F AT EE -

2018 2017

S = =
Numbers of Numbers of
individuals

individuals

AR AE

1,000,0005% T £2,000,0005% 7T 1 1

10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss for the year attributable to shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of HK$105,087,000 (2017: loss
of HK$66,961,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 11. BRIEEK

Argos Group

On 8 May 2017, the Company disposed of its entire equity
interest in Argos (China) Investment Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Argos Group”). With effect from completion of the disposal,
the Group will cease to case to carry on the business of travel

HEEEH

REZZB—tFHANR AQFHEHER
S (FEREEZRERIAREKEA
A(EsEE ) 22HKRE BHESHE
FERENGE - AREN T BRSERERE

agency services.

Profit from discontinued operations

The analysis of the profit from the Argos Group presented as
discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” is as

follows:

e

[BEJIE 5 52

RIBE B RS LR ESRFFFEHE
FRBEERCKLEREXL ZIREL
IERB 2 HSEBENDHTNT

Argos Group
EeEE
2017

=Bt
HK$’000
FHx

Profit for the year from discontinued FRELAL

operations Sy
Revenue g 4 7,962
Cost of sales SHERA (7,453)
Gross profit EF 509
Other income HA A 15
Operating and administrative expenses KERITHRX (834)
Loss before taxation from discontinued RECKIEFEZ

operations MRERIE1E (310)
Taxation Hig =

Loss from discontinued operations recognised in

REEERRERRE

the consolidated statement of profit or loss ERIEKZEE (310)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHE ARz s 33 890
580
Profit attributable to: BUT A LRGSR
Shareholders of the Company FIN/NE ) 571
Non-controlling interests IR R 9
580
Net cash generated from operating activities KETEBE
REFEE 890
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12. LOSS PER SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the shareholders of the Company is based on

the following data:

Continuing and discontinued operations

12. SREHE

AR TR AL S IR A R AR 12
AT BUEE -

FRKEXBRERIEERRE

2018
—E-N\F

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
T

HK$’000
FTERT

(Loss)/earnings

(Loss)/earnings for the purposes of
basic and diluted loss per share
(Loss)/earnings for the year
attributable to the shareholders
of the Company)

(&8) BF
AEBREARBEHRNS
2 (E18R),BR(ERRRER
FEALAFE (B518),BF)

— from continuing operations —REFESEER (105,087) (67,532)
— from discontinued operations —REBKIEEK - 571
Loss for the purposes of basic and MERER
diluted loss per share R#EEEMNE 2 B8 (105,087) (66,961)
2018 2017
—B-N\F —B—tF
’000 shares ’000 shares
T TR
Number of shares REE
Weighted average number of share for FEREARREEHEMNS 2
the purposes of basic and diluted B4 infe 98,

loss per share

1,746,992 1,606,733

BE-Z-N\ER-_Z2-tHF+ZA

The diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017 is the same as the basic earnings per share as
there were no dilutive potential shares outstanding during both
years.
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ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

12.

13.

LOSS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

From continuing operations

Loss [

Loss for the purposes of basic and BEREAREBEEEEMS
diluted loss per share ZEE
From continuing operations REIFELSEFET

12.

BREE(E)
REFELSEER

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
THx

HK$°000
TR

(105,087) (67,532)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operations

For the year ended 31 December 2018, basic and diluted
earnings per share from discontinued operation is not
applicable (2017: basic and diluted earnings per share of
HKO0.04 cent per share, based on the profit for the year ended
31 December 2017 from discounted operation of HK$571,000.)

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its business by divisions. The reportable
segments are in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group's most senior
executive management for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

In 2018, the Group had five (2017: five) continuing business
segments, namely (i) trading; (ii) property development and
investment; (iii) money lending; (iv) mobile application; and (v)
cemetery.

Travel agency services business has discontinued for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

13.

REStEEREARBEB Rz FHE
XFAERERE -

RECKRILET
HE-Z—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE "
RECKRIEERCBREAREERFI
TERA(ZE—tF . SREAREEER
AEIR0.04BM  BEZE-E—t&HF+=
B=1+—HLEFERBECRIEKZEF
571,0008 Tt &) o

okt
=
fF

W
I

BILABFIEEEER - THRED M2
REF D BERR T ERREAARE
SRTHEBAERNDREER 2T

| Ho &

QMMI

o

@ Mo

RZZE-NF > AEERELBEFEL
BEEIE(ZE—tE 7 E)  B0H)E
5 (IERBRKRE ; (iiE; (iv)F
HERARER  RV)AE -

REREBEREELSCRBE-Z—tF
+ZA=+—HIEFERIL -
Annual Report 2018 =Z—\E&E# 149



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ%ﬂﬁ#ﬁim# %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

150

()

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Trading: This segment is engaged in trading of goods
including steaming coal and chrome ore and retail trade
of window frames, doors and wardrobes. Currently the
Group's activities in this regard are carried out in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Property development and investment: This segment is
engaged in building construction, property development,
and leasing of properties. Currently the Group's activities in
this regard are carried out in Turkey and Hong Kong.

Money lending: This segment is engaged in provision of
money lending business through a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company which is a money lender licensed in Hong
Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong).

Mobile application: This segment relates to the operation
of an associate that the Group had acquired 40% equity
interest in First Surplus Investments (the “FS Group”) on
17 March 2017.

The FS Group is engaged in development of mobile
games, game publishing, applications, related intellectual
property and platform, and provision of related solutions.
FS group contains full team of development, support and
market publication. Through the acquisition, it is expected
that the Group can further develop mobile application
business and capture the opportunities in the mobile online
game industry and also the software industry.

Cemetery: This segment is engaged in the construction
and operation of cemetery. Currently the Group's activities
in this regard are carried out in the PRC.

Travel agency services: This segment engaged in
the provision of tourist routes and tour related services.
Currently the Group’s activities in this regard are carried
out in the PRC. Travel agency services business had
discontinued during the year ended 31 December 2017.

KIEEEZRBRERATF

13. DRI E (&)

)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

5 o BREEERTRENIKE
Z8m URZTEEE FIRKE-

BAT > AEEABLSEZEBR S
B R E BT o

MERBRRE : Lo BREEETF
BRE VERBRRREEHEHEYE -
Balr AREEBULTEZEHRN
TEHEREBET

A o SEBAR R R BBEAE
Bl (BB EGIFE163F)ET 2 B BIFHE
BREAZZENBARRERERE

FHRERARN  toPHEELEXRE
BR-_Z—tF=A+tHWEFirst
Surplus Investments([FSEEE 1)40%
IRfE s —EgE N EaE -

FSEEME FHIBERMME - BRI
7 FERARER - HEAREERTE
LR REHERABIRT R - FSEE
BETENRE BERTEERGE
B BBZWBEE - AHRAKET
E-SRREFERERREAER - WM
EFRERBERITRUARKAFITEZ
BB o

DE WO BRBEEREENE -
BAl - ARBABLESEZEHRF
BHETT ©

REARERE : D3RR MR
BRGRIRFERERE - BA 0 AEE
BT EZEERPBEEST o ki
REBREXEBECREBEZE-ZE—+t&F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂ*ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ* %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+=-A=+—ALFE

13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D ERE (&)
Segment revenue and results PEM R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results DTAREERARELE D IE D 2 W
by reportable and operating segment: wmREEDW

2018
Z2-)\f
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
FESERH BRLERH
Property
development Travel
and Money Mobile agency
Trading  investment lending  application Cemetery Sub-total services Total
NEBER
g3 R HE FHERES A& N HRERERE azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tin TEn TR Tn TR Tn TR Tn
Segment revenue from PPEE A BE
external customers 3,001 1,334 29 - 63 4421 - 4421
Segment loss AER (1,866) (6,090) - (3,564) (78,654) (90,174) - (90,174)
Unallocated corporate income FABDAMA 11,082 - 11,082
Unallocated corporate expenses FABAARE (18,889) - (18,889)
Finance costs RERR (15,465) - (15,465)
Loss before taxation REAEE (113,446) - (113,446)

2017
3-t%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
By ERLER
Property
development Travel
and Money Mobile agency
Trading investment lending application Cemetery Sub-total services Total
NEFER
g5 Re HE  FREREN NE Nt BRER st
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK§'000 HK$1000 HK§'000 HK$1000
Fn TEn Thn TEn Tin TEn TEn Tén
Segment revenue from MPEE A BE
external customers 25,399 1,684 865 - — 27,948 7,962 35,910
Segment (loss) profit AB(EE) /%R (3141) 3,381 854 (5,138) (6,821) (10,865) 580 (10,285)
Unallocated corporate income AABAARA 31 - K
Unallocated corporate expenses FABAARE (31462) - (31462)
Finance costs RERR (27,033) - (27,033)
Loss before taxation REAEE (69,329) 580 (68,749)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D HHRE (&)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) DI E R EE(E)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the BED W2 EETBEREMEE2(ab)fTil 2 4
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note SEEETBERAER - 9 (EE) Tl
2(ab). Segment (loss)/profit represents the (loss from)/profit B EREL (BB) s L&Y
earned by each segment without allocation of central corporate BEARRATWMAURBEASZREERAR « It
income and expense and finance costs. This is the measure DEESTHREEASREUEERDE
reported to the most senior executive management for the RERBFGFAAZTER o
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities DTAREEZURELLE I 2E
by reportable and operating segments: ERBED:
Segment assets Segment liability
PHEE AHEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\f “ELF ZB-N\F “EiF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TR THT
Continuing operations FRISEER
Trading g5 11,904 28,222 (2,350) (1,431)
Property development and investment ~ MJ¥RERIZE 168,056 117,007 (7,109) (726)
Money lending BE 1,041 2,290 (999) (972)
Mobile application FHRERRRX 68,533 72,287 - -
Cemetery N 49,817 129,005 (5,901) (5,988)
Sub-total Nt 299,351 348,811 (16,359) (9.117)
Discontinuing operations BARIEER
Travel agency services MR AR — = - -
Total segment assets/liabilities BHEE /B 299,351 348,811 (16,359) (9,117)
Unallocated corporate assets/liabilites R BAREE,/
a8 85,213 70,642 (185,162) (222,995)
Consolidated assets/ liabilities GREEE/BE 384,564 419,453 (201,521) (232,112)
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D ERE (&)
Other segment information Hith 5 E &R
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REERY BRLEER
Property
development Travel
and Mobile Monay agency
Other segment information investment  application Trading lending Cemetery  Unallocated Sub-total i Total
VIESES S ]
EfAHER kRE  ERER g3 Hi& DE AR At ¢ szt
Year ended 31 December 2018 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZE-N\EtA=t-BLEE THn Thn TEn TR Thn Tin TEn TR Tn
Amounts included in the EOVEES ERE
measure of segment result TRZEH:
or segment assets:
Addition to plant and equipment RERERRE 261 - 21 - 152 139 m - m
Depreciation if £ - b)) - 258 2526 2879 - 2879
Amortisation e - - - - 2,808 - 2,808 - 2,808
(Gain on fair value change of RENFATELINE
investment properties 5,700 - - - - - 5,700 - 5,700
Interests in associates REEDAZ RS 8,708 65,649 - - - 3,031 71,388 - 71,388
Share of loss of associates MEBELTEE 2,201 3,563 - - - - 5,790 - 5,790
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
HELERH BRLER
Property
development Travel
and Mobile Monay agency
Other segment information investment  application Trading lending Unallocated Sub-fotal service
IEEES i
En s kiR R g i AR Nt RERE
Year ended 31 December 2017 HK§'000 i HK$'000 HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BECB-tEtA=T-ALEE TR BT TR TR Tén 7 TR
Amounts included in the EOVEES ERE -1
measure of segment result HEZEE:
or segment assets:
Addition to plant and equipment FERERRE 187 - - - 5673 4,366 10226 2% 10,250
Depreciation E 1407 - - - 236 1,296 2,939 2 2,959
Amortisation & - 351 - - 3,522 — 3873 - 3873
(Gain on fair value change of RENFATELSNE
investment properties 3,200 — — — — — 3,200 — 3,200
Interests in associates REENRzER 45716 72,09 3,000 = = = 120,812 = 120,812
Share of profit of associates HMEBE DR AR (1,394) 2390 - - - - 996 - 996
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13. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 13. D ERE (&)
Geographical Segments WED I
The Group operates in three principal geographical areas — REERTE BERTEHE=ZFEFEH
the PRC, Hong Kong and Turkey. The following table provides BRE - TRARMEHI ZAEERE
an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external customers IMEPEFZWARERBEED

and non-current assets by geographical location:

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REMBEFZBA FRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—B-N\E “E—tF “E-N\F “E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR TR THx
Continuing operations BEREEY
—PRC — HE 684 25,399 46,399 126,441
— Hong Kong — 58 3,523 2,549 174,621 178,143
— Turkey —tEH 220 — 139,197 57,626
4,427 27,948 360,217 362,210
Major customers FERFE
The information in respect of the Group’s sales attributable to RNABREERNEBREFTERFELAREF
the major customers during the financial year is as follows: ZIHEREERHEYWMT :

Percentage of
the group’s total sales

HEEEZEDL
BEHER
2018 2017
—2-N\fF —B—+tfF
The largest customer 54% 48%
BAEF
Five largest customers in aggregate 94% 96%
BREF ZHBM
At no time during the year have the directors, their associates KRR ZES - BEZHBBALTHEAR
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge RBESHEEARRRS%E EITRM
of the directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued UEzRR)VBERFANTAREREETZE
shares of the Company) had any interest in these major FEEF 2R
customers.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BMERRE

Furniture,
Landand  Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Construction
Building improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HENE f
1HEEF ®  RERRE AE HREIR @t
HK§'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tén Thn T Tin
Cost: HA
At1 January 2017 WZE-tE-B-A 44,763 2,061 1,650 5,079 3,290 56,343
Additions RE - 519 3,069 1,441 5,221 10,250
Disposals HE - — (765) (4,00) — (4,865)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENEAF - (317) (428) (455) — (1,200)
Exchange adjustments B - 3 pil 62 (805) (7119)
At31December2017and  WZE-tETZA=1-A
at 1 January 2018 R=%-NE-F-H 44,763 2,266 3,547 2021 7,706 60,309
Additions HE — 116 251 - 151 518
Addition through business ~ EBSEREH 2
combination achieved EBAHAE
in stages 84 — 177 — — 261
Disposals e - (457) (264) . . )
Exchange adjustments B 1 = 7 (54) (403) (439)
At 31 December 2018 RIB-NETZA=1-H 44,858 1,925 3,718 1,973 7454 59,928
Accumulated depreciation and Z3HTER
impairment; WA
At 1 January 2017 W=E-tE-B-8 723 266 921 1,121 — 3,031
Charge for the year ERg 6(c) 1408 348 617 586 = 2,959
Witenbackon disposels ~~ HEHEE - - (110) (956) . (1,068)
Disposal of subsicaries HEREAT - (107) (3%4) (344) . (845)
Exchange adjustments EiA% - 4 14 2 - 3
At31December 2017and  M=E-tE+ZA=1-A
at1 January 2018 R=E-NE-F-H 2,131 511 1,048 425 - 4115
Charge for the year EhxH 6(c) 1512 368 660 339 — 2879
Written back on disposals HERED — (90) (247) - - (337)
Exchange adjustments B 1 = 6) (24) = (29)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=1-A 3,644 789 1,455 740 — 6,628
Carrying amount; HEE:
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NETZA=1-H 4214 1,136 2,263 1,233 745 53,300
At 31 December 2017 REB-tE+ZA=1-H 42,632 1,755 2499 1,602 7,706 56,194
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14.

15.

156

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The land and building are situated in Hong Kong and are held
under medium term leases. The land and building has been
pledged as security for a borrowing granted to the Group
amounting HK$29,500,000 as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: HK$26,000,000) (note 24).

14. Y% - BERRE(E)

T EBFEARESE  BUTHEAEE
B -RZEBE-—N\E+ZA=+—H B&
1 1 i 2 12 F LUE IR {5 § 29,500,000 7T
(Z2B—t&+=A=+—8 : 26,000,000
Br) (MiEE24) ©

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BEW
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tHF
Investment Investment
properties properties
REYFE Se=LYES
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
Kt FET FET
As at 1 January ®n—A—H 55,100 51,900
Additions through business FBBRDPEERERZ
combination achieved in stages EKSOHRE 32 83,044 =
Gain on fair value change of REMFEZATE
investment properties Pl 5 5,700 3,200
Exchange adjustments ERTIES 10,883 —
As at 31 December RT+=ZBA=+—H 154.727 55,100

Investment properties represent 1 commercial unit located in
Hong Kong and 14 residential units and 2 commercial units
located in Turkey.

The fair value of the investment property located in Hong Kong
at 31 December 2018 has been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that day by International Valuation
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer that is not
connected with the Group.

The fair value of the investment properties located in Turkey
at 31 December 2018 have been arrived at on the basis of a
valuation carried out on that day by RM Ritim Gayrimenkul
Degerleme A.S. (“Ritim”), a real estate valuation company
based in Istanbul, Turkey. Ritim is an independent qualified
professional valuer that is not connected with the Group.

The fair values of investment properties in Hong Kong and
Turkey are determined based on the “Direct Comparison
Method”, where the value is assessed by reference to the
comparable properties of similar size, character and location,
factoring in all the respective advantages and disadvantages
of each property in order to arrive at the comparison of capital
value.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiESEEZERBER AR

REMEEUREB 2 1EREBVRUR
TEHZ4EEEEMR2EMEEN -

RURBBZREYEMS  R=F—-)N
F+=ZA=+—B  HATVEREAEE
Rig:3op o VA= g e ST S
HERDBEZ A 2 (GEEE -

RURTEH2REMEMS R=F
—N\FE+ZA=+—H HAF¥EHRLE
HEHHAMAE 2Bt EHEATRM Ritim
Gayrimenkul Degerleme A.S.([Ritim 1)1%
ZH 2 H{EEE o RitimB 2N 5 @10 R
B2 BN S EREEMGER
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REWHE(E

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes were
measured using the fair value model and were classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s investment property located
in Hong Kong with carrying amount of HK$60,800,000 has been
pledged to secure a borrowing granted to the Group amounts
to HK$29,500,000 (31 December 2017: HK$26,000,000) (note
24).

The carrying amounts of the Group’s investment properties
comprise:

Investment properties: BREYE :
Hong Kong BB

FAEBERANEERER WA ST
BERTHEZMEDUAFERNFTE - B
ERID/RARIMERENE -

RZZE-NE+=ZA=+—8  AEFIK
1 BRHI{E 560,800,000 T 2 U REB 2
REYELUEREE29,500,0008 T (=&
—tF+=HA=+—8 : 26,000,000/&7T)
(FffzE24) °

REEZREYEREERRE

2018 2017
—EB-N\F

—E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THx

Commercial unit [HEX:4 60,800 55,100
60,300 55,100

Turkey TEH
Commercial units BB 32,086 =
Residential units 1FEEN 61,841 —
93,927 —
154,727 55,100

The fair value measurements for all of the Group’s investment
properties are categorised as level 2. The following table
gives information about how the fair values of the investment
properties as at 31 December 2018 are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements
are categorised level 2 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements is observable.

FEBRBRENEZ A TFEFEEDE
REZR - TREBENANEERENER
“E-NFt+ZA=+—-HZAVEZE
BB R AT RM R AR 2@ ARE) -
URREAFEFEMABB 2 TERRE
EsBAVHEFEMBAFESRR/E
o
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REYE(E)
Valuation Significant Relationship of
Fair value technique & unobservable unobservable
Properties hierarchy key input inputs inputs to fair value
EERTR ERTABRE THREGABE
M AVEER IERARE BABE BAVEZBE
Investment Level 2 Direct comparison Price per square foot, using A slight increase in the price
properties — located method market direct comparable  per square foot will increase
in Hong Kong and taking into account  significantly the fair value
The key input is price location and other individual
per square foot factors such as age and

location of the property,
approximately HK$26,400
per square foot as at 31
December 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$23,905
per square foot)

RENE-UREE FR HiEREE FNETSEENELEYEY SEHREREYEHAEAR
st R i B R A A B R = EmMAFE
TERASBEASTS  (fluyENERRIE)E
REH H2BFHRER  BIR=
E-N\F+=-HA=1+—-HE
T HR#A26,4008 T (=
—tF : BEAHRE23,905
BT)
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iR eI H R
iy = H For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\FE+=ZA=+—HILFEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REWHE (&

Valuation Significant
Fair value technique & unobservable
Properties hierarchy key input inputs

EERMK EXFTEE
IES AVEER EIERARE BARE

Relationship of
unobservable
inputs to fair value
THREGAYE
BEAVEZBE

Investment Level 2 Direct comparison For commercial units, price
properties — located method per square meter, using
in Turkey market direct comparable
The key input is price and taking into account
per square meter location and other individual

factors such as age and
location of the property with
square meter ranging from
TL 28,250 to TL 40,500

per unit as at 31 December
2018.

For residential units, price
per square meter, using
market direct comparable
and taking into account
location and other individual
factors such as age and
location of the property with
square meter ranging from

TL12,500 to TL26,500 per
unit as at 31 December
2018.
REME-VRIEE F=H HEREE PEEENmE  FIATEE
BEAEL BTt Rt
FTE@AZIEA R E b fERIE = (flany
FYHKER ZERRME)EH2EY

FRER  R=E—N\F
+=A=t—-HEBELE¥
FkAF28,250+ EHEH
Z40,500tEEHEH o

BEBENMES  MATSEE
ER B EDTT R it 2
R E BRI E = (flany
ZERRME)SE2EY
FRER  BRZE-NF
+=B=t—-HBBEu8¥
FANF12,500tEEEH
£26,500tFEHEH -

A slight increase in the price
per square foot will increase
significantly the fair value

BEAREREN EABAIE
EIMAFE
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15.

16.

160

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 15. REYE (&)
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December BE-_Z—-\HE+-A=+—HKR=F
2017, there has been no change to the valuation techniques —+tF+Z A=+ —HLFE  HERM
and there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2, or WMESE > TMIERE—RRFE-_HK2HE
transfers into or out of level 3. ER REAREHE=R -
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER CONSTRUCTION 16. f 2 EW#E
The investment properties under construction represents EEREVERNNRIEHEEEEE
residential units under construction located in Turkey and were N BRZE—NFTA—BEBRIBER
acquired through business combination achieved in stages, ERL 2 AU EE (RIRE32) ©
see note 32, on 1 October 2018.
Note HK$’000
Kz FET
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE—N\F—F—H -
Addition through business combination BROERERZ
achieved in stages EESHRE 32 29,667
Construction costs incurred during the year REEFEEZBERAK 2,439
Exchange adjustments [E 5 2,915
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZBE—-NE+=A=+—H 35,021
As at 1 October 2018, the fair values of investment properties R-ZE-—NFE+HA—H TEEREYHEZ
under construction have been arrived at on the basis of AFVEHETIEEFIMERCEHEGERD
a valuation carried out on that day by Ritim, a real estate ARitiMIZZ B 2 G EEE - RitimAHERE
valuation company based in Istanbul, Turkey. Ritim is an B EEE 2B A EREELERD -
independent qualified professional valuer that is not connected
with the Group.
Subsequent to the initial recognition, additions of construction BRERE  TEREYEZIIZESERR
costs to the investment properties under construction is RIGIERAENER ©

accounted for by cost method.
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Travel Operating
agency Operating rights of
licenses rights cemetery Total
iz NE
REHR RER ZREE Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL TR Ti#n
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hiza) (Hizkb)
Cost: A
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tE-B-H 965 30,000 118,000 148,965
Disposal through disposal of ERLENBARLE
subsidiaries (965) — — (965)
At 31 December 2017, RZB-tF+Zp=t-H"
1 January 2018 and “2-N\5-f-HEK
31 December 2018 “F-\&+ZA=1-H — 30,000 118,000 148,000
Accumulated amortisation Rt
and impairment loss: RAEEE :
At 1 January 2017 RZE—tE-B-H 965 29,649 — 30,614
Impairment loss HEEE 6(c) — - — —
Charge for the year FRYH 6(c) — 351 3,522 3,873
Release through disposal of BRLENBAREE
subsidiaries (965) — — (965)
At 31 December 2017 and R=B—t&
at1 January 2018 TZR=t-HkK
“E2-\f¥-A-H — 30,000 3,522 33,522
Impairment loss HEES 6(c) - - 73,171 73171
Charge for the year FRZHE 6(c) — — 2,808 2,808
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\E
TZA=1-H — 30,000 79,501 109,501
Carrying amount; REE:
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\E
+-H=t-H — — 38,499 38,499
At 31 December 2017 RIB—tE
+-RA=+-8 — — 114,478 114,478
Notes: HiaE -
(a) Operating rights of a mobile game apps, which was acquired through (a) ZEBRWIE—BMEARBE2FHERERRE
acquisition of a subsidiary, represent the PRC operating rights of NEEREEBRI NMERE 2 FHIBRIERRE
a mobile game app of the name “Ninja in Barrel”. The useful life of NZHPERERE ZRERZFEAFHA=
operating rights is 3 years. Fo
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)
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Notes: (Continued)

(b)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

The operating rights of cemetery were issued by the relevant
authorities in Henan for the legal right to operate a cemetery in
Zhecheng county (“Cemetery”). The corresponding operating permit is
renewable every year at minimal costs that the Group would renew the
permit continuously and has the ability to do so. The useful life of the
Cemetery will end on 1 July 2050.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group performed
impairment review for the operating rights based on cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets for the period
of the useful life of the Cemetery approved by management using
discount rate of 23% which reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the operating rights.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, for the purpose of the
impairment review for the operating rights, the Group has engaged an
independent valuer, International Valuation Limited, to assess the fair
value of the operating rights.

As at 31 December 2018, the recoverable amount of the operating
rights has been determined from the value in use calculations by
taking into account the cash flow forecasts that based on the most
recent financial budgets for the period of the useful life of the Cemetery
approved by management using discount rate of 23% which reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the operating rights.

As at 31 December 2018, the recoverable amounts of the operating
rights approximates to HK$38,499,000 which is lower than the
carrying value by HK$73,171,000. On this basis, an impairment
loss of approximately HK$73,171,000 on the operating right was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: nil) due to (i) parts of related facilities
had been under construction which affected the sales process and
(ii) certain unfavourable business condition were identified. Details
of the Cemetery business operation, please refer to page 15 in the
Management Discussion and Analysis section.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
operating rights. The growth rates are by reference to industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and expectations of future changes in the market.

KIEEEZRBRERATF

17. BV EE (&

Brat - ()

(b)

DNELLER TR ARBEER - LUEREE
EARARGRKERE(RE]) - HEEER
URSFREERAEN  mAKESSLE
BENEHFFAE - RECEAFHNESR
ZELA-RAL-

REBE-Z—+tF+-A=+—HLEEFE &K
SEEZHECLRETRERS  RERBRE
HEEEEEC A EFRERIEIEEE
ZEESREFARME » BIRER23%  REE
BhisHeRERAE TR EEEEEY
BERE o

REBZE-Z—\F+-B=+—HLEE A&
IS REETRERN  AEBCRBEB LG
EMBEEEAERAR - ML AT
ﬁo

RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H  KERZATR
O $FREREENEEE - EPERRER
TR EEERAEU 2% R EAE ZNEME
AENHBMEAE CRERETAR - ZHL =X
KRR TISE S B EE AR EEE
ERZBERR -

R-B-NE+=-B=+—0 &&Ezq
B £ 584 £38,499,000/8 T » BRIREER
73,171,000/8 T - LI E®E > CREZE=Z
—N\FE+ZA=t+-BLEETERRERES
B E R RERIELNT3,171,0008 T (=&
—t&F &) RRA : ()BoEEREEE
o BEEERR R(iHBERETANE
MR - R EBEAREREEZREREE R
RD#EE158 ©

EREEFECEZBRAERNAEERE
BERACBRE BRERERSEZBER -
EEERARRRETSE S REREZTME
LR AREEE2SERB ZHATLLR - (5T
BRI o MERBEENBRIFAEL - EE
REERAZCRBEBIEMERE TS RRE
L2 TAHME -
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

18. REEZE N B 2R

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—E—+5F
HK$’000
FEx

HK$’000
FiEx

Unlisted shares, at cost REBRS - BAEA (a),(b) 114,501 114,501
Bargain purchase on acquisition of PUEE—EBE AR
an associate ETERBWE 2,416 2,416
Share of post-acquisition gain/(loss) MEWEER KR
and other comprehensive income/ (E518) RINBRR E%
(expense), net of dividend Hft2EWA
(Fx%) (12,139) 895
Acquisition of 30% equity interest in s BE — & A F130%
an associate PR (c) 29 —
Derecognition of interest in an associate 7B ERIZRL 2 375
resulting from business combination EHEEARILER
achieved in stages R—EEE AT
2w (a)(ii) (27,566) —
Impairment loss on interest R AR 2R
in an associate B EEE (b) (2,884) —
74,357 117,812
Amount due from an associate FEUR — B E = A B FIE (d) 3,031 3,000
77,388 120,812

(a) Boyraci Construction
(i) Acquisition of 30% equity interest in 2016

Pursuant to the sales and purchase agreement
entered into between Ottoman Evershine insaat
Proje Ticaret Anonim Sirketi (“Ottoman Evershine
Construction”), a company incorporated in Turkey
and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Mr. Osman Boyraci on 7 December
2016, Ottoman Evershine Construction acquired
30% of the equity interest of Boyraci Yapi insaat ve
Taahhlt Gayrimenkul Yatirim Anonim Sirketi (“Boyraci
Construction”), a company incorporated in Turkey and
is specialised in elite urban transformation projects
and earthquake resistant buildings, at a consideration
of USD5,780,000 (equivalent to HK$ 44,795,000)
satisfied by a promissory note of principal amount
of USD5,780,000 (equivalent to HK$ 44,795,000)
issued by the Company on 30 December 2016 with
interest rate of 5% per annum and maturity date on 30
December 2018. The acquisition was completed on 30
December 2016. Upon acquisition, a bargain purchase
of HK$2,416,000 was recognised.

(a) Boyraci Construction
(i) R-FB—NFIRE30%KE

#R#5Ottoman Evershine ingaat Proje
Ticaret Anonim Sirketi([ Ottoman
Evershine Construction | &R+t
BEHEFMALZ AR RAATZHE
E2EME A R)EOsman Boyrac
EER_E—R"ET+ZAtHXZ
2 BB - Ottoman Evershine
Construction W & Boyraci Yapi
insaat ve Taahhiit Gayrimenkul
Yatirim Anonim Sirketi([ Boyraci
Construction]) (—ER L EHFZE
ML 2 AR » HEPIEES R
MmGEE R RIFEEFTREE)3I0%
B - 1X{85,780,000% T (FHE R
44,795,000 7T) LA AR =F
—RE+TZA=THETEAEES
5,780,000 3% 7t ( 16 %5 144,795,000
BIT) ZEREBEN - RARE
RERNZES%FTE » ARZZ—N
FTZA=+HEH - WER==
—RE+TZA=THER - i
& » TR E 82,416,000/ 7T °
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
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(a) Boyraci Construction (Continued)

(i) Acquisition of additional 30% equity interest in 2018

References is made to the announcements of the
Company dated 6 June 2017, 6 November 2017, 6
December 2017, 26 February 2018, 3 July 2018, 20
August 2018, 24 August 2018, 19 September 2018
and the circular of the Company dated 10 August 2018
and the Supplemental Circular (the “Supplemental
Circular”) of the Company dated 4 September 2018
in relation to the acquisition of an additional 30%
equity interest (the “Further Acquisition”) of Boyraci
Construction.

On 1 October 2018, all the conditions precedent
under the sale and purchase agreement have been
fulfilled and completion of the Further Acquisition of
Boyraci Construction took place on 1 October 2018
(the “Acquisition Date”). This involves (i) the issue of
Promissory Note A (PN3) with a principal amount of
USD1,938,770 on the Completion Date; and (ii) the
issue of Promissory Note B as deferred consideration
(“Contingent Consideration”) with a principal amount
up to USD1,111,230. For details, please refer to the
Supplemental Circular of the Company.

Following the completion of the Further Acquisition,
Boyraci Construction has become an indirect
60%-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its financial results, assets and liabilities will be
consolidated and accounted for as a subsidiary in the
financial statements of the Group.

On the Acquisition Date, the Group has remeasured
the previously held 30% equity interest in Boyraci
Construction (note(a)(i)) to its fair value. With the net
effect of (i) gain on remeasurement of the acquisition
date carrying value of the previously held interest in
Boyraci Construction to its fair value of approximately
HK$6,673,000, and (ii) release of exchange reserve
upon derecognition of an associate of approximately
HK$5,623,000, the Group has recognised a gain
upon derecognition of an associate of approximately
HK$1,050,000.

Details of the business combination achieved in stages
are set out in note 32.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiESEEZERBER AR

18. REHE QR 2 ()

(a) Boyraci Construction(#&)

(i) R=F—/VFRIEFFI0%KHE

ZIRAAKAT AT —tHF
/\H/\E —E2—+HF+—-AK
9 s ZEBE—+tFE+ZAKAE

—E2-N\NEZA=-+xHZ
;—)\itﬁ]—El —ZE-N
FENAZ E—NEFENA

+A8 -

“tHAR-E—NEABTA
Bz URAABBHR=
E-NFNATHZBRRAEA
AEBRA-—Z-N\FEAANAZ
HrBR((WxEE®H])  REHF
AU EBoyraci ConstructionZash
30%MAE(TE—FWBEE]) -

R=Z2—NF+HA—8 BE&EH
BIBTHAESRMRGEER &
Boyraci ConstructioniE — 5 Uk
BEBEER_-_Z—N\F+A—H
(TWERHE DS o HR3G)R
REIAEAR TR £ %851,938,770
ETNZAREBAGREERES) ;
R(i)B1ITReERS 51,111,230
ETZAREEB  EARIENRE
(THARELD - BREAFE 72
BAAR 2 HRBR

RE-—FTHBEETHE
Boyraci Constructionf{ B2~ A &)
EiEFE60%ER 2B AR
WMEMKEE - EEREBESK
EEAREB M ERRINE
FARSIE—BMEBAR -

RERE  AEBCELAREF
& Boyraci Construction 2 30%
IR (MaE@)(I) EFFFEZEA
FE FAUTEEZFZE (i)
# 5% B ABoyraci Construction
ZHEGNRWEBHZREESEHN
FEEERABZATEREDN
6,673,00008 70 ; B (il & 1L # 52
— e ’Z\\THT#iélilEF’MEH%%’J
5,623, 000/§7E A EER
%iﬁﬁiﬂ—ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@ﬁzqﬂéﬁ’ﬂ
1,050,00058 JT °

DERRERCEBEHZFBHR
FRBIEES2 ©
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18. REEZE N B 2R ()

(b) The FS Group (b) FS&EE

18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

On 17 March 2017, the Group, through Ottoman Evershine
Holdings Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary (the “FS
Purchaser”), acquired 40% equity interest in First Surplus
Investment Limited (“FS Group”) from independent third
parties (the “FS Vendors”) at a nominal consideration of
HK$80,000,000 (the “FS Consideration”).

Pursuant to the agreement for sale and purchase dated
20 January 2017 entered into between the FS Purchaser,
the FS Vendors and the Company (as the “FS Guarantor”)
in relation to the FS Acquisition (the “FS Acquisition
Agreement”), the FS Consideration shall be paid by the FS
Purchaser to the FS Vendors (or its nominee(s)) as to: (i)
HK$30,000,000 in cash; (i) HK$50,000,000 by the issuance
of a promissory note at 6% per annum (the “FS Promissory
Note”). The principal and accrued interest thereon are
wholly repayable on the date immediate following 2 years
after the date of issue of the Promissory Note to the FS
Vendors (or their nominees) upon the completion of the FS
Acquisition (i.e. 17 March 2017).

Pursuant to the FS Acquisition Agreement, the FS
Vendors guarantee to the FS Purchaser that the audited
consolidated net profit after taxation of FS Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (“Actual Profit”) which is (i)
based on the financial statements prepared in accordance
with the HKFRS (the “Audited Financial Statements”);
and (ii) to be audited by auditor(s) assigned or agreed by
the Purchaser, shall not be less than HK$14,000,000 (the
“Guaranteed Profit”).

Pursuant to the FS Acquisition Agreement, in the event
that the Actual Profit is less than the Guaranteed Profit, the
Purchaser shall be entitled either to require the FS Vendor
to compensate in one of the following manner:

(i) compensation of amount in respect of the shortfall (the
“Compensation Sum”) calculated in accordance with
the following formula:

Compensation Sum = (Guaranteed Profit — Actual
Profit) x Guaranteed Profit

For the avoidance of doubt, the maximum amount of
Compensation Sum payable by the FS Vendor shall
be HK$50,000,000; or

RZEBE—+E=A++tH KEEE
B2EME AT Ottoman Evershine
Holdings Limited([FSE A 1) @B
HE=FH(FSEZFR |)UKEEFirst Surplus
Investment Limited([FSEE 1)40%
Bz # - & % X € A 80,000,000 7% 7T
(TFSIRED) »

RIBFSER  FSEARAQAREH
[FSIERADBFSWEEEMFRTLA
MA—Z—tF—A-+tHZEEH
Z(FSWiE=ERZE] FSERA
BFSEA(RHERBAIU () RE
30,000,00038 7T ; (i) ITERERE% 2
50,000,00058 o7& X ZE ([FSHE R E
BNZ2ARALZAFSKRE - REEEZ
AERETFEBRFSWBEETK
(I—Z2—+F=A++tRH)ENREKE
BOAAEEEARTMFEEAERD
FSEA(RERBA)ZHEER -

RIEFSUEESEER % » FSE A MFS
BHEHRE  REBEFSEEREZ
—E—+tF+ZA=+—-BLEEZ
BERGEABRBR BN (EEER )
(WAREE BB HRE LB HFR 20
BHRER((EERMBHRE ) AER
R(i)VEEBEHERSBEE X ME
) &K 14,000,0005% 7T ([R5 5%
) o

RIBFSWBSEEZ - MBERRERND
RREEF - AELSBEERFSER
T HIER -G KR E

(i) BTIIAXFERT2EZH(RE
EHRE ) F S E

R ERE=(REBRR — BBRER)
x R A
ARERRB  FSELRMREER

552 &= £ 5 FE A50,000,000%8
=12
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(b) The FS Group (Continued)

(i) FS Purchaser shall have the right during the period
from the issue of the Audited Financial Statements
to 30 June 2018 (both days inclusive) and at its full
discretion to sell the Sale Shares to the FS Vendor
at the price equivalent to the FS Consideration,
whereupon the FS Vendor shall have the obligation
to purchase the Sale Shares at such price (the “Put
Option”).

The fair value of contingent consideration assets for
acquisition of associate as at 17 March 2017 was
approximated to zero which is determined by the directors
of the company.

The fair value of the Put Option as at 17 March 2017 is
determined by the directors of the Company with reference
to valuation carried out by the Valuer and is calculated by
multiplying the value of the Put Option of approximately
HK$8,860,000 and the probability of the Put Option being
exercised of 50%.

On 23 March 2018, according to the Audited Financial
Statements received on 23 March 2018 of FS Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017, the Actual
Profit was approximately HK$15,292,000 and therefore
the Guaranteed Profit is fulfilled and the Put Option is
lapsed pursuant to the FS Acquisition Agreement. The
corresponding changes in fair value charged to income
statement accordingly.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has performed an
impairment review on its interest in the FS Group, and the
recoverable amount of it is below than the carrying amount.
As a result, the Group has recognised an impairment loss
on interest in an associate of HK$2,884,000 (2017: Nil) in
the statement of profit or loss.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiESEEZERBER AR

18. REEE N T 2= ()
(b) FSEME(#)

(i) FSELREREZENBETIRE
ERVBREREE_ZT-/\EX
A=+ HLHBE(BEEEWR)
NIZBERFSREZEREFS
BELHESERN - MFSELHK
EEBRERERBESERY
(TR ERRED) -

RIE—tF=F++tH WEKE
DEZIAREBEEZ A FEREAEAR
TESETENENE -

NZEBE—+E=ZA++tH  FhHE
ZAFEHRAQNTNESESZ(LER
BT AEABEEN IR LHEEE
#78,860,00078 JT 3k AR BRI e 1T 58
Z AR A50%ETE B ©

RIE-NE=F=+=H - RBE=
E-NF=ZA=-+=HEEZFSER
BE_Z—tHF+ZA=+—HILEF
EzREZMKEREK  BEREINNS
15,292,00058 7T » AR IEFSRBEIE
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EELM - A FEEFHOHAER KR
TR ©
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Boyraci2

On 26 February 2018, pursuant to the side letter entered
into between Ottoman Evershine Construction, Boyraci
Construction and Mr. Osman Boyraci, a property was
transferred from Boyraci Construction to a new company
i.e. Boyraci2 insaat Anonim Sirketi (“Boyraci2”). Boyraci2
was incorporated under the laws of Turkey on 27
March 2018 held by Mr. Osman Boyraci and Ottoman
Evershine Construction with 70% and 30% equity interest
respectively. Boyraci2 is an investment holding company
which holds a two-floor condominium with gross saleable
area of approximately 1,068m2. As at 31 December 2018,
the fair value of the investment property approximates to
HK$44,860,000.

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

The movements in impairment loss is summarised as
below:

18. REEZE N B 2R ()

(c) Boyraci2

RZZE-NFZHBZ+/H R
Ottoman Evershine Construction »
Boyraci Construction B2 Osman
Boyraci BT 2 ik - —IBEYI 2
FfiBoyraci Construction®EZEF#H 2
7 » BlBoyraci2 ingaat Anonim Sirketi
(IBoyraci2]) » Boyraci2iRiE t EH
EEEE-N\E=ZAZ+LtHGEM
M > 9 BIEOsman Boyracii 4K
Ottoman Evershine Constructioni¥
H70%K% 30%MR# o Boyraci2i —
REZRAR  BE—EALEREE
WBR1,08FHKRZMERE - R=F
—NE+ZA=+—0 BEYFxZ
NF{ELNEH44,860,00058 7T ©

(d) Bl —EBREXAFALHERRTF &

BREETEERY -

(e) WESEZEHMMT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FHBT

At 1 January R—A—H — —
Impairment loss recognised EHERREEE 2,884 —
At 31 December R+t=-—BA=+—H 2,884 —
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(f) Details of the associates are as follows:

Name of company

L

First Surplus Investment Limited
(FS Group)

First Surplus Investment Limited
(FS&)

Boyraci2 ingaat Anonim Sirket
(Boyraci2)

Boyraci Yap! Ingaat ve Taahhiit
Gayrimenkul Yatirm Anonim
Sirketi (Boyraci Construction)

Leading Global INC Limited
EARLR

Yongyao Technology (Jiang Xi)
Co. Ltd
KR OTE) RHARAT

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of issued/

establishment registered and
and operation paid up capital
EMEL/ RIK B&{T/ERR
mewy BaRAGE
British Virgin Islands Registered capital of USD10
ZBRLHS AMER10%T
Turkey Registered capital of TL50,000
1EH HER50,000L EEEH
Turkey Registered capital of
1HH TL21,000,000

HER21,000000L ELER

Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$1 each
& 10,000 ERAE1ET
ZEER

PRC Registered capital of
] HK$7,000,000
FMER7,000,000/8 7

KBREEZERERAT

18. REHE QR 2 ()

() BEQRZHBNT ¢

Proportion of ownership interest

Gitt -]
Group'’s effective holding
AREERER
2018 2017
“E-N\f ZE-tF
40% 40%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(Fi) (FtE)
30% -
(Indirect)
(%)
N/A 30%
TER (Indirect)
(F)
30% 30%
(Direct) (Direct)
(E) (E)
30% 30%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(Fi) (i)

Principal activity

IRRE

Mobile application
business

FREREXH

Investment holdings
REZMR

Building construction
properties development
and lease of properties

BFRE  MERER
ESiE

Investment holdings

RER

Trade of Clothing
LEEt)
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18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 18. REEZE N B 2R ()
(9) The following table illustrates the summarised financial (9) TREAASEEKRE AR 2MEHK
information of the Group’s associates: &R

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—tF

FS Group HK$°000 HK$'000
FSEHE FER FET
Assets BE 46,241 50,622
Liabilities afE 15,492 20,358
Revenue Uz 21,892 35,792
Profit gl 679 15,292
2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—tF

Boyraci2 HK$°000 HK$’000
Boyraci2 FET FET
Assets BE 47,064 N/A
Liabilities =L 18,094 N/A
Revenue Wz — N/A
Profit 7 34,669 N/A
2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—tF

Boyraci Construction HK$’000 HK$°000
Boyraci Construction FHET FHIT
Assets BiE N/A 220,624
Liabilities afE N/A 76,508
Revenue g N/A 961
Losses EE N/A 4,647

19. INVENTORIES

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E2—tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Merchandise Em 420 2,303
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁ# %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade debtors, net of allowance for

FEURERTR - HIBREERERERE

20. E5 R HEMEWRFRIR

2018
AL

HK$°000
TR

credit losses (a)&(b) (a)B®b) 2,587 12,310
Other receivables H b e FkIE 8,719 5,450
Rental and other deposits HERHMiRE 7,081 20,937
Prepayments FETRIE 1,967 1,394

20,354 40,091

(a) The following shows the trade debtors as at 31
December 2018 and 2017:

(a) TRERR=-E—N\ER=-ZE—*LtHF

T A=t - R ZEYR

2018
—g-N\%

HK$’000
TR

Trade debtors FEUSBRFR 2,611 12,310
Less: Allowance for credit losses W EEEERE (24) —
2,587 12,310
(b) Ageing analysis (b) BRERD T
The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors (net of TRETREZAMZS ZBERR

allowance for credit losses) presented based on the invoice
dates:

(HIRRMEEBIBRE) R DT -

2018
—EB-N\F

HK$’000
FERT

Within 1 month — @A A 2,399 —
More than 1 month but within BR—ERER=EAR
3 months — —
More than 3 months but within BB =18 {ERAEAR
6 months — —
More than 6 months BB NE A 188 12,310
2,587 12,310

Trade debtors are generally granted with credit terms
ranging from 30 days to 180 days. The Group may, on a
case by case basis and after evaluation of the business
relationship and creditworthiness, extend the credit period
upon customers’ requests.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e MR EME
iy = [ ] For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE=-%

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

—NE+=A=t-BLEE

20. EZ R HE M EWRIA(E)

(c) IHR(E 2 FEUWARTR
I 42 {8 1 = H B 48 F 2 B 2 FE WAk
FERER OMTANT -

2018
—B—N\fF

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
TR

HK$’000
FERT

Neither past due nor impaired BE S m R TR SR B 2,421 =

Past due but not impaired and SR ENERER
past due within 12 months BEOR+ @A 190 12,310
2,611 12,310

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Management closely monitors
the credit quality, based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

B 42 380 5 71 SR (B 2 FB WORR IR S I R
EZ R GRS TN - Jrk

SEAEEREBYEHESRS S
HAEEERFERCHZBYER
F-EBEBERERFEER &R
BELR BANMSEERLELRES
REERBESRDBAS TR
Bl WEBERRBARXSERE
R ERE - ARBELENZFER
FEEEAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂ*ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ# %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

21.

22.

172

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loan receivables arise from the money lending
business. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no loan and
interest receivables. As at 31 December 2017, loan receivable
bear interest at rates range from 12% to 16%, and with credit
periods, mutually agreed between the contracting parties. Each
customer has a credit limit. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly and handled closely by senior management.

21.

By ERRFE

AEBRBERBREXBESE - R=F
—NE+ZA=+—8  AEELEEK
ERRFE -R=_E—tF+=-A=+—
B BRERRFZENF12%E16%5
B YHTNEFHEBHEEES - 88
EFRBEEELR - BHASREASRE
BEEMRT RERE -

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
TEx

HK$°000
TR

Loan receivables R EFR — 850
Interest receivables FEYF £ — 52
— 902

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s loan receivables, which
arise from money lending business of providing personal loans
in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars with
amount of HK$850,000.

Loan receivable of approximately HK$850,000 as at 31
December 2017 are unsecured, interest-bearing and are
repayable with fixed terms agreed with customers. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at each of the reporting dates
approximate to the carrying value of the loan and interest
receivables.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.01% to 0.35% per annum (31 December 2017: 0.01% to
0.35%).

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiESEEZERBER AR

22.

R-ZE—tF+-HA=+—H ~EEE
WERAEESBRHEBAAER ZHEER
B4 LUBJTEHE » £850,00058 7T o

R=ZZF—tF+ZA=1+—H BHRER
(HREER - TERARARFHE 2B
EHIRAER) ©%850,00058 7T - RS
=R BeFERREERRERRAS
ZIRE{EMEE °

RERBEEEY
RITEBREDEFENRN F001%E

O35%E‘|‘E(:§—JC¢-|—:H 5_1__ A :
0.01%Z0.35%) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂ*ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ* %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+=-A=+—ALFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT 23. EGREHMESRBEBURAHNER
LIABILITIES

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiET FHT

Current; BNER -
Trade creditors (a) FE{SBRRR (a) 2,634 1,900
Other payables (b) HAb B FRIE (D) 3,480 7,240

Financial liabilities measured

BRBHERATEZERMEE

at amortised cost 6,114 9,140
Accrued charges EE A 1,717 1,467
Other taxes and government L e (S50 18 K BURT RS I &2

surcharges payables 2,946 —
Contract liabilities (c) & (d) EHNEE ()R () 938 —
Receipts in advance (c) TEUGRIE (c) — 14
Deferred revenue (d) IEE W (d) — 345

11,715 10,966

Non-Current: FEBNHA -

Other payables (b) HAbFESFRIE (b) 8,893 754
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled FFEE S NEMENRETAHENR—FERF
within one year or are repayable on demand. ERIREREE -

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BRERDHT

The ageing analysis of trade creditors (based on invoice FENBER (BIERERE) RREHEK

date) at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RO

2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —Z2—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000
TExT TBT

Within 1 month
More than 1 month but within

—f@A R 399 ==
BE—EAER=EAR

3 months 10 .
More than 3 months but within 6 months BB =188 BRA~EA & 59 —
More than 6 months but within 1 year #BiBEBEBR—FR 110 —
Over 1 year BB—F 2,056 1,900

2,634 1,900
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂ*ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ# %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

(b) As at 31 December 2018, approximately HK$3,301,000

(c)

(d)

(2017: HK$3,155,000) is due to Lau Yu, a former director
of the Company. The amounts are unsecured and
non-interest bearing. In which the balance of approximately
HK$ 754,000 is repayable from 2020 to 2027 and such
balance is classified under non-current liabilities.

The amounts represent prepaid service income from
customers, for which the related services are expected to
be rendered within one year from the end of the reporting
period. Receipt in advance presented in the consolidated
financial statements as of 31 December 2017 is presented
as contract liabilities under HKFRS 15 as of 31 December
2018.

The amounts represents cash receipt in advance for the
cemetery service, and the balance will be recognised as
revenue in the statement of profit or loss over the service
period. Deferred revenue presented in the consolidated
financial statements as of 31 December 2017 is presented
as contract liabilities under HKFRS 15 as of 31 December
2018.

24. BORROWINGS

174

23. %%&Eﬂﬂ@ﬁ RIBUREHNEAEE
b) A=ZE—NE+=ZBA=+—H "
# 3,301,000 T (=& — t F :
3,155,000;‘%7‘5)@1#2&'33 BIEEHN
FoZENEABIKERRE - Hd
%’1754 000B LR EN—ZE_2FE
“ECLFHEER  ZEEHRE
/)|L§1LEJET §E°
(c) EZ%%XIE?EBEE%?Z%ENHWH&A ,
%E,Hﬁﬁgqﬁﬁi%ﬂ—rg%ﬁﬁ B RS —F
AW - REZE t$+ A

(d)

L e mmazs o an
MER=B—\E+-—B=t—A%Z
SN BHEERRISRENASH

MIRER N ERE 2 AWREFE -

MRS RREBRNERERER
Alzm  REBEE-Z—tF+=A
=t -BAZHEEUBH/ERITI ZIEL
BER=-F-NF+_A=1+—H#
EBUBRREENFE1R2IHEH

afE -
24. 188

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz FEx FExT
Borrowings: BE :
Secured B
— within one year ——FR (a) — 52,000
— after one year but within two —-—FEREMER
years (b) 59,000 —
Non-secured IR 4R
— within one year e (c) 30,000 —
89,000 52,000
Less: Amount due within one year & : st ARBIEEZ—FR
shown under current liabilities B EAFRIE (30,000) (52,000)
Amount due shown under non- STAERBEEZ EIERKIE
current liabilities 59,000 —
Effective interest rate (%) ERFIZE(%) 9% to 10% Hong Kong
per annum Dollars Best

Lending Rate
plus 4.75% per

FREH annum
9%ZE10% FHERABIT
BREZF=

1n4.75%

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

24. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

On 1 September 2016, two secured and guaranteed loan facilities
of HK$26,000,000 each have been granted to the Group (the
“Borrowings”). The Borrowings were secured by (i) a corporate
guarantees for HK$26,000,000 each to be given by the Company; (ii)
an unlimited personal guarantee to be given by Mr. Hung Tat Chi Alan,
an executive Director of the Company; (iii) mortgages by the way of
first legal charge for all monies over the properties; and (iv) assignments
of rental on the properties as disclosed in notes 14 and 15. The
interest rates are 4.75% over Hong Kong Dollars Best Lending Rate
per annum.

On 20 September 2018, the Group has repaid the Borrowings in full
with the new secured and guaranteed loan facilities amounting to
HK$59,000,000 (the “New Borrowings”). The New Borrowings carry
interest rate at 9% per annum with repayment period of 16 months that
were secured by (i) first legal charges of the two properties acquired on
27 June 2016, with carrying amount of approximately HK$101,930,000
as at 31 December 2018; and (ii) an unlimited personal guarantee
given by Mr. Chiu Ngai Hung, a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Convertible note with a principal amount of HK$30,000,000 has
become due on 3 December 2018. Reference is made to the
announcements of the Company dated 16 May 2016, 3 June 2016,
21 June 2018, 28 June 2018, 3 December 2018 and 4 December
2018. The Company had not received any conversion notice from the
subscriber during the conversion period. Subsequent to the maturity
date of 3 December 2018, the convertible note shall no longer be
convertible into shares and the outstanding principal of HK$30,000,000
is derecognised as convertible note and is classified as current
borrowing as at 31 December.

The Company and the holder of the matured convertible note has
entered into a confirmation on 13 March 2019. Details refer to note
38(b).

24, BE (&)

FfEE -

(a)

(c)

RZZB-XRFHLBE—H > FEECEEMES
KRR BERERRE - MFIEA26,000,000
BT(ZEEE] - ZSEEUTIAERE
IKIF ¢ (I)ARD B BT IEA26,000,00078 T1EH
ZATER (NVEQARTESHES L
EH 2B\ ERBALER  (IVADEZFER
BEBE—EEMTZHARNERE S R(iv)E
M 14K 15BN ERSEE - ERXA
4.75% B TREERIR o

RZE-NFEAA=+H AEBEULH
£59,000,0008 TZHEREREERER
BE(HEE)BHEEZSHE - FEE
REFNFEI%E » EEHA16EA  UT5
FRAEERA (A= —ARFEXAZ+tBFFT
WiE IV EESE — L EHT  ZEWE
RZBE-NE+ZA=+—-AZKREELNS
101,930,000587C ; R(iHAQTAETERRHERK
HREEE 2B EREAER -

7K 4 %8 530,000,00058 T 2 AR EZER =
E—N\FE+ZHA=REFH - LIRMAQAT HH
BZE-—ARFREATARB - ZE—REXA=
B ZZ2-N\EXRAZ+-B  Z2—-EAX
BZ+NB ZE-N\E+ZA=AR=ZF
—NE+ZANB 22 o AR TR GBI
WEBRBHEETMALBREN - REHA
—E-N\E+ZA=ZH)% > TBRREERT
HizaBRA - mA$£%830,000,00058 TR+ =
B=+—HAALERBTREBRZEE  YH58EA
REEE ©

ARARCEHPTRREBEFBEACR -
—NEFEZA+=ZHFTIHERE - FEFIEFES
BABFEES8(D) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂ*ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ# %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 25. MEHNER
The Group’s finance leases payable are as follows: TEBEZEGREBENOT

2018 2017
ZB-N\F “B-tH
Present value of Total Present value of Total
the minimum minimum lease the minimum  minimum lease

lease payments payments lease payments payments
BEHE RIEHEE RIERE RIEAS
AREE DEEE ARARE NEEEE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Ti#n ThR TiEn TiEx

Not later than 1 year —£R 133 155 155 182
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  —F&REER 570 575 676 703
703 730 831 885

Less: total future interest expenses B RRAS A (27) (54)

Present value of lease obligations MOBEHERE 703 831
The Group entered into a finance lease arrangements to AEEFTUHERSZHURESE -
acquire a motor vehicle. The lease terms last from 2017 to EHH-ZE—tFEE-ZE-ZF IR
2020 years. At the end of the lease term of these finance ZEMEHETH o HERERE K&
lease arrangements, the Group has an option to buy the motor EEERZEREREERE - HEUES
vehicle at a nominal consideration. None of the lease contains EHAREE - ZERMEHELTHZEES

contingent rentals. The contractual interest rates of these HEFENZEEH3.5% °

finance lease arrangements are fixed, 3.5% per annum.

In addition, the Group’s obligations under finance leases are o REBzMERNGEHES BT AR
secured by the legal titles of the underlying leased assets SEz2YE - RERZRBEANAE 2HEHA
included in motor vehicle within the Group’s property, plant EEECEFERER  HRN - N\F
and equipment, with carrying amount of approximately TZA=+—BZEEENAT9I6,000/E
HK$796,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$893,000). Jt(ZZE—+t % : 893,000/&7T) °

176  EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  KBREEZERER AT
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ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

26. PROMISSORY NOTES 26. R RE
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
TFEIT
At 1 January H—HB—H (a), (b) 71,363 110,660
Promissory notes issued ERTALERE
—PN2 L (b) — 48,567
—PN3 —EEEE= () 9,162 -
Repayment EERIE (b) (10,000) (97,863)
Interest paid ERFIE (4,242) (3,063)
Interest charge FMEEHA 3,925 7,975
(Gain)/loss on early redemption RRED (W),
&8 (590) 5,087
Gain on extinguishment of R A EE 2
promissory notes & 5 (8,487) —
Loss on fair value change on EBEERATEFABRZ
promissory note designated at R ENE 2 N EEE
FVTPL EiE 5 2,282 —
Exchange adjustments b 5 % 4 —
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 63,417 71,363
Presented as: 2545 :
— current liabilities =N — 20,152
— non-current liabilities —FRBEE 63,417 51,211
63,417 71,363
Notes: Bt -
(@) On 30 November 2015, the Company issued promissory notes in the (a) R=Z—HF+—A=+H QR TELE

principal amount of HK$30,320,000 (the “PN 1”) for acquisition of entire
issue share capital of Fortune Ford Limited. The PN 1 is unsecured
and bears an interest of 2% per annum and falls due on 30 November
2016.

On 1 December 2016, the Company and the PN 1 holder agreed to
extend the maturity to 30 November 2017 with other terms remain the
same. The fair value as at the date of extension was approximately
HK$27,509,000. Hence, a gain on fair value change in relation to
the extension for the maturity of approximately HK$2,811,000 was
recognised.

On 30 November 2017, the Company and the PN 1 holder agreed
to settle HK$10,202,000 of the PN1 and extend the maturity of the
remaining balance of HK$20,118,000 to 30 November 2018 with other
terms remain the same. The fair value of PN1 is within 10% from its
present value as at 30 November 2017 thus no extinguishment is
required.

£8430,320,0008 T 2 A B EE ([ R X EE
—DUKEBEERKSERARNEIEBITRA o
ARBE-BERKE > DIRFEFR2%ETE -
WHRZEB—ARE+—B=+H2H -

RZEB-—XRFE+ZA—B  RARARARELERE
—BEARELEREHPAZE_ZT—+E+—H
=18 MEMERESTE - DFEREH
H#%27,509,00058 7T ° ALt - BIERZIEA
ERAFEZEKZENE2,811,0008 T °

AZE—+HE+—B=10  RAARRERE
E—B ABEE110,202,000/8 T AR EE
— I FE R &R T 771820,118,00058 7T 2 EI & B
2-E-\F+—-A=1+8" ﬁﬁﬁf’fﬁﬂ%?ﬂﬁ’ﬁh
T o BRHAZEE -2 A FEEHRNENR=
—tE+—-A=+HZHREZ10% " Eﬁﬂiéﬁfﬁ
Y o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

26. PROMISSORY NOTES (CONTINUED)

178

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Continued)

On 30 November 2018, the Company and the PN 1 holder entered
into an extension agreement and agreed to extend the maturity
date to 30 November 2020 (with other terms remain the same). As
of 30 November 2018, the present value of the PN1 approximates
to HK$20,520,000 and the fair value of the PN1 approximates to
HK$16,610,000. Hence, a gain on fair value change in relation to
the extension for the maturity of approximately HK$3,910,000 was
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

On 17 March 2017, the Company issued a promissory note in the
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (the “PN 2”) for acquisition of 40%
issue share capital of the FS Group. PN 2 is unsecured and it bears
interest of 6% per annum and due on 17 March 2019. The fair value
of PN 2 was approximately to its carrying value at the date of initial
recognition.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, two early partial
repayments of HK$5,000,000 each was made to the PN2 holder on 4
January 2018 and 30 November 2018 respectively.

On 21 December 2018, the Company and the PN 2 holder entered into
an extension agreement and agreed to extend the maturity date to 17
March 2021 (with other terms remain the same). As of 21 December
2018, the present value of the PN 2 approximates to HK$39,645,000
and the fair value of the PN 2 approximates to HK$35,068,000. Hence,
a gain on fair value change in relation to the extension for the maturity
of approximately HK$4,577,000 was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

On 1 October 2018, the Company issued a promissory note in
the principal amount of USD1,938,770 (the “PN 3”) for the Further
Acquisition of Boyraci Construction. The PN 3 is unsecured and bears
interest of 13% per annum and falls due on 1 October 2020.

On the date of issue, the PN 3 has been designated at fair value
change through profit or loss.

On 1 October 2018, the fair value of the PN 3 approximates to
HK$9,162,000, see note 32, and as at 31 December 2018, the fair
value of the PN 3 approximates to HK$11,448,000. The fair value
change of HK$2,282,000 and exchange adjustments of HK$4,000
have been recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

KIEEEZRBRERATF

26. REEE (F
Wi - ()

(a)

(c)

(&)

RZZB-NF+—-A=1+H > KOARERE
BB ATIERGE  RELREHAEZE
—ZE-EFE+-A=1H  MEMAGEREST
BoHE_ZT-)N\F+—A=1TH AIEEE
— 2 H{EH 520,520,000/ 7T » AL ZHE—
2N EL516,610,00058 7T  EIL - BRIIE
REMAZAFEEZBUZE£3,910,00058 T
ERIBERAER ©

R-ZZBE—tE=A+tH ADAURLEHE
50,000,000 T B THA K EZHE ([ A HEE
Z1) LRBBFSEMET #1TIRAN40% ° &
ERE_AMEIKE 0 DIR6%ENRE - AR
TE-NFZATLRAH - AREE A
FEEERISHER B2 REERS -

BEZE-\F+ZA=+—-HLEFE WE
##35,000,00058 T2 REEEIMBDIRIEC D
MR=ZE-N\F-ANAR=Z-N\F+—A4
ST HBREARRBE-FEAZN -

RZBE-N\E+ZA=+—8  RLTAREH
ER_BEAT VSRS  BAEERIEA
B2 —F=F++0  MEMKEREST
BoHE_E-)N\F+-A-+—RH EHE
B2 REHN539,645,000/87 - MARZE
2 AT{E#AE35,068,00058 7T - Bt - B
EREIHAZAFEZERZEL4,577,000%8
TEREBRERATER

R-ZZE-NF+AHA—HB  K2QFHBoyraci
ConstructionZ#E—HWIE BB TR SIS
1,938 770X T2 AR BB (R EEE=]) ©
AREE=REIEE > DIR13%FRETE
BR-Z-_ZF5+A—H2H-

RETRE  AARBE=ZCETRATVERA
1Bz o

RZZ-NE+A—B AHEZEE=2A¥
E#%59,162,0005& T (RHizE32) » MR
—N\E+ZA=+—B  AREE=SAFE
#1%11,448,00078 7T ° A F{E% E2,282,000
BITURE B HR4,00008 TERERZKRARE

L
Ao



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

27. JIRREE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FBT
At 1 January Hn—B—H 96,198 24,348
Issuance of convertible notes BT AR AR 2R — 80,084
Interest charge MEEH 5,958 13,965
Interest paid 2FIE (2,238) (7,935)
Derecognition of convertible note KRILERTRRREE (a) (30,000) —
Conversion of convertible notes HIRTER RS (b) (69,918) (14,264)
At 31 December Rt=R=+—H — 96,198

(@) On 16 May 2016, the Company issued an unsecured

zero coupon convertible notes (the “CN1”) in the principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 at HK$25,800,000 by cash.
The CN1 is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The CN1
entitles the noteholder to convert them into conversion
shares of the Company at any time between the date of
issue of the notes and their settlement date on 16 May
2018 at a conversion price of HK$0.4 per convertible
share.

The CN1 contains two components, liability and equity
elements. The effective interest rate of the liability element
is 15.62% per annum. The equity element is presented in
equity heading “Convertible notes reserve” amounting to
HK$3,433,000.

On 28 June 2018, the Company entered into an agreement
with the CN1 noteholder to extend the maturity date of the
CN1 to 3 December 2018.

Up to the maturity date as of 3 December 2018, the
Company had not received any conversion notice from the
CN1 holder during the conversion period. Since the CN1
shall no longer be convertible into shares, the outstanding
principal of HK$30,000,000 is derecognised as convertible
note and is classified as current borrowing, see note 24(c).

(@) RCBE—XERA+XA - AAEL
18 £ 25,800,000 8 TR ITAELEA
30,000,000 T 2 EIRFZE [ 2 IR
=E(TRBERE— ) - TREZE
—LUBRHE - TREEE-RTE
BB ERREERTABE R
AH(=ZE—NERA+~A) L
BERS RS R SRR 190,48 7T 2 IR 1E
H HIRB RN 2 LIRS o

TRBRRE-—SAMERND : AES
PhEEHD  BENRIZEBREF
MEH1562% - BHEH T REZR
[ARBREBERFEITZ2 > 8B
3,433,000/8 7T °
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27. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

180

(b) On 23 March 2017, the Company issued an unsecured

convertible notes (the “CN2”) in the principal amount
of HK$86,000,000. The net proceeds received by the
Company was approximately HK$83,420,000. The CN 2
is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The CN 2 entitles
the noteholder to convert them into conversion shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue
of the CN 2 and their settlement date on 23 March 2019
at a conversion price of HK$0.43 per convertible share.
The CN 2 carries interest rate of 13% per annum on the
outstanding principal amount of the CN 2, which will be
payable by the Company quarterly in arrears.

The CN 2 contains two components, liability and equity
elements. The effective interest rate of the liability element
is 16.27% per annum. The equity element of CN 2 is
presented in equity heading “Convertible notes reserve”
amounting to HK$3,439,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
has received a conversion notice in respect of the exercise
of a part of the conversion rights attached to the CN2 in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$15,050,000 at the
conversion price of HK$0.43 per share. As a result of
the conversion of the CN2 on 25 September 2017, the
Company issued and allotted 35,000,000 shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
has received two conversion notices in respect of the
exercise of the remaining part of the conversion rights
attached to the CN2 in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$70,950,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.43 per
share. As a result of the conversion of CN2, the Company
has issued 20,000,000 shares on 24 Jan 2018 and
145,000,000 shares on 18 May 2018.

The entire CN2 had been converted into shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.43 per share on 18 May 2018.
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28. EEERERE

28. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

29.

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FTExT

At 1 January H—B—H - =
Business combination achieved in PRERTERZEEEH

stages 32 27 —

Additional provision MRS 5 =

Exchange adjustments [ 5 A% 3 =

At 31 December 2018 R=ZZ-N\$+=A
=+-A 35 -

Under the Turkish Labor Law, the Group’s Turkish subsidiaries
are required to pay termination indemnities to each employee
who completes one year of service and whose employment is
terminated upon causes that qualify the employee to receive
termination indemnity, is called up for military service, leaves
within one year after marriage (women only), and to those
employees who retire or die. The amount payable consists of
one month’s salary for each year of service.

DEFERRED TAXATION

(a) The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

29.

RELEHS®E  AEEZLEHKNE
REAAOBERBFRE-FRRILEH
BIREZRREEESSER UL L IEE
ZRBREXNRILEE  BREEAAE &
E&—FRBER (ERZM) KRR FH
ZES - BNSRERESEREFN2—
BA%E -

IEFERLIE

(a) MPBMEENMS @ BELERELER
ZAMUT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E2—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THET T8t

Deferred tax assets EIERIEEE 1,282 =
Deferred tax liabilities FELERIEEE (21,107) =
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29. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

182

(@)

(b)

(Continued)

Movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

At 1 January 2017, 31 December R-ZE—tF—HF—H"
2017 and 1 January 2018
kR=Z-NF—HF—H

29. IERERLIE (78

(a)

—E—+H+ZA=+—H

(#)

Deferred tax Deferred tax
assets liabilities
BEBIEEE EREHESE
Fair value

adjustments

on investment

properties and

investment

Tax properties under
losses construction
REMHER
ERREME
HIEEE ZATEAR
HK$°000 HK$°000
FExT FTHET

Business combination PREBRER 2 EHKE G 32

achieved in stages 1,124 (18,662)
Credit to profit or loss R 10 -
Exchange adjustments BE AR 148 (2,445)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE-—NF+ZA=+—H 1,282 (21,107)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has recognised
deferred tax asset of HK$1,282,000 in relation to unused
tax losses generated by a subsidiary in Turkey. Tax losses
that are reported under Turkey Corporate Income Tax can
be carried forward and deducted from corporate income
tax base for a maximum of five consecutive years.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$55,141,000 (2017: HK$50,646,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED XBEBEIERAERQT

(b)
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30. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE

30. AR A

Number of
shares
gl 4=

Amount
x|
HK$’000
FEIT

'000
K

Issued and fully paid ERTRHE
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+tF—H—H 1,502,677 959,333
Issue of placed shares BITOLERD (i) 100,000 41,160
Issue of shares upon conversion {2 AT ZiE & B TRR D

of convertible notes (ii) 35,000 14,848
At 31 December 2017 and RZB—tHF+ZA=1t—HRK

at 1 January 2018 R=Z2—-N\%—-A—H 1,637,677 1,015,341
Issue of shares upon conversion Hi2 TR ZIER TR

of convertible notes (i) 165,000 72,670
At 31 December 2018 RZEBE-—NFE+ZB=+—H 1,802,677 1,088,011

Notes: Bt -

@

(i)

(iii)

Pursuant to the placing agreement dated 9 January 2017, the
Company appointed the placing agent to procure placees to subscribe
for up to 100,000,000 shares of the Company at a price of HK$0.42
per share. On 19 January 2017, the Company issued and allotted
100,000,000 shares at the net placing price of HK$0.412 to not less
than six allottees. The closing market price was HK$0.51 per share of
the Company on the date on which the terms of the issue were fixed.
The net proceed was approximately HK$41,160,000.

On 23 March 2017, the Company issued unsecured convertible notes
in the principal amount of HK$86,000,000. The net proceeds received
by the Company was approximately HK$83,420,000, denominated in
Hong Kong dollars. The convertible notes entitle the holders to convert
them into conversion shares of the Company at any time between the
date of issue of the convertible notes and their settlement date on 23
March 2019 at a conversion price of HK$0.43 per convertible share.
The convertible notes carry interest rate of 13% per annum on the
outstanding principal amount of the convertible notes, which will be
payable by the Company quarterly in arrears.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has
received a conversion notice in respect of the exercise of a part of the
conversion rights attached to the convertible notes in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$15,050,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.43
per Share. As a result of the conversion of the convertible notes, on 25
September 2017, the Company allotted and issued 35,000,000 shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has received
two conversion notices in respect of the exercise of the remaining
part of the conversion rights attached to the convertible notes in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$70,950,000 at the conversion price
of HK$0.43 per Share. As a result of the conversion of the convertible
notes, the Company has issued 20,000,000 shares on 24 Jan 2018
and 145,000,000 shares on 18 May 2018, respectively.

(®

(iii)

RIEAA-ZT—tF—-ANAZERERZ
AAREEZABEREBREEEALZSR0.42
7 I 2 B8 R85 5 % 100,000,000 8 A< A F) iR
B RZE—tF—-A+NA  XATRER
EF0.412B TR RO RN BARABTRE
£%100,000,0002 B2 15 ° AN A B IR R EE 8
THRBBzWHERSR051E T ° FIBM
TEHEE# £41,160,000/8 7T ©

R-ZBE—tF=A=+=0 AQARTEAE
$8486,000,00058 T 2 BIKIHF IR ZIE ° K
AR FTSFIEF R 583,420,000/ T LB
TUEHE o AR EEE THE AN TR TR
REBZBITARE_E—NF=A=+=A
HEEALERUGRESRO4IBLEHEEER
ARDNTRN o TRBEEZAEERSER
FERE13%E > RRFEEEX[FLE—F2
FIE o

BE-Z—+HE+-A=+—HLEEE &2
AEE—NEBTERD MRREEAMS L
BEZRBELN  A&H8%515,050,0008
T RBEASR04ASET - ARAIBRTER
ZE > MARAEARZE—tEAAZTEAE
2% % 31735,000,0008% B2 15 ©

BE_Z—N\F+ZA=+—HLEFE &2
FEEMDERTET 50 PR EIE i
BRI 2 RIREH - A& 4%A70,950,000
BT RREBSR043EB T - AATDBIR
—E-NF-AZ+HNARZZE-NFEHA
+ J\ B #1720,000,000 % i% 13 % 145,000,000
AR o
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30. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVE (CONTINUED)

184

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the annual
report.

()

EXCHANGE RESERVE

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
out in note 2.

() STATUTORY RESERVE

Transfers from 10% of net profits to statutory reserve
fund were made in accordance with the relevant PRC
rules and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to make good previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into paid-up
capital provided that the balance of the statutory reserve
fund after such conversion is not less than 25% of their
registered capital.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required
to transfer a minimum of 10% of their net profits, as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to the statutory reserve fund until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this fund must be made before distribution of
dividends to shareholders.

(Ill) CONVERTIBLE NOTES RESERVE

The convertible notes reserve represents the value of
the unexercised equity component of convertible notes
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible notes in note 2.

Distributable reserves
As at 31 December 2018, there was no reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company (2017: Nil).
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTION

Share Option Schemes

On 1 February 2016, the 2011 Share Option Scheme was
terminated and a new share option scheme was adopted
(the “2016 Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the 2016
Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
share options to a certain eligible participants as defined
below (“Eligible Participants”) as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to the long term development of the Group and
to provide the Group with a more flexible means to reward,
remunerate, compensate, attract, retain and/or provide benefits
to the Eligible Participants. The 2016 Share Option Scheme
was adopted for a period of 10 years commencing from 1
February 2016 and will remain in force until 31 January 2026.

Eligible Participant under the 2016 Share Option Scheme
includes any full-time or part-time employees, consultants
or potential employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any
suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisers who, in
the opinion of the directors, will contribute or has contributed to
the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

The subscription price shall be determined by the directors
in its absolute discretion but in any event shall be at least the
higher of:

(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong on the date of grant which must be a business day;
and

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 14
days from the date of grant. Unless otherwise determined by
the directors in the relevant offer letter to a grantee, there is
no minimum period for which any option must be held before it
can be exercised and no performance target which needs to be
achieved by a grantee before the options can be exercised. An
option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
2016 Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
directors may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

There is no outstanding option and there is no options have
been granted under the option scheme since its adoption.

M. URBBERZNRRS

B RERT 8
RZE—-—XRE-A—AH " :E——Eﬁjﬁiﬂﬁ
*E*—F%JE%%M‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%wﬁéﬂriﬁﬁmw
(ZE2E—AREEREE]  —F—XREF
BRETEEEFLAA TQEWEH:A%*%
SHE(EEOT)((GEKSHE )RE
HE AR AE 1’?%1&£¥T$$.§HH§§E1’F}:H
=194 g@ﬂi@#ﬁ M AREBEIRMEE
E2 AR - BAIR - FE - RIE - EaH“’
Aﬁ*ﬁ/z\%&/jﬂﬂhf e ——
—NEBEREFEE-E-X<E=-A—H
Rz BeBE+F - ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂﬁ%
—ERFE-A=1+—HABIL-

RE-Z-—A"FRRETE  SERKSH
EREAQTREEANBA R 2EME
BRRBES - BARBNELREE - 17
BAEHSRBE (BEHT ~ FATRE
MIFPATES)  UREBEAR/EEHC G
ARARK/REEFAMELAMEHER 2
%ﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁ CBF - BHAER - RERE

REERARESRENITEE - HEE
ﬂ BRTEARLBTIIGREZBSE !

() BOERZLBEM(ZEARERE)E
BB BB S ARERALZ
BmE S &

(i) BRORBERHBHPAAEZEBEE
ERBMIAEHoEARERIZ
R THE o

ARANEMBRER - ARARDFZMN
1.008 7T - ERERBREZNE - AR
AEREHBHE14RA - EFRARHBER
B2EH BRESEFRTEARAZAH
ZARPEEEEIN - MEREERET
FAEAASHEMNBREZRESR
NEREARARTEBRENSZTENZ
RBEZ - ﬂ%ﬂx%TE@%%ﬂﬁE%f‘Ez,ﬁﬂ
FEJI?ME?F T ANFRBRE B 2R
BFATIE - ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ?\ SEBHARH EIHH
B+ BERARIERR -

BB AR R RT BI LR - BERTTEBR
R R AR A -

Annual Report 2018 Z=Z—\E&E# 185



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁ# %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION ACHIEVED IN STAGES

On 1 October 2018, the Group has completed the
acquisition of additional 30% of the issued share capital
of Boyraci Construction for consideration of approximately
HK$23,042,000. Boyraci Construction is engaged in building
construction, properties development and lease of properties
in Turkey. It has completed 5 projects, consist of 14 residential
units and 2 commercial units, additional two projects are
expected to reach completion in the year of 2019. Following
the completion of Further Acquisition, Boyraci Construction has
become an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company by
way of step acquisition, i.e. business combination achieved in

2. PREBGER 2 XA 6

RZZ-NF+A—HB  FEEZTKKE
Boyraci ConstructionZE5N30% 2 41T IR
A RIE# 523,042,000 T ° Boyraci
Construction AT EH Rt EEFEE -
MEFEBRRYEREEK - HEEKS
BEE  EF4ETEEMR2EEXE
By ZHWMEEEEHER_-_Z—IF
BT o E—SNEBEIETHE  Boyraci
Construction2 BB ZE L W EE (D ERE
REBEO) AR DTHEE60%ER 2 [
EWBATE -

stages.
Consideration transferred cEENRE
Notes HK$'000
K FHEIT
Deposit paid 2ffize (i) 9,068
Promissory Note A (PN 3) AREBAKAEE=) (i) 9,162
Promissory Note B (Contingent Consideration) 7 % Z#5B (S AKE) (iii) 4,812
23,042
Notes: Bt -

(i) The deposit of approximately TL7,544,000 (equivalent to USD
2,000,000) was paid by the Company on 9 June 2017.

(ii) In light of the exchange rate fluctuation of Turkish Lira, the Company
and the vendor entered into a second side letter, to reduce the
principal amount of the Promissory Note A and the Promissory Note
B by USD1,500,000. On 1 October 2018, the Company has issued
the Promissory Note A (i.e. PN 3 in note 26) in the principal amount of
USD1,938,770 as part of the consideration for the Further Acquisition.

The PN 3 was designated at fair value change through profit or loss at
the Acquisition Date with a fair value of approximately HK$9,162,000
(equivalent to USD1,170,116).

(iii) Pursuant to the supplemental deed and the second side letter, the
Company shall issue a promissory note in the principal amount of up to
USD1,111,230 (Promissory Note B) as the Contingent Consideration
after the legal titles of the rewarded areas of the construction projects
have been obtained by Boyraci Construction not later than 30
September 2019.

On the Acquisition Date, the fair value of the Contingent Consideration
approximates to HK$4,812,000 (equivalent to USD614,500).

186 EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  KIBREEZERER AT

(i) ALFAECRZBE—tEANANBZFESH
7,544,000 + B H 2 #1 (18 & 5 2,000,000 3
TT) ©

(i) ERLEHBNERKE  KQTHEEHET
SN MTER SR EEEARELEEB
ZAREEH A 1,500,000E 7T - RZE—N\E
+HA—H > ARQTEEBITASEER1,938,770%
TR R EEAEK 26 2 AR 2= )1E
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RUEBERE  ARRBE=RETRLFET
Az HRP{ER%9,162,0008 T (HHER
1,170,11637T) °

(i) REBEHFTEBERE DK & - £Boyraci
Construction M ER=ZZE—NFALA=+HE
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(CONTINUED)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$906,000 have
been recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the year
of acquisition and have been included in “operating and
administrative expenses”.

Details of assets and liabilities of Boyraci Construction
recognised at the Acquisition Date

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁi :=I.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZE=%

32. BUSINESS COMBINATION ACHIEVED IN STAGES

—NE+=A=t-BLEE

32. DREERRER Z XSG (F)

Uk % == 18 48 B8 A 4 906,00038 7T B R #E 1T
WESE  FEZIESERARMY » W5t
AR ITERAS -

BREIRAUKES B BifEBoyraci Construction
ZEEREEFHE

HK$ 000

FExT

Property, plant and equipment Y% - BERRZE 261
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 1,124
Investment properties REYE 83,044
Investment properties under construction EEBREME 29,667
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 18
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EAFERTRIE 4,344
Trade and other payables B S REMESRIE (4,300)
Deferred tax liabilities EIERIEEE (18,662)
Provision for employment benefits BEREFIERE (27)
95,469

Reconciliation of acquisition W EIE 2 H R

HK$’000

FEx

Consideration transferred SEENRE 23,042
Add: Fair value of previously held equity interest 0l : EAT3HE RAEZ A FE 34,239
Add: Non-controlling interests consideration i SEERERAE 38,188
Less: Fair value identifiable net assets acquired & : FTEE AR B EE FE 2 A FE (95,469)

Prior to the Further Acquisition, the Group accounted for its
previously held 30% equity interest in Boyraci Construction
as an associate. On the Acquisition Date, the Group has
remeasured the carrying value of the previously held 30%
equity interest in Boyraci Construction to its fair value on
the Acquisition Date. The remeasurement of the previously
held interest in Boyraci Construction was approximately
HK$34,239,000, which is higher than its carrying value of
approximately HK$27,566,000.

HE-—SWHESER  AEEBHE LR
HBoyraci ConstructionZ30%%# A §&%
E—RBE AT c ABRE  AE@EH
SR ABoyraci ConstructionZ30%f&#E
ZEEEEHTEZWREBAMAFE-
EHFTE %A1 EBoyraci ConstructionZ
FE#E#£534,239,000/8 T - BLEHREEY
27,566,0008 TR = °
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32. BUSINESS COMBINATION ACHIEVED IN STAGES
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of acquisition (Continued)

With the net effect of (i) gain on remeasurement of the
acquisition-date carrying value of the previously held interest
in Boyraci Construction to its fair value on the completion date
of approximately HK$6,673,000, and (ii) release of exchange
reserve upon derecognition of an associate of approximately
HK$5,623,000, the Group has recognised a gain on upon
derecognition of an associate of approximately HK$1,050,000.

The 30% non-controlling interest recognised at the Acquisition
Date was measured based on the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of Boyraci Construction’s net identifiable
assets at the Acquisition Date.

Net cash flow effect arising from the business combination
achieved in stages

DREBIER 2 B E O (E)

WiBE1E 2 ¥R (E)
AUTREZEZE  ()VBEAER
Boyraci ConstructionZ # s hAURES B 82
REEENTFEETHHE ,HHZ Slzfﬁﬂﬂl%‘ﬁ
%@6,673,0005%7_5 y R (i) 4R TR — g

R B O BB 3 1% 4 495,623, 000,%71: [24
AEBERAR LRI —BBHEQR 2 WE
#91,050,000/& 7t °

HUREE B HBFERR 2 30% JE IR IRIERS TH IR I
12 IR 3R 1z LE 5] 2 {5 Boyraci Construction
RE A2 BRI EEFEE o

AHBERZEBAGFEL 2R E
FETE

HK$’000
FiExT

Consideration paid in cash for the year ended BE-_Z—)/\S+-A=+—HLEFE
31 December 2018 ENRERE -
Add: Cash and cash equivalents acquired e RERERESEEY 18
18

Performance of the acquiree from the date of acquisition
up to the end of the reporting period

Included in the Group’s loss for the year, there was profit of
approximately HK$11,000 generated by Boyraci Construction
since the date of acquisition. The Group’s revenue for the year
included HK$220,000 generated by Boyraci Construction since
the date of acquisition.

Had the business combination been effected on 1 January
2018, the revenue of the Group from continuing operations
would have been HK$5,511,000, and the loss for the year
from continuing operations would have been HK$157,669,000.
These amounts have been determined based on the annual
depreciation of property, plant and equipment was determined
based on the fair value of the property, plant and equipment at
the date of acquisition. Management of the Group considers
that these ‘pro-forma’ numbers are just for reference only which
the subsidiary may or may not achieve these results in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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33. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 8 May 2017, the Group disposed of Argo (China)
Investment Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal Group”)
that carried out the Group’s travel agency services. The result
of the Disposal Group up to the date of disposal as well as
the gain or loss on disposal of the Disposal Group has been
included in “profit or loss from discontinued operations” in the
consolidated statements of profit or loss and comprehensive
income.

Assets and liabilities derecognised at the date when the
Group lost control over Argo (China) Investment Limited
and its subsidiaries

33. HEMEB LT

RZZB—tFHANE  AEBHERS
FAEERBERERB XL 2HS (PE) KR
EERAAREMBLB(HEEE]) -
HESEEZEHERMXERERHE
SECESCHAGERER2EKER
ZI BRIEEBENEE |

AEMAEHES (TE)REFRIAR
HB ARz ZtEERRILBR2EE
E&EE

HK$’000
FEx
Property, plant and equipment M -~ BERZE 355
Account and other receivables FEUR BR X % ELAth FE UK K18 14,235
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITER 2,406
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELSEEY 88
Account and other payables FE A BRFR % ELAth FE (S 7R 18 (15,522)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFE 1,562

Net cash flow on disposal of Argo (China) Investment
Limited and its subsidiaries

HERS (PE)RERRATARENE L
AZREREFHR

HK$°000

FHT

Total cash consideration HeNBEHEZ -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEY (88)
(88)

Gain on disposal of Argo (China) Investment Limited and
its subsidiaries

HERS (FR)REFRATAREHEL
Az s

HK$’000
FER

Consideration satisfied by set off of LUK SE L E I FIBE S 4 2

other payables RKE 2,000
Net assets disposed of HEBEFE (1,562)
Exchange gain reclassified from equity to HEAERSEF I EERREZ

profit or loss upon disposal A& 426
Non-controlling interests derecognised HILTER 2 RS 26
Gain on disposal HERE 890
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of each reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets

34. @I A
(a) BERISEz2ERMTE

REREPREEF 2 ER T ARE
BT :

2018
—E-N\EF
Loans and

receivables

2017
—E—tF
Loans and
receivables
BRER
FEUS I8
HK$’000
FET

BRK
B R IE
HK$’000

Tz

Trade and other receivables 5 Kk EMERIIE 13,562 38,698
Loan and interest receivables EREFRF L - 902
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 3,573 13,947

17,135 53,547

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities designated BERAFEFABRZ

2018
—E—N\F

2017
—E—+tF
HK$'000
TER

HK$°000
TR

at FVTPL THEeE
Promissory note EHEE 11,448 =
Contingent consideration HAKE 6,644 =
18,092 -

Amortised cost B A

Trade and other payables g 5 RHEMENRIE 9,060 9,140
Promissory notes O B 51,969 71,363
Borrowings B8 89,000 52,000
Convertible notes Gl - 96,198
Obligation under finance lease BERNER 703 831
Provision for employment benefits EERFIERE 35 -
150,767 229,532
168,859 229,532
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management
Exposure to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks
are mitigated by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices described below.

(A) Credit Risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to financial assets. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, all bank balances were deposited in reputable
financial institutions and were hence without significant
credit risk. Management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these counterparties. Credit
sales are made to selected customers with good credit
history. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that outstanding trade receivables are collected on
a timely basis. Trade receivables are subject to the
expected credit loss model. The Group applies HKFRS
9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables from initial recognition. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The expected
loss rates are based on the historical payment profiles
of sales and the corresponding historical credit losses
experienced. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

The credit quality of the other receivables excluding
deposits and prepayments have been assessed
with reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial position of
the counterparties. The directors are of the opinion
that the credit risk of other receivables is low due to
the sound collection history of the receivables due
from them. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of the
other receivables excluding deposits and prepayments
is assessed to be close to zero and no provision was
made as of 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2017.

34. €M T AE)

(b) BIEEMBEE
FEBR-BREBBRTEAZEFER
2 - RBETARRETSER - 25
B R T~ 3P At iz 7 B B B A TR IR
FEREHITA R

(A) EERE
AEBYEEAETHNEER
o ESREURERRERES
LZEYNEESERRAEES
BMEENESEERR - K=
EZ-NFER-ZE-—tHF+A
=t+—8 - fERITHESKHEEA
EERFHNSREKE  MEEX
FERR  EEEBHIESHERZ
EHF L RABAMBIAEMIE
Ko EEHEERMHTEERH
REFMBRERFE - XEBEHIF
BEBRRREBERREENES
EWE - E5EWRIEEER
EHEEFEREN - AEEER
BBV EREER LRI E
STEEHEEEER  RYOSER
N REESEUWREREER
BEEHNNEREE - AT
EHEEEE  B5EKRNER
RIEEEEERRISHRBEHX
HoE EHBEEREREEN
BERARBERREENEERE
EEEE BEFEREHAR
URMEERF & EEWRMAE
IHRENERRATEEER

HibEWFIE (FERESREN
RE)NEEEZCSZYHFAIN
BENZENBESLERRYEF AN
BARRETRMS - EERAH
ERZENEERRER - &
EREWGENWRETIERL -
it EttEWFE(TBEIR
SREMAFTE)NEREERAER
FMEERENE  BEE=ZZ2 N
F+ZA=+—BR=ZE—tF
+Z A=+ — B A ESHEERE o
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34. €M I A(E)

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(B) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure,
as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group’s reputation.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting period of
the Group’s non-derivative and derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the statement of financial position date) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

(b) BIISEERE (&)

(B) mEBEL/EE

nBETERREAREEARERE
HNETEMBEETZEAR - K
EEEERBES HHARA
R -EABRHUABDES -
DEMZISEE mMAgELET
REEARBRIEELAEEREZ
F\fz o

AEEETENEEEREEARN
BrREeEE  BERESRHKRE
HRE  RERERUEMSER
BEaFER  HEEEBHETHE
ERBEAFY  AARBLRES
SitE AEBBRAEME
BEERBDESTEREBRET
EXRE  BREFEZRRSMH
BRAMKEZR CHEESFUR
BEEMBEBEEEHC A
EXRE - BUBRNEHRERY

ZRBEETEE -

TRANAEEFRTERITES
BEERSTREPRZNGELH
A DEEITHRMERSE
RE(BFERASNFZ BT
AR BREBERAREXBHE
AR ZRHE 2R EAF) URALE
BUREANRZERRHMAEE

8

2018 2017
—B2-N\fF —E-t%

Total More than More than Total More than

Contractual Within 1yearbut  2years but Contractual Within 1 year but

Carrying undiscounted 1 year or on less than less than Carrying  undiscounted 1 yearoron less than

amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years amount cash flow demand AL

ARRRR R—%FR HA-F BEMF ARRER R—%R BE-F

REE RemELE FZER  EORmE  BOREF REE RERELH FRER  EIREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TER TEx TER TEx TER TEr TER TER

Trade and other payables ~ E 5 R EAEATE 9,060 9,060 9,060 — — 9,140 9,140 9,140 =

Promissory notes RHZE 63,417 90,056 - 21,325 68,731 71,363 74,237 23,487 50,750

Borrowings fH& 89,000 97,503 32,750 64,753 - 52,000 52,000 52,000 —

Contingent consideration ~ SAKE 6,644 10,965 — — 10,965

Convertible notes TRREE - - - - - 96,198 112,448 — 112,448
Obligation under finance ~ BAEMRAIER

lease 703 730 155 575 - 831 885 155 730
Provision for employment  {EEERIRE

benefits 35 35 35 - - — — — —

168,859 208,349 42,000 86,653 79,696 229,532 248,710 84,782 163,928
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(C) Market Risk

@)

Currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
Such exposures arise from sales, purchases or
expenditure by operating units in currencies other
than the units’ functional currencies. The following
table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the exchange rates of the HK dollar (“HK$”"),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Turkish Lira (“TL”), with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s loss
before taxation (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

34. €M T AE)
(b) BIEEER(E)

(C) s
(i)

SEB
EHER

+
v
&
Ei]
KH
st
il
iy

TE o ThE
s

ZERT $E
Xz@ﬁm@ﬁ(
&ﬁﬁ“¥ﬁm
([®Bx])

WD&iHHEh
BH NEXRTESE
EBE) o BBIEE o

%mmmm&m
o B
TIENE
S5 > B D 4 4

Increase/

(decrease) in

loss before

Increase/ taxation and

(decrease) in  accumulated

exchange rate loss

RBLATES B

fE =R RZTEE

®inCR4) i ORA)
HK$°000
FEIT
2018 —E—N\E

If HK$ weakens against RMB mE T ARBRE 5% 203
If HK$ strengthens against RMB mETHAREHE (5%) (203)

If HK$ weakens against TL BTt EEENEE 5% 1,055
If HK$ strengthens against TL mETHTEEBNAE (5%) (1,055)

2017 —T—tH

If HK$ weakens against RMB mBTHEARBEE 5% 108

If HK$ strengthens against RMB 8 T A REEFE (5%) (108)
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIZ=R b

The Group is primarily exposed to cash flow AEEFEREHETEZE
interest rate risk in relation to interest bearing W FkIE & AT FE (B R IR 1T

receivables and payables, including bank balances
and borrowings (2017: variable interest rate). The
Group'’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to promissory notes and convertible bonds. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy in relation to fair value interest rate
risk and cash flow interest rate risk. However,
management of the Group monitors interest rate
exposure on an on-going basis and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise. The Group’s exposures to interest
rates on financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk section of this note.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

194

(b) Financial risk management (Continued)
(C) Market Risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The management determines that the Group’s
exposure of interest rate risk was not significant
and hence no sensitivity analysis is prepared.

(D) Fair Values

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information
and information about the financial instruments.
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the
estimates.

For financial reporting purpose, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or
3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

None of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are calculated in level 1,2 and 3 during the
reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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HRE D
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35.

36.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to reduce debt.

The Group manages capital by regularly monitoring its current
and expected liquidity requirement rather than using debt/
equity ratio analysis.

COMMITMENTS

(a) Operating lease commitments and arrangements
As lessee
The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating lease falling as follows:

35.

36.

EXEmEE

FEEEEEACTERE  RARER
SHEHEEFRSECEEELE M
FERERRKTHEE2ERRBRBER
URESSERACHE  HESRRA
EOHUREHMERFAEAZE

FEBEBERRINEEEEARLE
LEBRSRREBER T IEHE RS
EEKFER FE AR R 2 4 B2 K £R
BoBESTE  TEREEERREZHY
EENT b

REFVAREAER  AEEHTHE
ARFRGTREEHE  MRREEE
R BITHBRONUHEEE - LURDEF -

AEEEBTHEREENRARRDE
SERERAR  MHRAES, R
|34 o

EiE

(a) EEHERERZH
1ERAA
AEE IR HEELERERR
REEEERENT :

2018
—B-N\F

2017
—E—+F
HK$’000
FBT

HK$’000
FET

Within one year —FER 745 1,579
In the second to fifth years FEERERF 6,824 7,952
7,569 9,531

As lessor

The Group had total future minimum lease receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

TER A
AEEEHARF 2 BN HELEE
HERRRKEEEEBIENT :

2018
—B-N\fF

HK$°000
FERT

Within one year —F R 882 779
In the second to fifth years E_EZFERF — —
882 779
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36. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 36. AIE(#E)
(b) Capital commitment (b) EAAIE
The Group had the following capital commitment: AEBEUTEREE !
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FEx FiExT
Contracted but not provided for BRI B REE
— Acquisition of a subsidiary — WE—ERE AR — 35,549
— Capital injection of a subsidiary — —ERBAREE 7,753 9,005

37. MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH . EXEREA TR G RER
RELATED PARTIES

(a) Key management personnel compensation (a) TEEBABZHE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the TEEXTEEEAEME (BEMES
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors B AAAREE 22 ERMET9
as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest paid kBN ETEeFHEEZSRH) W
employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FTER
Short-term employees benefits S HHEEER 1,475 1,833
Post-employment benefits ERER 26 88
Amount due to related persons  FE{HERIE A TFIE 23 7,198 3,155
8,699 5,021
(b) Transactions with other related parties (b) EBHEMBEEALTRS
Other than those transactions disclosed elsewhere in MRS BERREMBPIBEZZE
the consolidated financial statements, the Group has no R AEBBZE-_ZE—-N\FR=
transactions or balances with other related parties during E—tF+-A=+—HILFEHE
the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. HihBBEEAN LR Z SR o
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38. MEMBREER

(a) ZRRAMADNBDEHRA-Z-NF+—

38. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(@) References is made to the announcements of the

Company dated 13 November 2018, 3 December 2018,
31 December 2018, 15 February 2019 and 21 February
2019 in relation to the issue of the convertible note in the
principal up to HK$150,000,000 (the “Macquarie CN”). On
13 November 2018, the Company and Macquarie Bank
Limited (the “Subscriber” or the Noteholder) entered into
the conditional subscription agreement, pursuant to which
the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe for the
Company has conditionally agreed to issue the convertible
notes in the principal amount up to HK$300,000,000.

The Macquarie CN will be issued in two tranches. Each
tranche will be in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$150,000,000. The Macquarie CN will bear 1% interest
per annum and will mature on the second anniversary
of the closing date. Each convertible note entitles the
Noteholder to convert the Macquarie CN into shares at
any time during the conversion period at the conversion
price, provided that no conversion right may be exercised
at a conversion price lower than the floor price (which is
subject to adjustments). The conversion price will be 92%
of the volume weighted average price of the shares as
traded on the relevant stock exchange on the trading day
immediately preceding the relevant conversion date.

The issue of Macquarie CN has been approved by the
independent shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company on 15 February 2019.

B+=ZE -ZZ2-N\H+=ZA=H -
—E-NFE+=ZBA=+—-H =&
—NFZRA+HEBER=ZZE—HhE=
B-Zt+-HEBRTASERSZA
150,000,000/8 T 2 2 IR E 5 ([ B E
AMBREBREE]) 2O  RZE—NEF
+—A+=0 ' AQFEEKRERT
BRAB(TRBE IRNZEEEEA)T
NERGRERE Bt RBLSE
HRERERE > MAQATNERERE
B {TASEER % A300,000,00058 T2
ARREE -

ERBEUBRREEAS D WEH X
BT Bl cASHRERB
150,000,00058 7T - BERBE TR EE
ZEREE1%  SREXRBHzE=
BAFERAZH  SUEREEETFEE
BEAER > IRERIEERRE
BRESERETRREELBRALE
B R ESRENEE(TFHAE)
ZRBETERLRE - RBEBAER
PREEEERBRBNIZRZAE
HEBFERIMETE 2R REMETF
918 292% °

ROTERETRREBCR-ZF-N
FZRATHRETZARRARRER
RELEUSBIRRAE -
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38. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD (CONTINUED)

198

(@)

(b)

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(CONTINUED)

On 21 February 2019, all conditions precedent set out
in the subscription agreement has been fulfilled and
completion of the issuance of the first tranche of the
Macquarie CN in the principal amount of HK$150,000,000
has taken place on the same date.

Subsequent to the issue of Macquarie CN and up to the
date of this report, the Company has received conversion
notice in respect of the exercise of part of the conversion
rights attached to the Macquarie CN. As a result of the
conversion, the Company allotted and issued 864,000
shares in aggregation in relation to the Macquarie CN.

On 13 March 2019, the Company and Just Classic Limited
has entered into a confirmation letter (the “Confirmation
Letter”) in relation to the convertible note of principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 matured on 3 December 2018.

The Company and Just Classic Limited mutually agree that
the outstanding balance carries an interest rate of 10% per
annum from 4 December 2018 and interest shall be paid
in every two months. The principal of HK$30,000,000 shall
be payable before 30 November 2019, which has been
classified under current borrowing as at 31 December 2018
see note 27(a).

KIEEEZRBRERATF

38. MEBRBHEA)

(a)

(b)

(#)

R-ZZFE-NRF-A=-+—RB B#&
P 08 19 o PR 8P B SRR A 0
REBERBRTE-HREESER
150,000,000& T 2 HERE AR R
R

BROTERETRREBRRBEARR
HFEHILE - ARRFMTERIERE
AR RIEREM 2 B ia R 5 inE
oo ARNETRIR  ARRFMERE
AR RIE OB R 31T 5 $£864,000/%
iR fp o

AZE-NAEF=A+=H K2 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂ*ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ* %.I For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+=-A=+—ALFE

39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

39. BRI &R

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—t5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T8t
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment W > BERFZE 89 80
Interests in subsidiaries GNP Es 220,121 213,222
220,210 213,302
Current assets REEE
Other receivables and deposit paid HitEWRIER E[NEE 150 150
Amount due from associates FEUREE = N Bl FRIE 3,000 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 2,028 6,767
5,178 9,917
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables HAthfEFRIE 534 1,555
Borrowing g 30,000 —
Contingent consideration HARE 6,644 —
Promissory note A B — 20,152
37,178 21,707
Net current liabilities REEEREE (32,000) (11,790)
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEABRBRBEE 188,210 201,512
Non-Current Liabilities FEREBEE
Promissory notes AHEE 28,237 —
Convertible notes AR ZEE — 96,198
28,237 96,198
NET ASSETS BEFE 159,973 105,314
EQUITY AND RESERVES R RFE
Share capital [N 1,088,011 1,015,341
Reserves B (928,038) (910,027)
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 159,973 105,314

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

22 March 2019.

Hung Tat Chi Alan
HEE
Director

EE

KHEEER _ZE—-NEFE=A=+=Hi#lt
ERIRETE o

Ling Ko Yin Jason
HEAR
Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)  39. Btk R &R (&)

The reserve of the Company is as follow: AABMEBUT ¢
Convertible
notes Accumulated
reserve losses Total
g
ZERE RitEE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TEx FEx
At 31 December 2016 and R=E-—R"E+T=A=+—H
at 1 January 2017 R=—B-t5—A—A 3,433 (885,580) (882,147)
Issue of shares upon HRBRUBRREE
conversion of convertible notes BT (584) = (584)
Issue of new convertible bonds ~ E{TH AR ES 3,336 g 3,336
Loss for the year FREE = (30,632) (30,632)
At 31 December 2017 and R=Z—t&+=-A=+-H
at 1 January 2018 R-—B-\5—F—A 6,185 (916,212) (910,027)
Issue of shares upon ERRTRREE
conversion of convertible notes T 1T IR (2,752) — (2,752)
Derecognition of convertible notes #& L FER A AR E 15 (3,433) 3,433 —
Loss for the year FREE — (15,259) (15,259)
At 31 December 2018 R=E-N\F+=-A=1+—H — (928,038) (928,038)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂ*ﬁ#ﬁiﬁ* %I For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—Z—N\F+=-A=+—ALFE

40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The details of principal subsidiaries are set as follows:

Name of company

NAER

Progress Gain Resources
Limited
BEERERAR

Mega Field International Limited

EAERERAE

Ottoman Evershine Construction

Boyraci Construction

Ottoman Evershine Finance Limited

RFEHHARAT

Pro-King Corporation Limited

BHARLA

BRERES () BRAF

Prosperous Link Investments
Limited

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

operation
AL/ HLR
Besy

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&

Turkey
1EH

Turkey
tEH
Hong Kong

Bk

Hong Kong
&

PRC
hEl

British Virgin Island
ABRLHE

Particulars of
issued/registered and
paid up capital
B&{T/ERR
BARARE

100 shares of
HK$50,000 each
100k REE50,000i8 T 2B

1 share of
HK$1 each
1REEE TR

Paid up capital of
USD50,000
BAIRA50,000% 7

Registered capital of
TL21,000,000
FMEA21,000,000LEZEN

1 share of
HK$1 each
1IREBEETZ R

10,000 shares of
HK$1 each
10,000k REE
1BrZRA

Registered capital of
RMB8,000,000
EMERAKES,000,0007T

50,000 ordinary shares of
USD1 each

50,000k AR
(Eazyil

40. TEMB AT 2 EEFE
ITEWBLARDZEBFERIIMT ¢

Proportion of ownership interest

ikt {3+
Group’s effective holding
rEERREE
2018 2017
Z2-)\F “E-tF
100% 100%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(Bi#%) ()
100% 100%
(Direct) (Direct)
(BR) (BH)
100% 100%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(E#%) ()
60% =
(Indirect)
(%)
100% 100%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(Bif) ()
100% 100%
(Direct) (Direct)
(BR) (EH)
100% 100%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(&) ()
100% 100%
(Direct) (Direct)
(EH) (ER)

Annual Report 2018

Principal activity
IERK

Trading
EZ

Fashion Garment

Bl R

Investment holdings
REER

Building construction
properties development
and lease of properties

BFRE  NEMER
NEEERHK

Money Lending
HE

Investment holdings

REZR

Trading
g5

Investment holdings
REER

—E-N\EFFH/ 201
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

202

(CONTINUED)

Name of company

AFER

Patalogue Limited
TERERAT

Vital Fortune International
Investment Limited

REERRERRAT

Fortune Ford Limited
BXBARAH

GNSEREE FERAT
(note i) (Wit )

hSEZRERAR
(note ii) (2 i)

Ottoman Evershine Holdings
Limited
R SERARAE

RImETRERRAR
(note i) (it )

Maxwise Limited

£3RRAT

Sharp Pick Ventures Limited

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

operation
HMRL/KLR
BeEny

Hong Kong
&

British Virgin Island
ABRLHE

Hong Kong
&

PRC
hEl

PRC
il

British Virgin Island
ABRLHE

PRC
Rl

Hong Kong
&

British Virgin Island
ABRLHE

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Particulars of
issued/registered and
paid up capital
B&T/ 2R
BARAHE

10,000 shares of
HK$1 each
10,000k B REE
1R 2R

50,000 ordinary shares of
USD1 each
50000 ERARIZTZEBR

10,001 shares of

total HK$10,492,837
10,0015

211049, 837BTZRE

Registered capital
USD1,000,000
FHEA1,000,000% 7T

Registered capital
RMB1,000,000
HERAR1,000,0007

50,000 ordinary shares of
USD1 each
50000 ERARIZTZEBR

Registered capital
RMB13,000,000
&R AK#13,000,0007T

10,000 shares of
HK$1 each
10,000REREE1ET 2R G

50,000 ordinary shares of
USD1 each
50000 ERARIZT L EBR

KBREEZERERAT

40. TEM BT 2 EHmFE(F)

Proportion of ownership interest

ity 1 ]
Group's effective holding
AREEREE
2018 2017
Z2-N\F It
100% 100%
(Direct) (Direct)
(BH) (EH)
100% 100%
(Direct) (Direct)
(BR) (EH)
100% 100%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(i) ()
100% 100%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
(Bi%) ()
90% 90%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
() ()
100% 100%
(Direct) (Direct)
(BR) (EH)
51% -
(Indirect)
(i)
100% 55%
(Indirect) (Indirect)
() ()
100% 100%
(Direct) (Direct)
(BR) (EH)

Principal activity
IEXK

Mobile application business

FHEREAZH

Investment holdings

RERR

Investment holdings
REER

Investment holdings

REER

Construction and
development of Cemetery
NEERRER

Investment holdings

REER

Retail trade of window frames
doors and wardrobe

TEEE  PIRKE
Trading of chrome ore

#RRS

Rental service

HERH



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of

establishment and issuedregistered and

Name of company operation ’ paid up capital
FMRYL/ BIR BET/ER

PG LEsY BAREHE
Spring Hero Developments Limited British Virgin Island 50,000 ordinary shares of
ARRZHE USD1 each

50,000RERER I X2 EBR

Notes:

(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as wholly foreign-owned
enterprise.

(i) Registered under the laws of the PRC as limited liability enterprise.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have
material non-controlling interests

The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations:

Boyraci Construction

40. TEM BT 2 EHmFE(E)

Proportion of ownership interest

ikt 4 sahd]

Group's effective holding
REEEREE Principal activity
2018 2017

—2-N\% Bt IERK
100% 100%  Rental service
(Direct) (Direct) ~ HERH
(E) (E)

Hist -

() REFEZEIMBIFBEELSE -

(i) REFEEZRIMAEREMELE -

FEEAERBMEZFZEWEAT
S

TS B E BN SR EEN AT
A 2 2% -

Boyraci Construction

2018
—E-—NE

HK$’000
FTHERT

Current assets MEEE 5,427
Non-current assets FRBEE 130,488
Current liabilities REERE (2,918)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (25,005)
Equitable attributable to the shareholders of the A~ FIRR R FE(L #EE

Company 64,795
Non-controlling interests R R 43,197
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. TEMB AR ZERFE(E)
(CONTINUED)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have BEEAFEREZZHZERNB AT
material non-controlling interests (Continued) 15 (&)
Boyraci Construction (Continued) Boyraci Construction (&)

Period from
1 October to
31 December

2018
g%
+A—HZE
+=A=+—H
HAR
HK$’000
FHERx
Revenue & 220
Expense 53 (209)
Profit for the period by ]| 11
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests FE4E IR A 2 FE A 3R A 4
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from: B2 (ORM),MARE :
Operating activities REED (403)
Investing activities REEE (1,381)
Financing activities mMEEE 1,827
Net cash inflow RERANFEE 43
HEGEZRERAE HEGEZRERAA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E2—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FBT
Current assets REBEE 3,403 6,016
Non-current assets IERBEE 46,238 115,389
Current liabilities mEaE (18,111) (18,719)
Equity attributable to shareholders of RATRREMLER
the Company 28,377 92,417
Non-controlling interests JEfE IR = 3,153 10,269
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40. TEMB AR ZERFE(E)
(CONTINUED)
MBSGEZRERAR RSB EREERAT
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
S BZE
—E-N\F —Z—+5F
+=ZA=+—-B +t=A=+-—H
IEFE IEFE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FExT F&T
Revenue & 63 9
Expenses 53 (78,795) (5,642)
Loss for the year FAEE (78,732) (5,633)
Loss attributable to non-controlling  FE¥PREEXS FE(L &1
interests (7,873) (563)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from: Be (Rl /RAFE -
Operating activities KRR (1,664) 1,082
Investing activities RETE (7 (6,594)
Financing activities Rl EEE 147 9
Net cash outflow RERmEFEE (1,534) (5,503)
41. NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND M. SR B RERZ IS RIEFTE
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET Al RE
EFFECTIVE
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the BEAGKHERTIBAE  EBSTMQ
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and new standards BUEMELARARBZE-_ZT—/\F+=A
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December EST-—HALFEERZHEBITRE
2018 and which have not been adopted in these financial Al MAAKEILRERGHERERPERA UL
statements. These include the following which may be relevant LSRR ZER o Hh Al gt R B AH RS
to the Group: EWT :
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41.

206

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs that are not mandatorily effective
and not yet early adopted by the Group

HKFRS 16
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

Leases’
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint

HKAS 28 Venture?
HK(IFRIC) Uncertainty over Income Tax
Interpretation 23 Treatments’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

HKFRS 16 Leases
HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease guidance including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

With regards to lessee accounting, the distinction of operating
leases and finance leases, as required by HKAS 17, has been
replaced by a model which requires a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability to be recognised for all leases by lessees
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

Specifically, the right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments. Furthermore, the classification of cash flows
will also be affected as operating lease payments under HKAS
17 are presented as operating cash flows; whereas, under
the HKFRS 16 model, the lease payments will be split into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows respectively.

With regards to lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as
an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, HKFRS 16 requires extensive disclosures in the
financial statements.

EVERSHINE GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED  kiESEEZERBER AR

4. EBMEERERZHIERT RIETE

RIR2E(E)
3 48 368 5 2 R % AN 5 ) 1 R R T ER AR 2 T
AR ERT B R M BRERER

ERUBHERAF 6% B
ERUBHRERUE10%R REEEABENA

ERSTHERIELH RENARZEE
CHES) HEHTE?

& (BRRHRERE FretERE 2 TR
ZE)RBENH e

T REER-NF-A-HRZERRZFESD
£

2 REERHMRzEMRFERRER

BRI IR EERE 165 E

BB M EENF 165 SN E £ RIFE
RERI2HERS > BRESBETELSE
175 E R R -

BABASHEEMNS - RESBSTE
AIS17RAE - KEHERREHE 28
AEHRS—BAMN - HRERBEAER
FrERERAEAEEERAREE
EHHEREEEEEHEERM -

REMS  CRAEEEDNSERANTE
HEBAAN(BETHIIMER) BRTINE
REEEE (REESE IS EE
HAR)E - HERBNTERZA K
XY ZHENRBRENE - H& > HEE
BERA S REE N REHAR - 1o B/
EREBZABTMEZATE  FEARER
SR EREI17THRT 2 KEHETREN B
KEeHERE  MRBEBYHRELER
1655 ERK - HENKEHFEL BEERF
B0 2RI BRMERELERERE

HRHEBASHREMNS » BBUBHREE
A1 A RETBETERE17HRR
HEAZSTER  WEBERHBEAR
HESBAKEHERMENRES -

LEoh - BRI EIREERE16RERN Y
BHERAEHZEME -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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41. 2 BB RERZHER] RIEFTER

41.

42.

43.

NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs that are not mandatorily effective
and not yet early adopted by the Group (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 deal with
situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
Specifically, the amendments state that gains or losses
resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not
contain a business in a transaction with an associate or a joint
venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are
recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.
Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the re-measurement
of investments retained in any former subsidiary (that has
become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for
using the equity method) to fair value are recognised in the
former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The Group did not enter into these transactions in the current
year. The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in future periods
should such transactions arise.

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

This Interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition
and measurement requirements in HKAS 12 when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments.

The Directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the Interpretation will have a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The above new and revised HKFRSs does not have any impact
to the Company’s financial statements.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to confirm
with the current year’s presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March
2019.

42.

43.

K@RRE)

3 8 368 5 2 R % A R [ [ oK R TP R AR 2 R
A REBEIERMBRERER(E)
BB EERF 10 REEBS1EAR
F283 (IEFT X)) REEZHRBE LA S
ENABCEELHEHTE
EBMBHREENE10XREBSTEL
285K (BRI A ) BEREERHBENT
FEEARABCEREHESTEZER
BEMS  ZSEIAHN  REHEBE
NAYGERR(UEEEAR) ZX ST
REHWEBOSER 2HB AR 22 HE
FRSEE ENELRRZBRANER
ELFHBEAREENZBELARREED
A2 EABIR - BN - EFFHEMEM
BIMIB A B (B A R EA IR Z & A A
FEERA)RECREEZAFEMERE
B SRAISNEBRAER - HEEN
FHAREENHBLEARANEGELTLZ
B ABR -

FEBMPAFELETIEAZERS °
AARESRY  MBERRARXS B
ZEER] AR Y AR E B AR R 2 4R
EMBRRELHE -

BB (R BHERBESE) 2 FEFE23
T E BRI THEERE
LREEEFEMSHERERE 2 MEERER
AT B ENF12REARTER
EZIH o

AAREERGEAZRETISHALEH
ZEEMBRREREATE
FUHRET RAET R R BREE
DM BREBEEAIE
LEEEE

ETHRBBECEENDE  UHFEAEF
E22% -

it R B R R

RABHRENR-Z-—NF=ZA=-1+=
AREZSMERRETIE -

UESEN
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
£$ﬂ1ﬁﬂg For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—ZE—N\E+-A=+—HI&EE

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY AFEERE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ZAEEBETRENREECEXEUREERE
Group for the last five financial years is set out below: ERERIMNT

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-RA=1t—-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-NE 2t ZE-RE C—E-5F C—E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET TET TET THET
(Re-presented)
(=35
Revenue from continuing REBECEEL
operations iz 4,427 27,948 135,462 72,900 45,792
Loss before taxation Ty (113,446) (69,329) (68,546) (29,866) (19,648)
Profit from discontinued operations 3% B &4 1E %38 2 %7l — 580 2,706 16,108 (3,520)
Taxation B 3 — 916 228 20
Loss for the year REERFE (113,443) (68,749) (64,924) (13,530) (23,148)
Net loss from ordinary THEE 2 BEER
activities EiEEE
attributable to shareholders REE (105,087) (66,961) (65,399) (11,996) (19,926)
attributable to non-controlling R R
interests (8,356) (1,788) 475 (1,534) (3.222)

As at 31 December

Rt=A=t—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\f Bt 2R —T-IF C"ET-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THx FHET THx THT

Total assets BEE 384,564 419,453 421,923 308,576 131,701
Total liabilities e (201521)  (232112)  (227.441) (91,809) (94,965)
Non-controlling interests TR ER (43,834) (10,354) (12,667) (8,701) 19,657

139,209 176,987 181,815 208,066 56,393
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